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The 2021 Fiscal Year at a Glance

Financial performance indicators

Fraport Annual Report 2021

€ million 2021 2020 Change in %
Revenue 2,1433 1,677.0 +27.8
Revenue adjusted for IFRIC 12 1,901.6 1,452.5 +30.9
EBITDA 757.0 -250.6 -
EBITDA before special items” 757.0 48.4 >100
EBIT 313.7 -708.1 -
EBT 116.4 -933.2 -
Group result 91.8 -690.4 -
Profit attributable to shareholders of Fraport AG 82.8 —657.6 -
Earnings per share (basic) (€) 0.90 -7.12 -
Year-end closing price of the Fraport share (€) 59.18 49.36 +19.9
Dividend per share (€)” 0.00 0.00 -
Operating cash flow 392.6 -236.2 -
Free cash flow -772.3 -1,400.0 +44.8
Total assets 16,240.0 14,081.2 +15.3
Shareholders’ equity 3,909.0 3,758.7 +4.0
Shareholders’ equity ratio (%) 23.1 25.7 -
Liquidity 3,564.3 2,213.7 +61.0
Net financial debt 6,369.7 5,533.5 +15.1
Net financial debt to EBITDA 8.4 -22.1 -
Return on revenue (%) 5.4 -55.6 -
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) 2.2 -18.2 -
EBITDA margin (%) 35.3 -14.9 -
EBIT margin (%) 14.6 —42.2 -
ROFRA (%) 34 -8.3 -
Gearing ratio (%) 169.7 152.9 -

" Adjusted EBITDA adjusts for personnel expenses from the "Future FRA — Relaunch 50" program at Fraport AG and expenses from personnel management measures

at the other Group companies.
? Proposed dividend (2021).

Traffic development at the Group sites

Airport Share in % Passengers” Cargo (air freight + air mail in m. t.) Movements

2021 Change in % 2021 Change in % 2021 Change in %’
Frankfurt 100 24,812,849 +32.2 2,274,970 +18.8 261,927 +23.4
Ljubljana 100 421,934 +46.4 11,401 +8.0 17,461 +34.5
Fortaleza 100 3,974,759 +25.9 32,725 +11.5 41,343 +25.7
Porto Alegre 100 4,839,594 +35.9 30,337 +36.8 49,278 +30.0
Lima 80.01 10,819,010 +53.6 219,203 +15.1 102,005 +39.2
Fraport Greece 73.4 17,428,536 +102.4 5,630 +5.6 183,218 +81.4
Twin Star 60 1,964,896 +87.8 4,703 +19.6 17,534 +60.0
Burgas 60 954,402 +125.0 4,669 +20.1 8,295 +103.4
Varna 60 1,010,494 +62.4 34 -23.9 9,239 +34.3
Antalya 51/503' 21,919,453 +125.7 n.a n.a 133,800 +105.1
St. Petersburg 25 18,034,415 +64.8 n.a n.a 153,539 +46.2
Xi'an 24.5 30,173,312 -2.9 395,604 +5.1 255,873 +0.5
" Commercial traffic only, in + out + transit.
? As a result of late submissions, there may be changes to the figures reported for the previous year.
% Share of voting rights: 51%, dividend share: 50%.
Employees

2021 2020 Change in %

Average number of employees 18,419 21,164 -13.0
Employees as at the balance sheet date 17,781 19,884 -10.6
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The year of 2021 — Events at a Glance

The year of 2021 —
Events at a Glance

1. Quarter

Passenger numbers in 2021 already
affected by coronavirus pandemic
from beginning of the year

CEIV Pharma Certificate distinguishes
handling of pharmaceutical products

Once again, Frankfurt Airport was success-
fully certified for exemplary handling of
time-critical and temperature-sensitive
pharmaceutical goods. Fraport thus also
assumes a significant role in Corona
vaccine distribution.

¥ 0

ACI seal for exemplary
infection control

The international organization of airport
operators Airports Council International
(ACI) awards Frankfurt Airport and the
Greek and Bulgarian airports for exemplary
infection control measures: The program
reviews hygiene and infection control
measures against specified standards.

Corporate bond with a total volume
of €1.15 billion successfully issued

With the significantly oversubscribed
corporate bond, Fraport succeeds in placing
one of the largest unrated corporate bonds
in euros on the capital market to date.

2. Quarter

Air traffic restart / incipient recovery
of passenger traffic in Frankfurt and
internationally

Terminal 2 and Runway Northwest at
Frankfurt Airport reopen on June 1, 2021

After more than a year Terminal 2 reopens
in order to prepare for the expected
passenger volume in the summer.

At the same time, the Runway Northwest
also goes back into operation to enable
smooth, delay-free operations as aircraft
movements increase.

Fraport Annual Report 2021

New passenger terminal inaugurated
at Ljubljana Airport

After a construction period of around

two years and an investment volume of
around €21 million, Fraport Slovenija
inaugurated the new passenger terminal
on July 1, 2021, on time and on budget.
The handling capacity of the airport in
Ljubljana was more than doubled to 1,200
passengers per hour.
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3. Quarter

Group airports benefit from strong
vacation traffic / Greek airports and
Antalya Airport already reach over
75% of pre-crisis level

Fraport receives compensation for
holding costs

The Federal Government and the State of
Hesse grant Fraport a compensation totaling
around €160 million for the uncovered holding
costs incurred at Frankfurt Airport during the
first lockdown 2020.

Multimedia visitor center opens

On 1,200 square meters of exhibition space,
almost 30 innovative exhibits present insights
behind the scenes of the airport and flying.
»The Globe“ maps, among other things, all
flights around the globe in real time (see
chapter ,The Fraport Executive Board®).

Fraport Brasil opens new cargo center
in Porto Alegre

In order to further exploit the growth oppor-
tunities in the Brazilian and South American
cargo markets, a new international cargo
center (TECA) at the Porto Alegre Airport was
opened. In addition to increased handling
capacities, the new TECA offers its customers
state-of-the-art technical standards with the
aim of providing fast and secure logistics.

4. Quarter

Sustained demand for tourist
destinations / opening of the USA
contribute to positive development in
international traffic

Fraport responsible for airport security
checks from 2023

The German Federal Police have officially
entrusted Fraport with the implementation,
planning and management of airport secu-
rity checks in Frankfurt. With state-of-the-
art equipment and optimized processes,
Fraport aims to once again significantly
improve handling quality in Frankfurt for
its passengers and customers.

The year of 2021 — Events at a Glance

85 megawatts of green offshore wind
energy to supply Frankfurt Airport in
the future

Fraport AG and EnBW have concluded

a Corporate Power Purchase Agreement
(CPPA) for the purchase of wind energy.
The CPPA has a term of 15 years, starting
in the second half of 2026. With the CPPA,
Fraport converts parts of the power supply
at its home base Frankfurt Airport to green.

Operating concession at Antalya site
extended until 2051

The concession covers the operation

of the terminals and other landside infra-
structure, including retail space, the parking
management and passenger screening.
The operational period under the new
contract will begin in early 2027 after the
expiration of the existing concession and
will be 25 years.
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To Our Shareholders

Dsir %#/V//A

the second pandemic year in a row is over. A year in which we continued to prepare your company for the future and at the end
of which we were back in the black. But now we are once again facing troubling times, the impact of which on air traffic is difficult
to assess at present. My sympathy at this time is with the Ukrainians who have had to endure such great suffering.

Before we turn our attention to the current fiscal year, let us first summarize the past fiscal year. At the beginning of the year 2021,
the impact of the global travel restrictions on the traffic development of our Group

airports lasted longer than had been initially expected. During Easter, very few peo- Our airports in Greece and

ple were able to travel to warmer destinations or visit their friends and Antalya nearly reached pre-
acquaintances. It was only in the summer months when the situation changed,  crjsis levels during the sum-
leading to a noticeable increase in passenger numbers in Frankfurt. Our airports in
Greece and Antalya, Turkey, nearly reached pre-crisis levels during the summer
months. And the traffic volume fell only slightly during the fourth wave of infections in the fall of last year. In November, the United
States finally opened its borders to vaccinated travelers from Europe. Based on all of this, we find that our expectations have
ultimately been confirmed: with almost 25 million passengers in Frankfurt, we ended 2021 at the higher end of our passenger
forecast.

mer months.

In addition to our international airport portfolio, the development of freight was also very positive. We achieved a historic record in
Frankfurt in this area, despite the lack of additional loading capacities on passenger aircraft. This is proof that, despite the current
challenges, Frankfurt is the leading freight hub in Europe.

The increase in traffic volume, especially in the summer months, had a correspondingly positive effect on the financial figures and
led to a 27.8% increase in revenue to €2.1 billion. We were once again able to greatly reduce operating expenses, resulting in a
positive Group EBITDA of €757.0 million. After recording a loss of around €690 million in 2020, we are pleased to report a positive
Group result of €91.8 million. The positive earnings figures are also supported in part by compensation payments and government
subsidies. In particular, the compensation granted by the German federal government and the state of Hesse for the holding costs
incurred for keeping Frankfurt Airport open during the first lockdown in 2020 in the amount of around €160 million and the
compensation in Greece in the form of reduced fixed and variable concession charges of around €93 million led to an increase in
other operating income.

Despite the positive results, we have not yet reached the pre-crisis level from 2019 and must therefore continue to work to keep
your company in economic balance. Through the “Zukunft FRA — Relaunch 50” program, we achieved a headcount reduction of
around 4,000 jobs in Frankfurt by mid-2021 while still maintaining our social responsibility, and this helped relieve the burden on
our personnel expenses. Now we are concentrating on becoming faster, more efficient, and thus more competitive by optimizing
processes and through organizational changes. At the same time, we continue to implement strict cost management and reduce
any unnecessary capital expenditure. Programs to reduce costs have also been successfully introduced in the foreign Group
companies.

In addition to the immediate impact of the pandemic, our focus is on the future viability of your company. We made great progress
in this area in the past fiscal year. In Ljubljana, we were able to inaugurate the new passenger terminal in the middle of the year.
In order to further exploit the growth opportunities in the South American market, we opened a new international cargo center at
Porto Alegre Airport and completed the contractually planned extension measures at the two Brazilian airports. In Lima, on the
other hand, we are still in the midst of expanding the airport. We expect to open the new runway there towards the end of this
year. And we plan to inaugurate the new terminal in 2025. Towards the end of last year, we won, together with our partner TAV,
the operating concession for the Antalya site until 2051. The new concession in Antalya will have a positive effect in the long term,
since the international business contributes significantly to the positive development of your Group result.
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At the Frankfurt site, the construction of Terminal 3 is continuing on an adjusted schedule. The shell construction of the terminal
has now been largely completed, and the interior work on Pier G is also well on its way. We are currently planning to open Pier G
together with the other gates of Terminal 3 in 2026.

As | pointed out in my letter last year, the German Federal Police have officially contracted us with the implementation, planning,
and control of the airport security checks in Frankfurt from 2023. Even after Fraport takes over operations, the acting Federal
Ministry will remain responsible for all issues relating to aviation security. However, Fraport will be responsible for procuring
security equipment as well as calculating and collecting airport security fees at the site and will thus be able to decide more flexibly
which devices are used or how many employees are placed per security lane and at what times. As a result, we will once again
clearly increase the quality of handling even during high traffic volumes.

Climate protection is another topic for the future that is particularly important to us. Therefore, despite the ongoing crisis, we have
once again adjusted our targets: We seek to be emissions-free by 2045 at the latest, and this will exclude compensation once
targets are a;hie:;ad. XVe areI welllon our w?y to ensurintc;;I that our electrri]cit:/ con- We want to be CO-free by
sumption at Frankfurt Airport largely comes from renewable energies in the future:

P P gey - energie . 2045 at the latest.
we have been purchasing electricity from existing onshore wind turbines since July
2021. Another important step is the contract concluded with the energy supplier EnBW to purchase electricity from the new
“He Dreiht” wind farm in the German North Sea from 2026. In addition, we are investing in our own photovoltaic power generation
in Frankfurt as well as in measures to improve energy efficiency and consistently reduce our consumption.

Taking a look at the current year, we initially expect lower passenger traffic dynamics in the first few months as a result of the
spread of the omicron virus variant. By around Easter and Pentecost we expect a noticeable wave of travel and in the summer
again strong holiday traffic — clearly above the previous year. Overall, we expect to count between 55 and 65 percent of the
passenger numbers of 2019 in Frankfurt this year — depending on how the coronavirus pandemic and the war in Ukraine develop.
At the Group’s international airports, we once again anticipate a more dynamic recovery in passenger traffic. At our Greek airports,
which are dominated by tourism, we already expect to reach over 80% of the pre-crisis level. In Latin America, we also expect
a faster recovery than in Frankfurt.
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The positive traffic forecasts will also have a correspondingly positive impact on the earnings figures.

In view of the continuing challenging environment, however, we will not submit a proposal for the appropriation of profit to the
Annual General Meeting this year in order to retain the positive Group result and to ensure your company maintains its stable
position. In the medium term, we plan to reintroduce the original dividend policy — a pay-out ratio of 40 to 60% of your profit share
and at least a stable dividend.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to our employees in the Fraport Group — also on behalf of the entire
Executive Board. With your perseverance and strong commitment to the company, you have made it possible for all passengers,
customers, and business partners to have a “Gute Reise” during another pandemic year.

| would also like to thank you, dear shareholders, for your trust over the past year! We are looking forward to a time when we can

all enjoy personal encounters and journeys across continents increase once again, and to continuing to shape the future of your
company.

Sincerely yours,

///b LU

Stefan Schulte
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The Fraport Executive Board

Dr. Pierre Dominique Priimm
Executive Director

Aviation and Infrastructure
Born in 1973

Appointed until

June 30, 2024
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Dr. Stefan Schulte
Chairman of the
Executive Board
Born in 1960
Appointed until
August 31, 2024

Anke Giesen
Executive Director
Retail and Real Estate
Born in 1963
Appointed until
December 31, 2022
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Michael Miiller
Executive Director
Labor Relations
Bornin 1957
Appointed until
September 30, 2022
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Report of the Supervisory Board

j@az /4;.,; /oz/{4/,

The coronavirus pandemic once again shaped global events during the year under review. Now, at the end of February 2022,
Russian troops invaded Ukraine in violation of international law. Our concern and our sympathy go out to the people affected by
this. We must do everything in our power to bring this unimaginable suffering to an immediate end. The toughest sanctions in
post-war history are therefore unavoidable. How this war, the sanctions imposed as a result, and any countermeasures will affect
the economic situation, air traffic, and Fraport cannot yet be assessed conclusively.

In the second year of the pandemic, the aim was to vaccinate the entire population and cope with the economic impact of the
measures to combat the pandemic. The aviation industry was also particularly hard hit in 2021. Although traffic volume increased
compared with the previous year, overall it remains clearly below pre-pandemic levels. Contact and travel restrictions also affected
demand in the year under review. It was only from November 2021 that passengers from Europe were able to enter the United
States once again. Despite all of this, there was still a need for people to travel. Wherever the conditions of the pandemic allowed
it, especially at the tourist destinations in the eastern Mediterranean area during the summer months, the demand for flights was
only slightly below the values of the years before the crisis. This strengthens our confidence that the long-term development of
the industry will remain unaffected. At the end of the year, the Omicron variant once again presented us with challenges. Everyone
in society, politics, and the economy will have to act flexibly for some time to combat the virus effectively and cope with the effects
of the pandemic.

After a challenging year in 2020, Fraport AG was on the path to recovery in the year under review. The number of passengers at
international Group airports and at the Frankfurt site grew compared to the previous year. Air freight traffic at Frankfurt Airport
even reached peak levels. In the past fiscal year, Fraport AG was able to achieve a positive annual result. The company
succeeded in winning the tender with its current consortium partner to operate Antalya Airport, Turkey, until 2051. Without the
commitment and confidence of the employees in the management of the company, none of this could have been achieved.
For this, we would like to express our special thanks to all our employees for their efforts.
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The Supervisory Board performed all the tasks incumbent on it under law, the company statutes, and rules of internal procedure,
and continuously monitored the management of the company in fiscal year 2021. The Supervisory Board regularly obtained timely
and comprehensive information from the Executive Board, in writing and orally, on the proposed business policies, fundamental
questions concerning future management and corporate planning, the situation and development of the company and the Group
as well as significant business transactions and consulted with the Executive Board on these matters. Deviations in the business
development from the planning were explained in detail to the Supervisory Board. Based on the reports of the Executive Board,
the Supervisory Board extensively discussed significant business transactions of the company. The Supervisory Board harmo-
nized the strategic alignment of the company with the Executive Board. In addition, the Chairman of the Executive Board
maintained regular contact with the Chairman of the Supervisory Board and informed him about the current developments
concerning the business situation as well as substantial business transactions. The Supervisory Board was directly involved in all
decisions of fundamental importance to the company. Where required by law, the company statutes, or rules of procedure, the
Supervisory Board voted on the relevant proposals made by the Executive Board after having thoroughly examined and consulted
on those matters.

During the reporting period, the Supervisory Board convened eight meetings, thereof one strategy session. In addition, an
information event on ground handling services was held in fiscal year 2021.

Focal points of discussions of the Supervisory Board

The business development of the Fraport Group and Group companies, with an emphasis on the traffic and revenue development
at Frankfurt Airport and the impact of the coronavirus pandemic on business development in air traffic, were the subject of regular
discussions by the Supervisory Board in the 2021 fiscal year.

The Supervisory Board also covered the progress in the expansion to the south of the Frankfurt site on an ongoing basis. The
management of the Group company Fraport Ausbau Sid GmbH regularly took part in the advisory meetings of the investment
and capital expenditure committee of the Supervisory Board.

Apart from this regular reporting, the following matters were extensively discussed in 2021, in particular:

e The coronavirus pandemic and its impact on air traffic at the Frankfurt site as well as at the international Group airports
were once again the main focus of discussions. The Supervisory Board was informed extensively and in a timely manner
about the developments and measures. These included continued strict control of capital expenditure and non-staff
expenses as well as the reduction of personnel expenses through short-time work schedules and the “Zukunft FRA —
Relaunch 50” program.

e Another focus of the reporting was the expansion of capacities in the southern part of Frankfurt Airport. The Supervisory
Board dealt intensively with whether continuing the expansion remained cost-effective. Progress in the construction
of Terminal 3 (including Pier G) and its traffic connection to the remaining infrastructure have been the subject of
in-depth discussions at all meetings. The inauguration of the terminal facilities, scheduled for 2026, is proceeding
according to plan.

e The company’s liquidity requirements and the securing of the liquidity required for further expansion were dealt with on
a recurring basis. The creation of authorized and conditional capital was also discussed and recommended to the Annual
General Meeting.

e The Supervisory Board discussed the economic situation and the development of Ground Services.

e The Supervisory Board has been informed about the respective state of play of the take-over of management responsi-
bility in the area of security controls at Frankfurt Airport.

e The Supervisory Board discussed the measures necessary to implement the requirements of the German Act to
Strengthen Financial Market Stability (FISG) and the German Act on the Implementation of the Second Shareholders’
Rights Directive (ARUG Il) and passed the necessary resolutions.

¢ In addition, the Supervisory Board dealt with the financial statements and management reports of the company and the
Group as of December 31, 2020, as well as the Annual Report 2020 and reached the necessary decisions on their
approval and adoption.

13
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Furthermore, the Supervisory Board made specific decisions on the following subjects, among others:

e On March 15, 2021, the Supervisory Board adopted the agenda for the ordinary Annual General Meeting (AGM) on
June 1, 2021. Furthermore, the Supervisory Board again decided to propose to the AGM that PricewaterhouseCoopers
GmbH Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft (PwC), Frankfurt am Main, be appointed as the auditor for fiscal year 2021.

e At its special meeting on April 8, 2021, the Supervisory Board decided to recommend to the Annual General Meeting
establishing Authorized Capital Il in the amount of up to €458,843,520.00 and Conditional Capital of up to
€120,209,310.00. At this special meeting, an updated agenda for the Annual General Meeting was then adopted.

e At another special meeting on May 18, 2021, the Supervisory Board approved the application for reimbursement of the
holding costs by the Federal Republic of Germany and the state of Hessen, and the Executive Board's waiver of the LTIP
tranche 2020 required for this purpose.

e Atits meeting on June 21, 2021, the Supervisory Board extended the contract with Prof. Dr. Zieschang as a member of
the Executive Board for an additional three years and ten months until January 31, 2026, with effect from April 1, 2022.

e At the meeting on September 10, 2021, the status of the expansion project at Lima Airport and the financing of this
measure were discussed and approved.
e As part of its strategy session in mid-September 2021, the Supervisory Board dealt with the climate protection goals of

Fraport AG, the underlying strategy, and the measures intended to implement the same. It discussed the corporate
strategy pursued with regard to digitization.

e The Supervisory Board discussed participating in the tender for the 25-year concession to operate Antalya Airport in
Turkey at its special meeting of November 26, 2021. It also issued its approval on this matter.

e Given the ongoing coronavirus pandemic, the Supervisory Board agreed on December 16, 2021 to once again hold the
Annual General Meeting on May 24, 2022 online pursuant to Section 1 of the German Act on Measures under the
Laws relating to Companies, Cooperative Societies, Associations, Foundations, and Commonhold Property to Combat
the Effects of the COVID-19 Pandemic (COVID-19 Act). Article 15 of the Act on the Establishment of a Special Fund
“Development Aid 2021” and on the temporary suspension of the obligation to file for insolvency due to heavy rainfall
and flooding in July 2021 and the amendments to other laws of September 10, 2021 (Federal Law Gazette | No. 63
2021, p. 4153) extended the validity of the COVID-19 Act until August 31, 2022.

e On March 15, June 21 and December 16, 2021, the Supervisory Board discussed the company’s capital requirements
and agreed to increase the financing framework and approved further borrowings through loans, bonds, or other debt
instruments.

e On December 16, 2021, the Supervisory Board approved the 2022 Business Plan.

Work of the committees

The Supervisory Board continued its successful work with the committees it had formed to increase efficiency and to prepare for
the Supervisory Board meetings. In individual appropriate cases and in accordance with law, decision-making powers of the
Supervisory Board were granted to the committees. The chairpersons of the committees provided regular reports at the next
Supervisory Board meeting to the plenum of the Supervisory Board on the work of the committees. The composition and respon-
sibilities of the individual committees can be found in the “Joint Statement on Corporate Governance” chapter as well as on the
Group’s website at www.fraport.com/en/investors/corporate-governance.html.

The finance and audit committee met six times during the reporting period and discussed substantial business transactions, the
annual and consolidated financial statements, and the management reports. Representatives of the auditor participated in the
meetings on individual agenda items. The finance and audit committee prepared the determination of the focal points of the 2021
fiscal year audit of accounts for the Supervisory Board. The interim report and the interim releases were discussed in detail prior
to their publication. Comments were also made on the 2022 Business Plan of Fraport AG (prepared in accordance with the
German Commercial Code, HGB) and the 2022 Group Plan (prepared in accordance with IFRS). Furthermore, the committee
dealt with the awarding of the audit mandate to the auditor and made proposals to the plenum on the election of the auditor for
fiscal year 2021 and the invitation to tender for the auditing services starting with the audit of the 2023 fiscal year. As in previous
years, the quality of the audit of accounts monitored, and the remuneration of the same discussed. Furthermore, the issue of
mandates for non-audit-related services to the auditor was discussed. After the cyclical change of the auditor for fiscal year 2013,
it was proposed to the plenum again to recommend PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft, Frankfurt
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am Main, to the AGM as auditor for fiscal year 2021. Furthermore, with regard to the review of CSR reporting, the recommendation
of the Supervisory Board was in favor of this auditing company.

Further focal points of the discussions were asset and liability management as well as the regular supplementary reports to the
consolidated financial statements and/or the consolidated interim reports in accordance with Section 90 of the German Stock
Corporation Act (AktG). In addition, the committee discussed the risk management, the internal control system, the internal audit
system, as well as the compliance management system in detail and ensured that the Supervisory Board was appropriately
informed.

The discussions at the five meetings of the investment and capital expenditure committee in the 2021 fiscal year focused on
the economic development of the investment business and the expansion measures in Germany and at foreign Group companies.

A particular focus was once again on the expansion in the southern part of Frankfurt Airport, which was intensively discussed at
all committee meetings in the presence of the management of the responsible Group company Fraport Ausbau Sid GmbH, also
with a view to the discussions by the Supervisory Board.

The subject of a special meeting of the investment and capital expenditure committee was the discussion on the submission of a
binding offer for the concession to operate Antalya Airport, Turkey. The Supervisory Board was recommended to approve the
submission of an offer together with the Turkish partner TAV.

The committee regularly dealt with the economic situation of the Group companies at the Frankfurt site and worldwide. In this
context, the committee recommended to the Supervisory Board the subsequent approval of the disposal of a majority stake in
FraSec Luftsicherheit GmbH. The committee worked intensively on the planning of capital expenditure in the context of the 2022
Business Plan.

At its four meetings in the 2021 fiscal year, the human resources committee regularly discussed the personnel situation in the
Group, which continued to be impacted by the effects of the coronavirus pandemic. At the Frankfurt site, the focus was on the
topics of short-time work, the status of the voluntary program for staff reductions within the framework of the “Zukunft FRA —
Relaunch 50” program, and the development of personnel expenses and remuneration.

The development of the ratio of women in top management as well as the development of a competence model for these functions
were another focus of discussion.

The executive committee met five times during the reporting period. It dealt with Executive Board matters and remuneration
issues arising in the 2021 fiscal year as well as the succession planning for the Board.

In fiscal year 2021, it was not necessary to convene the nomination committee formed in preparation for the election of new
shareholder representatives or the mediation committee to be formed in accordance with the provisions of Section 27 of the
German Co-Determination Act.

Training and education

The training and education measures required for the tasks of the members of the Supervisory Board are carried out inde-
pendently. The new members of the Supervisory Board were also adequately supported upon their appointment in 2021, and the
company continued its willingness to support the training and education measures for Supervisory Board members.
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Meeting attendance
In 2021, the members of the Supervisory Board attended meetings of the Supervisory Board and of the committees of which they
are members as follows:

e The Chairman of the Supervisory Board, Minister Michael Boddenberg, participated in all Supervisory Board meetings
(including the strategy session) and all meetings of the executive committee. No meetings of the nomination committee
or mediation committee were held.

e The Vice-Chairwoman of the Supervisory Board, Ms. Claudia Amier, attended each Supervisory Board meeting
(including the strategy session), four out of five meetings of the executive committee and four of six meetings of the
finance and audit committee. No meetings of the mediation committee were held.

e Mr. Devrim Arslan attended all Supervisory Board meetings (including the strategy session) and all meetings of the
executive committee and the human resources committee.

e Mr. Uwe Becker attended five of the eight Supervisory Board meetings, four of the five meetings of the executive
committee and three of the five meetings of the investment and capital expenditure committee. No meetings of the
nomination committee were held.

e Mr. Hakan Boélikmese attended all Supervisory Board meetings (including the strategy session) and all meetings of
the human resources committee and the investment and capital expenditure committee.

e Mr. Hakan Cicek attended all Supervisory Board meetings (including the strategy session) and all meetings of the
finance and audit committee.

e Since succeeding Ms. Kother on July 1, 2021, Ms. Yvonne Dunkelmann participated as an elected substitute
member in all four meetings (including the strategy session) that took place after she joined the Supervisory Board.
After her election as a member of the investment and capital expenditure committee, she attended each meeting of
that committee.

e Mayor Peter Feldmann attended four of eight Supervisory Board meetings.
e Mr. Peter Gerber attended six of eight Supervisory Board meetings (including the strategy session).

e Dr. Margarete Haase attended seven of eight Supervisory Board meetings (including the strategy session) and all
meetings of the executive committee and the finance and audit committee. No meetings of the nomination committee
were held.

e  Mr. Frank-Peter Kaufmann attended all Supervisory Board meetings (including the strategy session) and all meetings
of the executive committee, the human resources committee, and the investment and capital expenditure committee.

e Dr. Ulrich Kipper participated in all Supervisory Board meetings (including the strategy session) and all meetings of the
finance and audit committee.

e Mr. Lothar Klemm attended all Supervisory Board meetings (including the strategy session) and all meetings of the
finance and audit committee as well as the investment and capital expenditure committee. No meetings of the
mediation committee were held.

e Ms. Birgit Kother attended all four Supervisory Board meetings and all meetings of the investment and capital
expenditure committee that were held before she retired from her position on June 30, 2021.

e Ms. Mira Neumaier attended all the meetings of the Supervisory Board (including the strategy session) and, after her
election as a member of the investment and capital expenditure committee attended four of the five meetings of that
committee.

e  Mr. Michael Odenwald attended all Supervisory Board meetings (including the strategy session), three of four meetings
of the human resources committee and each meeting of the finance and audit committee.

e Mr. Matthias Péschko attended each meeting of the Supervisory Board (including the strategy session), and after his
appointment to the executive committee he attended all four remaining meetings of that committee, as well as all four
meetings of the investment and capital expenditure committee held after his election as a member of that committee.
No meetings of the mediation committee were held.

e Mr. Qadeer Rana attended all Supervisory Board meetings (including the strategy session) and all meetings of the
human resources committee and the finance and audit committee.
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e Mr. Mathias Venema attended each meeting of the Supervisory Board (including the strategy session) and all
meetings of the human resources and executive committees. No meetings of the mediation committee were held.

e Ms. Sonja Warntges attended seven of eight Supervisory Board meetings (including the strategy session) and all
meetings of the human resources committee and the finance and audit committee.

e  Prof. Dr.-Ing. Katja Windt attended all Supervisory Board meetings (including the strategy session), two of four
meetings of the human resources committee, and four of five meetings of the investment and capital expenditure
committee.

Corporate Governance and statements of compliance
The Executive Board and the Supervisory Board also addressed the implementation of the German Corporate Governance Code
(GCGQ) in the past fiscal year.

In this context, the Supervisory Board has also continued its regular efficiency audit. In the year under review, this self-assessment
was carried out on the basis of and as an update of the results obtained in 2020, which were discussed in depth at the September
meeting. The discussion focused on the digitization of the committee’s work and the corresponding access to information.

Further details on Corporate Governance and the wording of the current statement of compliance pursuant to Section 161 of the
AktG, released by the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board on December 16, 2021, are provided in the “Joint Statement
on Corporate Governance”. The current and past statements of compliance can also be found on the Group’s website at
www.fraport.com/en/investors/corporate-governance.html.

Conflicts of interest and their treatment
There were no conflicts of interest between the supervisory boards and the executive boards in the 2021 fiscal year.

Audit of annual and consolidated financial statements as well as remuneration report

PwC audited the annual financial statements of Fraport AG and the consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2021,
as well as the combined management report, and issued an unqualified auditor’s report for each. The audit mandate was issued
by the chairpersons of the Supervisory Board in accordance with the resolution of the Annual General Meeting of June 1, 2021.

The separate financial statements and the combined management report were prepared in accordance with the regulations of the
HGB applicable to large capital companies; the consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with IFRS as
applicable in the EU. Furthermore, the German legal regulations to be applied in addition to Section 315e (1) of the HGB in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the combined management report were applied. The separate financial
statements, consolidated financial statements, and the combined management report were audited by the auditor. The consoli-
dated financial statements and the combined management report meet the conditions for exemption from the preparation of
consolidated financial statements in accordance with German commercial law. The auditor established that an early risk warning
system that meets the legal requirements and which makes it possible to identify developments at an early stage that could
jeopardize the company as a going concern, was in place.

The documents mentioned as well as the proposal by the Executive Board for the utilization of the profit earmarked for distribution
have been sent to the Supervisory Board by the Executive Board without delay. The finance and audit committee of the Supervi-
sory Board examined these documents extensively and the Supervisory Board also reviewed them personally. In this context, the
adjustments required by way of extended supplementary reporting as a result of the war in Ukraine were also discussed and
examined. The audit reports of PwC and the financial statements were available to all members of the Supervisory Board and
were comprehensively dealt with in the accounting meeting of the Supervisory Board on March 14, 2022, in the presence of the
auditor, who reported on the significant results of its audit and was available to respond to additional questions and provide further
information. In the meeting, the chairwoman of the finance and audit committee provided a comprehensive report on the treatment
of the annual financial statements and the consolidated financial statements in the finance and audit committee. A focal point of
this reporting was the key audit matters described in the auditor’'s report. The Supervisory Board approved the results of the
annual audit. After the completion of the audit by the finance and audit committee and its own review, the Supervisory Board did
not raise any objections. The Supervisory Board approved the financial statements prepared by the Executive Board; the annual
financial statements were thus adopted.
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The profit for the 2021 fiscal year amounted to €38.3 million. In view of the fact that Fraport, as an airport operator, was particularly
affected by the consequences of the coronavirus pandemic, the Executive Board of Fraport AG proposed to waive the distribution
of a dividend for the 2021 fiscal year. After an in-depth assessment and, in particular, taking into account the interests of the
company and the shareholders, the Supervisory Board has endorsed this proposal.

The report prepared by the Executive Board on the relationships of Fraport AG with affiliated companies pursuant to Section 312
of the AktG (dependency report) for the period from January 1 to December 31, 2021, was submitted to the Supervisory Board.
The report concludes with the following statement of the Executive Board, which is also included in the combined management
report:

“The Executive Board declares that under the circumstances known to us at the time, Fraport AG received fair and adequate
compensation for each and every legal transaction conducted. During the reporting year, measures were neither taken nor omitted
at the request of or in the interests of the State of Hesse and the City of Frankfurt am Main and their affiliated companies.”

The auditor reviewed the report on the relationships with affiliated companies and issued the following auditor’s report:
“Based on our mandatory audit and the conclusions reached, we confirm that

1. the effective disclosures made in the report are correct,

2. the consideration paid by the company for the legal transactions referred to in the report was not unreasonably high.”

The auditor participated in the discussions with the Supervisory Board on March 14, 2022, on the report regarding the relationships
with affiliated companies and was available to the Supervisory Board to provide additional information. After the final result of the
audit of the dependency report, no objections were made to the declaration of the Executive Board at the end of the report, which
was also included in the combined management report. The results of the audit of the dependent company report by the auditor
are approved.

PwC was also commissioned to review the content of the Remuneration Report of Fraport AG as at December 31, 2021 as
prepared by the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board. In addition to the formal examination required by law in accordance
with Section 162 (1) and (2) AktG, the content of the Remuneration Report was also reviewed. Based on the substantive audit,
the auditor was able to form an opinion on this with reasonable assurance and confirmed in the context of the audit report that the
Remuneration Report complies with the provisions of Section 162 AktG in all material respects. The audit report is attached to the
Remuneration Report.

Audit of the non-financial statement

The Supervisory Board is also responsible for auditing the content of the combined non-financial statement. As part of the prepa-
ration for this audit, the auditor PwC was commissioned to prepare a voluntary audit of the combined non-financial statement with
limited assurance. The finance and audit committee of the Supervisory Board examined the combined non-financial statement
extensively and it was also reviewed by the Supervisory Board.

At the accounting meeting of the Supervisory Board on March 14, 2022, the auditor, in addition to the results of its audit of the
financial reporting, also reported on the significant results of its audit of the combined non-financial statement and, in this regard,
was available for additional questions and information.

Ultimately, it was determined that the combined non-financial statement is correct and complies with the requirements under
German commercial law.
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Personnel particulars
In the year under review, there were a number of changes to the Supervisory Board.

e Ms. Birgit Kother resigned from the Supervisory Board effective June 30, 2021. She was succeeded by Ms. Yvonne
Dunkelmann. Ms. Dunkelmann also succeeded Ms. Kother in the investment and capital expenditure committee as duly
appointed by the Supervisory Board.

e On January 1, 2021, Mr. Matthias P&schko was elected to replace Mr. Detlev Drath, who had left his position on the
Board at the end of 2020. Mr. Péschko was elected as a member of the executive committee and the investment and
capital expenditure committee.

e Ms. Mira Neumaier was appointed by the court on March 4, 2021, to replace Ms. Katharina Wesenick, who had resigned
at the end of 2020. She was elected as a member of the investment and capital expenditure committee, in which she
holds the position as chairwoman.

On February 11, 2022, Fraport AG was notified of the decision of the German Federal Labor Court of February 2, 2022 in which
the Federal Labor Court rejected the appeal against denial of leave to appeal concerning the decision of Regional Labor Court of
the State of Hesse on the challenge to the election of employee representatives to the Supervisory Board of Fraport AG. Thus,
the decision of Regional Labor Court of the State of Hesse on the challenge to the election of employee representatives to the
Supervisory Board of Fraport AG, including the substitute members elected for them, by the delegates on May 23, 2018, became
legally binding. Consequently, the election has been declared invalid by a court. Ms. Mira Neumaier, who was appointed as an
employee representative to the Supervisory Board by decision of the District Court of Frankfurt am Main on March 4, 2021, is not
affected by the invalidity of the election and remains a member of the Supervisory Board. In order to ensure quorum and to restore
as quickly as possible the number of employee representatives on the Supervisory Board as required by law and the company’s
statutes, including the statutory equal composition of the Supervisory Board, the Executive Board immediately applied for a judicial
(replacement) appointment for the employee representatives who had left the Supervisory Board. For the judicial (replacement)
appointment, stakeholders’ opinions (including trade unions, the Group Works Council, Fraport Works Council, Fraport Spokes-
person’s Committee, FraGround Works Council), and declarations of consent were obtained both from the previous employee
representatives and from the new candidates nominated by the trade unions in their place. The trade union komba, which is
normally represented by Ms. Yvonne Dunkelmann, appointed Ms. Ramona Lindner in place of Ms. Dunkelmann, as requested.
The Executive Board has taken this request into account, also in order to avoid conflicting applications to the court and the
resulting delays.

On February 16, 2022, the Amtsgericht Frankfurt/Main appointed:

Ms. Claudia Amier, Mr. Devrim Arslan, Mr. Hakan Boélikmese, Mr. Hakan Cicek, Dr. Ulrich Kipper, Ms. Ramona Lindner,
Mr. Matthias Péschko, Mr. Qadeer Rana und Mr. Mathias Venema

as employee representatives to the Supervisory Board in accordance with the appeal, for a limited term until the beginning of the
next regular term of office of the new employee representatives to be elected in 2023.

In addition to co-determination considerations, the appeal and the judicial (replacement) appointment also took into account
and complied with the requirements of stock corporation law for the proportion of women on a supervisory board.

Frankfurt/Main, March 14, 2022

) /Z//,c\/\___,,

Minister Michael Boddenberg
(Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
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Joint Statement on Corporate Governance

The Fraport AG Executive Board reports — in the name of the Supervisory Board as well — on the contents subject to the reporting
requirements pursuant to Section 289f of the German Commercial Code (HGB) for Fraport AG as well as for the Fraport Group
(Fraport AG and fully consolidated Group companies, hereinafter referred to as “Fraport”) as part of a joint statement on corporate
governance pursuant to Sections 315d and 289f of the HGB in conjunction with Section 289f of the HGB, in order to enable a
general statement on the Group's corporate governance principles. In this context, the Executive Board and Supervisory Board
report in accordance with Principle 22 of the German Corporate Governance Code in its amended version from December
16, 2019, as published on March 20, 2020, (hereinafter: GCGC) on the corporate governance of the company.

The term “corporate governance” at Fraport means responsible corporate management and monitoring. The objectives of corpo-
rate governance at Fraport are long-term economic enhancement and creating as well as strengthening confidence among
investors, customers, employees, and the public. Good corporate governance therefore has the highest priority at Fraport. In this
context, efficient collaboration between the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board is as important as protecting shareholders’
interests and maintaining open and transparent corporate communications. Fraport monitors the national and international devel-
opments in this area and regularly reviews its own corporate practices in connection with new legal regulations and revised
national and international standards, and modifies it to meet these as required.

In accordance with Section 317 (2) sentence 6 of the HGB, the following information pursuant to Sections 289f (2) and (5) and
315d of the HGB has been included by the auditor in the audit of the annual financial statements only to the extent that the auditor
verified whether the information was actually given.

Statement of compliance pursuant to Section 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG)

As a publicly listed corporation headquartered in Germany, corporate governance at Fraport AG primarily orients itself to German
stock corporation law, capital market law, and the suggestions and recommendations of the GCGC as amended. The GCGC is a
major legal regulation for the management and supervision of German publicly listed companies and contains internationally and
nationally recognized standards of good and responsible corporate governance in the form of principles, recommendations, and
suggestions. There is no obligation to implement the suggestions and recommendations of the GCGC. However, under Section
161 of the AktG the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board are obliged to issue a statement of compliance and to report and
justify any deviations from the recommendations of the GCGC.

Statement of compliance of December 16, 2021
The Executive Board and the Supervisory Board last issued the following statement of compliance under Section 161 of the AktG
on December 16, 2021:

“Since the last statement of compliance was issued on December 17, 2020, Fraport AG has complied with and will continue to
comply with the recommendations by the Government Commission on the German Corporate Governance Code in the amended
version of December 16, 2019 (GCGC) published by the Federal Ministry of Justice and Consumer Protection in the official section
of the Federal Gazette.”

The statement of compliance was promptly made permanently available to the shareholders on the company’s website at
www.fraport.com/en/investors/corporate-governance.html.

GCGC recommendations
Fraport AG also voluntarily complies with the recommendations of the GCGC.
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Disclosures on other corporate management practices

Beyond the statutory provisions, Fraport utilizes the following corporate management practices:

Compliance
Ensuring the integrity of all employees worldwide is of great importance to Fraport. Compliance is a key prerequisite for the future
viability of the company.

The Code of Conduct for Employees that applies worldwide to the Fraport Group reflects the culture of values practiced at Fraport
and stipulates the requirement to act responsibly when dealing with the economic, legal, and moral challenges of everyday busi-
ness.

There are several ways for employees and customers around the world to report potential compliance breaches securely and in
confidence. The information received is carefully and conscientiously evaluated and examined. Compliance breaches are
systematically penalized, and any grievances are remedied.

Fraport employees are regularly informed on the topic of compliance through various internal channels and undergo training
courses. The Code of Conduct for Employees and the Compliance Guidelines in place at the Fraport Group are available to the
employees on the corresponding information platforms.

In its Supplier Code of Conduct, Fraport describes the requirements and principles for cooperation with contractors, suppliers,
and service providers. The contractually agreed Supplier Code of Conduct obliges them to comply with the applicable national
laws and the relevant internationally recognized standards, guidelines, and principles, as also stipulated in the Code of Conduct
for Employees.

The Compliance Management System (CMS) at Fraport is a systematic tool for ensuring legal and compliant behavior within the
Group. The objective of the CMS is to ensure corporate management based on values and with integrity that goes beyond the
mere fulfillment of standards.

The responsibility for the CMS lies with the management of each respective Group company; the Executive Board is responsible
for the CMS of Fraport AG. It has assigned the Head of the Legal Affairs and Compliance central unit as Chief Compliance Officer
to develop, organize, and operate Fraport AG’s Compliance Management System.

Responsible corporate governance

Fraport is a community and partnership-oriented corporation. Fraport aims to remain competitive at all sites and in all operational
units and thereby secure jobs with fair and just working conditions. Fraport offers good working conditions based on collective
bargaining agreements, professional and personal development options, and a highly developed corporate ethic. Although the
coronavirus pandemic once again forced the need for short-time work schedules in the second year of the pandemic in order to
continue to keep the company profitable and competitive under changing market conditions, Fraport’s objective remains to provide
high job security for all employees. Holistic, integrated health and safety at the workplace is also an essential part of the overall
corporate responsibility of Fraport, especially when facing the coronavirus pandemic. Comprehensive protective measures have
been taken at both the Frankfurt site and the Group airports.

The Fraport Group is also committed to maintaining a sustainable, conserving, and preventive approach to natural resources and
the environment. Ambitious CO- targets for 2030 have been agreed for both Fraport AG and the Fraport Group. The declared
goal for Fraport AG and the Fraport Group is to be climate neutral by 2045.

Fraport AG’s funding concept for its community, cultural, and social engagement is “Active for the Region”. It primarily serves to
boost clubs and support volunteer work in the region around Frankfurt Airport. However, in 2021 and presumably in the years to
come, the effects of the coronavirus pandemic have again forced Fraport AG to reduce expenses that are not directly related to
its core business.
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Structure and functioning of the Executive Board and Supervisory Board

For Fraport, a responsible and transparent corporate management and monitoring structure is the cornerstone for creating value
and trust. In accordance with the statutory provisions, Fraport AG is subject to a “dual governance system,” which is achieved by
the strict separation of personnel in the management and monitoring bodies (two-tier board). The Executive Board manages
Fraport AG; the Supervisory Board monitors the Executive Board. The members of the Executive Board and the Supervisory
Board work closely together in the interest of the company.

Executive Board

The Executive Board of Fraport AG is comprised of the following five members: Dr. Stefan Schulte (Chair), Anke Giesen, Michael
Mdiller, Dr. Pierre Dominique Primm, and Prof. Dr. Matthias Zieschang. As the management body, it conducts the business of the
company. The Executive Board is bound by the company’s interests and corporate sociopolitical principles within the framework
of stock corporation law. In addition, its work is based on the rules of procedure, which have been approved by the Supervisory
Board. The schedule of responsibilities for the Executive Board, which governs the allocation of responsibilities, is also attached
to the rules of procedure as an annex.

On this basis, the Executive Board reports to the Supervisory Board on all relevant matters of business development, corporate
strategy, and possible risks in a regular, timely, and comprehensive manner. In addition, the Executive Board must have the prior
approval of the Supervisory Board for certain material matters, particularly for capital expenditure and equity investment measures
above a value of €10 million, to the extent that this is not provided for in a business plan approved by the Supervisory Board. The
length of the appointment of the Executive Board members is geared toward the long term and has thus far been five years as a
standard. Deviating from this standard, at its meeting on June 21, 2021, the Supervisory Board extended the appointment of
Prof. Dr. Zieschang as a member of the Management Board for a further three years and ten months until January 31, 2026, with
effect from April 1, 2022. The age limit for members of the Executive Board has, in principle, been set at 65. Remuneration of the
Executive Board comprises fixed and performance-related components. The Remuneration Report for fiscal year 2021, the audi-
tor's report pursuant to Section 162 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) and the applicable remuneration system for the
Executive Board are published at www.fraport.com/publications.

The Executive Board usually meets weekly and constitutes a quorum if at least half of its members participate in the meeting.
Resolutions are adopted by a simple majority of all the participating members of the Executive Board. In the case of a tie vote,
the chair holds the casting vote.

Further information on the members of the Executive Board as well as their memberships to be disclosed in accordance
with Section 285 (10) of the German Commercial Code (HGB) and information on the respective areas of responsibility can be
found in the Group Notes, note 55. CVs of the members of the Executive Board are available on the company’s website under
Executive Board (fraport.com).

Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board of Fraport AG supervises the activities of the Executive Board. It is composed of an equal number of
representatives of shareholders and employees and comprises 20 members. The ten shareholder representatives are elected by
the AGM, and the ten employee representatives are elected by the employees in accordance with the provisions of the German
Co-Determination Act (MitbestG) for five years. The Supervisory Board has created rules of procedure, under which it has a
quorum if — on the basis of a proper notice of meeting — at least half of its members participate in the voting in person or through
submission of written votes. Resolutions are adopted with a simple majority unless otherwise mandated by law. In the event of a
tie vote, the chair of the Supervisory Board, who must be a shareholder representative, is entitled to a second vote. Beyond this,
the rules of procedure regulate, in particular, the creation and powers of committees of the Supervisory Board.

The Supervisory Board generally meets four times a year (in 2021: eight meetings, including a strategy session) and regularly
reviews the efficiency of its activities. In the year under review, this self-assessment was carried out on the basis of and as an
update of the results obtained in 2020, which were discussed in depth at the September meeting. The discussion focused on the
digitization of the committee’s work and the corresponding access to information.
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In the report of the Supervisory Board, the Supervisory Board summarizes its activities of the past fiscal year on an annual basis.
The report of the Supervisory Board for the fiscal year 2021 can be found in the Annual Report 2021. The Remuneration Report
for the financial year 2021, the auditor's report pursuant to § 162 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG), the current
compensation system of the Supervisory Board and the last remuneration resolution pursuant to Section 113 (3) AktG are
published at www.fraport.com/publications.

At the time of publication of this joint statement on corporate governance, the Supervisory Board was composed as follows:

Composition of the Supervisory Board

Representatives of the shareholders

Michael Boddenberg (Chair)

(Member of Supervisory Board since 26.05.2020)

Uwe Becker

(Member of Supervisory Board since 31.05.2013)

Peter Feldmann

(Member of Supervisory Board since 03.09.2012)

Peter Gerber

(Member of Supervisory Board 30.05.2014)
Dr. Margarete Haase

(Member of Supervisory Board 01.01.2011)
Frank-Peter Kaufmann

(Member of Supervisory Board 30.05.2014)
Lothar Klemm

(Member of Supervisory Board 10.05.1999)
Michael Odenwald

(Member of Supervisory Board 11.12.2012)
Sonja Warntges

(Member of Supervisory Board 16.10.2020)
Prof. Dr.-Ing. Katja Windt

(Member of Supervisory Board 11.05.2012)

Representatives of the employees

Claudia Amier (Vice Chair)

(Member of Supervisory Board since 31.05.2013 until 10.02.2022 and since 16.02.2022)
Devrim Arslan

(Member of Supervisory Board since 31.05.2013 until 10.02.2022 and since 16.02.2022)
Hakan Bolikmese

(Member of Supervisory Board since 29.05.2018 until 10.02.2022 and since 16.02.2022)
Hakan Cicek

(Member of Supervisory Board since 31.05.2013 until 10.02.2022 and since 16.02.2022)
Dr. Ulrich Kipper

(Member of Supervisory Board since 29.05.2018 until 10.02.2022 and since 16.02.2022)
Ramona Lindner

(Member of Supervisory Board since 16.02.2022)

Mira Neumaier

(Member of Supervisory Board since 04.03.2021)

Matthias Péschko

(Member of Supervisory Board since 01.01.2021 until 10.02.2022 and since 16.02.2022)
Qadeer Rana

(Member of Supervisory Board since 29.05.2018 until 10.02.2022 and since 16.02.2022)
Mathias Venema

(Member of Supervisory Board since 01.07.2020 until 10.02.2022 and since 16.02.2022)

In the course of a legally binding challenge to the elections of employee representatives on the Supervisory Board, the elected
members left the Supervisory Board on February 10, 2022. Until the resolution on the challenge became final, the persons whose
election was contested remained full members of the Supervisory Board. Ms. Mira Neumaier, who was appointed as an employee
representative to the Supervisory Board by decision of the Register Court of the District Court of Frankfurt am Main on
March 4, 2021, is not affected by the challenge and remains a member of the Supervisory Board. By decision of February 16, 2022,
the Register Court of the Amtsgericht Frankfurt/Main, ordered a judicial replacement appointment for the departed members of
the Supervisory Board at the request of the Executive Board. Since then, the Supervisory Board has again been composed of 20
members. In addition to co-determination considerations, the appeal and the judicial (replacement) appointment also took into
account and complied with the requirements of stock corporation law for the proportion of women on a supervisory board. In the
period from July 1, 2021 to February 10, 2022, Ms. Yvonne Dunkelmann was a member of the Supervisory Board as an employee
representative. By means of the court appointment of February 16, 2022, Ms. Ramona Lindner succeeded her as employee
representative on the Supervisory Board.

Further information on the members of the Supervisory Board as well as their memberships to be disclosed in accordance with
Section 285 (10) of the German Commercial Code (HGB) can be found in the Group Notes, note 56. CVs of the members of the
Supervisory Board are available on the company’s website under Supervisory Board & Economic Advisory (fraport.com).

Committees of the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board has formed the following committees based on the statutory provisions and the provisions of its rules of
procedure. The following table provides an overview of the tasks, regulated number of meetings, the actual number of meetings
in the past fiscal year, the planned number of members, and the actual number of members as at the date of publication of this
statement.
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Committees of the Supervisory Board

Fraport Annual Report 2021

Committee

Finance and audit committee

Investment and capital
expenditure committee

Human resources committee

Executive committee

Committee in accordance
with Section 27 of the Mit-
bestG (Mediation committee)

Nomination committee

Functions

> Preparation of resolutions in the area of finance and
audit-related resolutions

> Addressing in particular

> the audit of accounts

> the supervision of the accounting process

> the effectiveness of the internal control system,

the risk management system, the internal audit system,

the audit of accounts, and compliance

> Statement of opinion

> on the business plan and plan changes that require approv-
al, on the annual and consolidated financial statements, on
the Executive Board recommendation for the appropriation
of profits, on the combined management report, on the
com-bined non-financial statement, on the audit report of
the auditor of the financial statements and of other auditors,
on the Supervisory Board’s recommendation for the audit
report, and on the discharge of the Executive Board

> on the awarding of the audit mandate to the auditor, the
fee agreement and the stipulation of the focus of the audit

> The finance and audit committee is responsible for the
auditor selection process

> It monitors the independence of the auditor and the quality
of the audit of accounts. In this regard, it provides its advance
consent to all of the auditor’s legitimate non-audit services.

> Preparation of resolutions relating to capital expenditure,
resolutions or decisions concerning the founding, acquisition,
and sale of Group companies and ongoing monitoring of the
economic development of existing Group companies

> Final decision on the creation, acquisition, or sale of direct
or indirect Group companies if the obligation or entitlement
of the company arises from a capital expenditure or an in-
vest-ment-related action between €10,000,000.01 and
€30,000,000

> Final decision on the acquisition or disposal of,

or charge on property or land rights between €5,000,000.01
and €10,000,000

> Statement of opinion on the capital expenditure plan and
on capital expenditure reporting

> Preparation of resolutions in the area of human resources
> Statement of opinion, in particular on changes in
headcount, fundamental issues relating to collective
bargain-ing law, the payment system, the employee
investment plan, matters concerning the company
retirement plan

> Preparations for the appointment of members of the
Execu-tive Board and the conditions of employment
contracts, including remuneration

> Final decision concerning outside activities of members
of the Executive Board that require the approval of the
Super-visory Board

> Preparation of a recommendation on the appointment or
dismissal of members of the Executive Board if the entire
Supervisory Board does not reach such decision

> Recommendation of suitable candidates to the Supervisory
Board for its recommendations to the AGM

Regular
number of
meetings

As needed

As needed

As needed

Meetings
2021

Regular
number of
members

Members

Dr. Margarete Haase (Chair)
Claudia Amier (Vice-Chair)
Hakan Cicek

Dr. Ulrich Kipper

Lothar Klemm

Michael Odenwald

Qadeer Rana

Sonja Warntges

Lothar Klemm (Chair)

Mira Neumaier (Vice-Chair)
Uwe Becker

Hakan Boliikmese
Frank-Peter Kaufmann
Ramona Lindner

Matthias Péschko

Prof. Dr. Katja Windt

Mathias Venema (Chair)

Frank-Peter Kaufmann (Vice-Chair)

Devrim Arslan

Hakan Boliikmese
Michael Odenwald
Qadeer Rana

Sonja Warntges

Prof. Dr. Katja Windt
Chairman of the
Supervisory Board
Michael Boddenberg (ex officio)
Vice Chairman

Claudia Amier (ex officio)
Devrim Arslan

Uwe Becker

Dr. Margarete Haase
Frank-Peter Kaufmann
Matthias Péschko
Mathias Venema
Chairman of the
Supervisory Board
Michael Boddenberg

(ex officio)

Vice Chairman of the
Supervisory Board
Claudia Amier (ex officio)
Lothar Klemm

Mathias Venema
Michael Boddenberg (ex officio)
Uwe Becker

Dr. Margarete Haase
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Shareholders and AGM

The shareholders of Fraport AG exercise their rights at the AGM where they exercise their right to a voice and a vote. The
shareholders are informed of business developments in the past year and the company’s forecasts included in the combined
management report with sufficient time prior to the meeting. During the year, the shareholders are provided with comprehensive
and timely information about current business developments through interim reports and other company publications on the com-
pany website.

The AGM is held within the first eight months of every fiscal year and makes decisions concerning the tasks assigned to it by law,
such as the appropriation of profits, election and approval of the actions of the members of the Supervisory Board and approval
of the actions of the Executive Board, the selection of the auditor, amendments to the company statutes, and other tasks. The
shareholders can either exercise their right to vote in person or can authorize third parties to exercise their right to vote. The
Executive Board is authorized to ensure that shareholders may cast their votes in writing or by electronic communication (mail-in
ballot). Each share entitles its holder to one vote in the voting.

The German Act Concerning Measures Under the Law of Companies, Cooperative Societies, Associations, Foundations and
Commonhold Property to Combat the Effects of the coronavirus pandemic, which entered into effect on March 28, 2020 to combat
the effects of the pandemic and was amended by Article 11 of the Act on the Further Shortening of the Residual Debt Exemption
Procedure and on the Adaptation of Pandemic-Related Regulations in Society, Cooperative, Association and Foundation Law as
well as in Tenancy and Lease Law of December 22, 2020 (Federal Law Gazette | No. 67 2020, p. 3332), opened up the possibility,
as in 2020, of holding annual general meetings in 2021 without the physical presence of shareholders or their representatives
(virtual general meeting). The Executive Board of Fraport AG made use of this opportunity in 2021 with the consent of the Super-
visory Board. Article 15 of the Act on the Establishment of a Special Fund “Development Aid 2021” and on the temporary
suspension of the obligation to file for insolvency due to heavy rainfall and flooding in July 2021 and the amendments to other
laws of September 10, 2021 (Federal Law Gazette | No. 63 2021, p. 4153) extended its validity until August 31, 2022, according
to which ordinary annual general meetings can also be held online in 2022 without the physical presence of shareholders or their
representatives.

Defining targets for the proportion of women on the Supervisory Board, Executive Board, and the two lev-
els below the Executive Board

According to the German Stock Corporation Act as amended by the Second Management Positions Act (FUPoG Il), Fraport AG,
as a listed company to which the Co-Determination Act applies and whose Executive Board consists of more than three persons,
must have at least one woman and at least one man as a member of the Executive Board (minimum participation requirement).
In the year under review, Fraport AG complied with this requirement.

The targets for the proportion of women at the two levels below the Executive Board as well as the deadlines for reaching these
targets must be determined based on this law.

The targets for the proportion of women on the Supervisory Board of Fraport AG does not need to be determined, since there is
already a fixed gender ratio for the Supervisory Board, as is the case at Fraport AG, according to Section 96 (2) AktG.

Targets for the Executive Board

If the minimum participation requirement applies to the Executive Board, the obligation to set targets for the Executive Board
ceases to apply in accordance with the provisions of the German Stock Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz) as amended by the
FiUPoG II.

The Supervisory Board set a target of 25% for the proportion of women on the Fraport AG Executive Board at its meeting of
September 18, 2015, and this target remained even after the obligation to set targets for the Executive Board had been eliminated.
This target should have been reached by June 30, 2017. As the Executive Board has been extended by one member and thus
has consisted of one female and four male members as of July 1, 2019, this target is currently being missed. In view of the
expected profound change in the aviation market and the associated major changes in traffic and terminal usage structures, the
Supervisory Board considered it appropriate for the Executive Board to expand the responsibilities by the Executive Director
“Aviation and Infrastructure” including the “Airside and Terminal Management, Corporate Safety and Security” strategic business
unit (now called “Aviation”) as well as the “Corporate Infrastructure Management” central unit and to appoint an internal expert.
Nonetheless, the target remains in effect as regards future decisions on appointments to the Executive Board.
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Targets for the first and second management levels below the Executive Board
The Executive Board sets the targets for the proportion of women at the two levels below the Executive Board in accordance with
Section 76 (4) of the AktG and Principle 3 of the GCGC.

At the turn of the year 2016/2017, the Executive Board set a target of 30.0% for the proportion of women in the first management
level below the Executive Board (“direct reports”) and a target of 30.0% for the proportion of women for the subordinate manage-
ment level (“direct reports” to the first management level) as at December 31, 2021, for Fraport AG. As at the balance sheet date
for 2021, the actual proportion of women in the first management level amounted to approximately 22.7% and 27.5% in the second
management level.

For the period from January 1, 2022, to December 31, 2026, the Executive Board set a target of 31.8% for the proportion of
women in the first management level below the Executive Board (“direct reports”) and a target of 30.9% for the proportion of
women for the subordinate management level (“direct reports” to the first management level). Regarding Group companies in
Germany, the Executive Board set a target of 30.8% for the proportion of women in the first management level below the Executive
Board (“direct reports”) and a target of 30.2% for the proportion of women for the subordinate management level (“direct reports”
to the first management level) for the same period.

Gender ratio on the Supervisory Board

After the “Act on Equal Participation of Women and Men in Management Positions in the Private and Public Sector” came into
force on May 1, 2015, the statutory gender ratios of a minimum of 30% women and 30% men on the Supervisory Board must be
complied with (Section 96 (2) of the AktG, Principle 11 of the GCGC) as part of the new elections and postings to Fraport’s
Supervisory Board that became necessary from January 1, 2016.

In this respect, the Supervisory Board decided at its meeting of September 18, 2015, that these ratios are to be met separately
for shareholders and for employees. This requirement was fulfilled in the new elections of the Supervisory Board in 2018 as well
as the subsequent court orders and the special elections to the Supervisory Board in 2020 and 2021. The Supervisory Board
currently comprises three female and seven male shareholder representatives and three female and seven male employee
representatives.

Targets for the composition of the Supervisory Board; diversity concept for the Supervisory Board and
Executive Board as well as the succession planning for the Executive Board

On June 27, 2016, in accordance with Recommendation C.1 of the GCGC and Section 289f (2) Nr. 6 of the HGB, the Supervisory
Board adopted its specific targets for its composition as well as a competency profile for the overall board. The targets for the
composition of the Supervisory Board and the competency profile for the overall board (including the diversity concept) are as
follows:

“The objective is that the Supervisory Board should be composed in such a way that it ensures the competent control and support
of the company’s Executive Board by the Supervisory Board. It should be taken into account that the Supervisory Board as a
collective body has the overall knowledge, skills, and professional experience required to properly perform its tasks. It cannot be
expected that each individual member of the Supervisory Board possesses the required knowledge and experience to the fullest
extent; however, there should be at least one competent member of the Board for each aspect of the Supervisory Board’s activities
to ensure that the Board's members together represent a comprehensive range of knowledge and experience. These should
include, inter alia, an understanding of the relevant market environment, financial and commercial experience, and a strong re-
gional connection.

In addition, each member of the Supervisory Board should be expected to have a certain level of essential general knowledge
and experience that is appropriate to the nature, extent, and complexity of the business activities, and the risk structure of an
international company such as Fraport AG.
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In adherence to the age limits set by the Supervisory Board, which is set as 72 years of age at the time of election or reelection,
candidates should be put forward who are able to perform the duties of a member of a supervisory board of an international
company and safeguard the reputation of Fraport AG through their integrity, motivation, availability, and personality. The principles
of diversity and the proportion of women and men based on the statutory provisions should be taken into account when nominating
candidates for the Board. In addition, the Supervisory Board should have at least three independent members.”

Concerning the extent to which this policy has been implemented, it can be stated that the current Supervisory Board, whose
members offer a wide range of economic, political, and corporate expertise, has the knowledge, skills, and experience required
to properly perform its duties. The objectives for the composition of the Supervisory Board and the competence profile for the
overall Supervisory Board (including the diversity concept) were taken into account in the special election to the Supervisory Board
in 2021.

In addition, the Supervisory Board has both a sufficient number of members with international experience and an adequate number
of members with a strong regional connection, as some of them hold seats in local and regional governments.

With regard to further diversity, the Supervisory Board had already updated the target it established in the 2015 fiscal year — as
mentioned above — for the proportion of women on the Board: “The Supervisory Board shall be composed of at least 30% women
and 30% men, and this ratio is to be met separately for shareholder representatives and for employee representatives.”

In line with this objective, the Supervisory Board has comprised three female and seven male shareholder representatives and
three female and seven male employee representatives since the 2018 Annual General Meeting and the special election to the
Supervisory Board at the 2020 Annual General Meeting.

The supervisory board members Dr. Margarete Haase, who is chairwoman of the finance and audit committee, and Ms. Sonja
Warntges both have expertise in the areas of accounting and auditing, which fulfills the requirement in Section 100 (5) of AktG
that states at least two members of the Supervisory Board and the finance and audit committee must have such expertise. The
Supervisory Board of Fraport AG thus meets the requirements of the Act on the Strengthening of Financial Market Integrity (FISG)
with regard to the requirement of Supervisory Board members with expertise in the areas of accounting and auditing.

For shareholders, the Supervisory Board should include what they consider to be an appropriate number of independent members;
the ownership structure should be taken into account (see Recommendation C.6 GCGC). The Supervisory Board decided that
the board should include at least three independent shareholder representatives. Regarding this objective, the Supervisory Board
had as its members Dr. Margarete Haase, Dr. Katja Windt, and Ms. Sonja Warntges, which means that it has reached its goal of
having three shareholder representatives independent of the company, the Executive Board, and the controlling shareholder. In
addition, Fraport AG also complies with Recommendations C.7 and C.9 of the GCGC, according to which more than half of the
shareholder representatives must be independent of the company and the Executive Board and at least two of the shareholder
representatives must be independent of the controlling shareholder. It should also be noted that both the Chair of the Supervisory
Board as well as the Chair of the audit committee, and the Chair of the executive committee are considered to be independent
within the meaning of Recommendation C.10 of the GCGC.

In the future, the nomination committee and the Supervisory Board will also adequately take into account this objective for the
composition of the Supervisory Board when presenting candidates for election to the Supervisory Board at the Annual General
Meeting.

The Supervisory Board also takes diversity into account regarding the composition of the Executive Board (Recommendation
B.1 of the GCGC). Given the identified qualifications of its members, the Supervisory Board does not yet pursue a diversity concept
for the Executive Board.

The Supervisory Board, along with the Executive Board and based on the preparatory work by the executive committee, ensures
the long-term succession planning of the Executive Board. In addition to the requirements of the German Stock Corporation Act
and the German Corporate Governance Code, long-term succession planning takes into account the target set by the Supervisory
Board for the proportion of women on the Executive Board as well as other diversity criteria. Taking into account the specific
qualification requirements, the structure of the Executive Board (including the division of portfolios), and the aforementioned per-
sonnel criteria, the executive committee develops an ideal profile on the basis of which it draws up a shortlist of available
candidates. Structured discussions are held with these candidates. A recommendation for a resolution is then submitted to the
Supervisory Board.
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Further information

Remuneration of the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board

The essential features of the remuneration system as well as the disclosures on the remuneration of the Executive Board and the
Supervisory Board for the 2021 fiscal year can be found in the remuneration report. The remuneration report was subject to a
formal and substantive audit by the auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft. The remuneration
report is published as a separate document at www.fraport.com/publications.

Acquisition or disposal of company shares (directors’ dealings)
Pursuant to Section 19 of the Market Abuse Regulation (MAR), board members and other managers (directors) and persons
closely related thereto are legally obliged to disclose the acquisition or disposal of shares of Fraport AG or any financial instru-
ments related thereto, if the value of the transactions undertaken exceeds the sum of €20,000 within one calendar year. The
notifications in this respect are immediately disclosed by Fraport AG.

Shareholdings of the bodies
The total shareholdings of all members of the Executive Board and Supervisory Board are less than 1% of the total number of
shares issued by Fraport AG.

Risk and opportunity management

For Fraport, corporate governance also means handling corporate risks and opportunities responsibly. For this reason, Fraport
has introduced a comprehensive Group-wide risk and opportunity management system. The structure of the risk and opportunity
management system and a report on key risks and corporate opportunities are presented in detail by the Executive Board in the
combined management report for the fiscal year. Depending on their importance for the company, changes to key risks or signif-
icant opportunities opening up during the year are published either in an ad hoc disclosure or as part of the financial reporting
during the year.

The early risk recognition system is also part of the annual audit by the auditor. The effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management system, and of the internal auditing system as well as the audit of accounts is monitored by the Supervisory Board.
At Fraport, the finance and audit committee of the Fraport AG Supervisory Board performs this task in accordance with Section
107 (3) of the AktG.

Accounting and audit of accounts

Fraport prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
applicable in the European Union, and the additional applicable requirements of German commercial law pursuant to Section
315e (1) of the HGB. A combined management report is prepared in accordance with Section 315 (5) of the HGB. The annual
financial statements of Fraport AG are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the HGB. Further information on the
accounting principles is available in the notes to the respective financial statements. The annual and consolidated financial
statements are published within 90 days of the end of the fiscal year.

The annual and consolidated financial statements and the combined management report of Fraport are audited by an auditor in
accordance with Section 316 of the HGB. On the basis of the AGM’s resolution, in fiscal year 2020 this was Pricewaterhouse-
Coopers GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft (hereinafter referred to as PwC), which is thus auditing Fraport for the eighth
consecutive year. Prior to the submission of the nomination, the Supervisory Board and its audit committee obtained a declaration
of independence from PwC. The audit of the consolidated financial statements and the combined management report was carried
out in accordance with Section 317 of the HGB and the EU Audit Regulation (No. 537/2014, hereinafter referred to as “EU Audit
Regulation”) and in compliance with German Generally Accepted Standards for Financial Statement Audits promulgated by the
Institut der Wirtschaftsprufer [Institute of Public Auditors in Germany] (IDW). It was agreed with the auditor that it will immediately
inform the Fraport AG Supervisory Board of possible grounds for disqualification or partiality if these are not remedied at once.
The auditor shall also immediately report on all findings and incidents arising during the audit of the consolidated financial state-
ments and the combined management report which are significant for the tasks of the Supervisory Board. In addition, the auditor
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must inform the Supervisory Board and record in the audit report if it finds facts that reveal an inaccuracy in the statement of
compliance submitted by the Executive Board and Supervisory Board in accordance with Section 161 of the AktG while performing
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and the combined management report.

During the year, the auditor also participated in discussions with the finance and audit committee regarding the Group interim
financial statements and meetings with the Fraport AG Supervisory Board regarding the annual and consolidated financial
statements.

Disclosure of the joint statement on corporate governance and corporate governance report
The Executive Board disclosed the joint statement on corporate governance on March 14, 2022, at
www.fraport.com/en/investors/corporate-governance.html.
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Impact of the Coronavirus Pandemic on the Fraport Group

The Fraport Group’s operating performance continued to be affected by the impact of the coronavirus pandemic in fiscal year
2021. Compared to the same period in the previous year, traffic in Frankfurt and at the Group’s international airports benefited
from the economic recovery, particularly in the third quarter. Passenger numbers in Frankfurt increased by 32.2% to 24.8 million
passengers compared to the previous year, in which the first months of that year had not yet been fully burdened by the corona-
virus pandemic. Compared to the pre-crisis level of 2019, however, passenger numbers remained significantly lower at —-64.8%.
The Group’s international airports, in particular the tourist-oriented destinations in Turkey and Greece, predominantly showed
clear passenger growth compared to the previous year. Compared to the pre-crisis level in 2019, the Group airports nevertheless
recorded significant declines.

While passenger numbers throughout the Group continued to be strongly influenced by the coronavirus pandemic, freight volumes
in Frankfurt reached a new high of around 2.3 million metric tons. The Frankfurt site thus continues to prove it is the leading freight
hub in Europe.

In order to reduce costs at the Frankfurt site in the long term and continue to align Fraport with the changing market environment,
the strategic program “Zukunft FRA — Relaunch 50” launched in 2020 was continued in 2021. As a result of the headcount
reduction program initiated, the number of total employees in the Fraport Group at the Frankfurt site as at December 31, 2021 fell
by 4,348 compared to December 31, 2019. In addition, the short-time work schedules that commenced in 2020 were extended
for parts of the employees.

In view of the ongoing coronavirus pandemic, an emergency collective agreement was reached at the end of 2020 for the period
2021 to 2023 for the German airports bound by the Collective Agreement for the Public Service (TVOD), which Fraport AG and
the Group companies FraCares GmbH and FraGround GmbH have also joined. The emergency collective agreement is an im-
portant building block for further stabilizing the companies and reducing costs to the extent necessary. The agreement included
postponing wage increases, the elimination of collectively agreed performance-based pay, an increased employee contribution to
the company pension scheme, and the option of reducing working hours without wage compensation. For Fraport AG, taking into
account the staff reductions implemented, it was decided to forego the reduction in working hours and instead implement a more
flexible working time arrangement in the operational areas, in which work assignments can be canceled on low-traffic days and
reclaimed on busy days.

In addition, strict cost management was continued in the 2021 fiscal year and material expenses strictly not operationally neces-
sary were eliminated, while planned capital expenditure was reduced or temporarily postponed. Parts of the infrastructure
remained closed, especially in the first half of the year. In total, operating expenses at the Frankfurt site in the 2021 fiscal year
were thus reduced by around 30% compared to 2019. Savings in operating expenses and measures such as short-time work,
reduced working hours, and company leave were also continued at the international Group companies in accordance with local
legislation. Also, Group companies with seasonal traffic particularly benefited from flexible cost structures. This meant that fully
consolidated international Group companies were able to realize savings on staff and non-staff costs of more than 38% compared
to 2019.

The German Federal Government and the State of Hesse granted compensation for the holding costs at Frankfurt Airport incurred
during the first lockdown in 2020 totaling €159.8 million, which had a positive effect on Group EBITDA and thus also on the liquidity
situation and net financial debt.

In the past fiscal year, the Group companies also benefited from the negotiations started last year with the responsible authorities
and government agencies regarding state aid for losses due to the coronavirus pandemic. The Greek government granted Fraport
Greece compensation by waiving the fixed concession payments and granting a later start date for the variable concession fee,
which is also to be paid, had a positive effect on other operating income in 2021 totaling €92.8 million. In addition, the waiver of
fixed minimum lease payments at Fraport USA in the amount of €35.2 million, the compensation claims made by the two Brazilian
Group companies in the amount of €26.5 million, as well as the compensation for the airport closure in 2020 and reimbursement
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of fixed costs at the Group company Fraport Slovenija in the amount of €6.6 million had a positive effect on other operating income.
Discussions on further compensation measures at individual Group companies are currently ongoing.

In order to further expand the Group’s liquidity and create additional financial flexibility, extensive financing measures were
completed in fiscal year 2021. In total, Fraport raised around €3.1 billion in debt financing measures, taking into account both
long-term and short-term financing instruments and secured credit lines.

Information about Reporting

This report summarizes the management reports of the Fraport Group and Fraport AG (Combined Management Report). The
comments on the Fraport Group also apply to Fraport AG. Developments in the asset, financial, and earnings position of Fraport
AG can be found in the “Supplementary Management Report on the Separate Financial Statements of Fraport AG” chapter.

The non-financial statement is an integral part of the Combined Management Report in accordance with Sections 315b and 315¢
in conjunction with the Sections 289b to 289e of the German Commercial Code (HGB) and has been extended to comply with the
requirements of Regulation (EU) 2020/852 of the European Parliament and of the European Council of June 18, 2020 on the
establishment of a framework for facilitating sustainable investment and amending the Regulation (EU) 2019/2088. This can be
found in the "Combined non-financial statement” chapter.

Group accounting takes account of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in force on the reporting date (Decem-
ber 31, 2021) and the interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) as adopted in the European Union
(EU). In addition, Fraport reports the information pursuant to Section 315e (1) HGB.

In order to better represent the operating performance year-on-year, revenue is also reported in the Consolidated management
report for order revenue from construction and expansion services in accordance with IFRIC 12 (referred to below as: Revenue
adjusted for IFRIC 12). These relate to the capacitive capital expenditure in connection with service concession agreements at
Group international airports (see also Group Notes, note 4 and note 49).

Reporting for 2020 was extended to include the key performance indicator “EBITDA before special items”. EBITDA before special
items is adjusted for personnel expenses from the creation of provisions for the “Zukunft FRA — Relaunch 50” program at Fraport
AG as well as corresponding measures taken by individual Group companies at the Frankfurt site and amounts overall to
€299.0 million. This key performance indicator provided transparency and allowed for a better assessment of the Fraport Group’s
operational performance in 2020. The table below shows a reconciliation of the key performance indicator as at Decem-
ber 31, 2020. The financial figures for fiscal year 2021 were not influenced by special items for the “Zukunft FRA — Relaunch 50”
program.

Reconciliation EBITDA before special items

€ million 2020 Special items 2020
Revenue before special items 1,677.0
Other internal work capitalized 37.9
Other operating income 81.8
Total revenue 1,796.7
Cost of materials —688.6
Personnel expenses before special items -913.1 -299.0
Other operating expenses -146.6
EBITDA before special items 48.4
Total amount of reconciliation —-299.0 —299.0
EBITDA —-250.6

An overview of the calculation of financial key figures and a description of specialist terms are presented in the “Glossary” chapter.
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There were no substantial changes in the companies included in consolidation nor any other substantial increases or reductions
in shareholdings in the reporting year. The companies included in consolidation and the disclosures of shareholding pursuant to
Section 313 (2) of the HGB are to be found in the Group notes.

The Executive Board approved the combined management report and the consolidated financial statements report for publication
on February 25, 2022 / March 14, 2022. The Supervisory Board gave its approval on March 14, 2022.

Overview of Business Development

Situation of the Group

e The targeted headcount reduction of 4,000 positions was reached under the strategic “Zukunft FRA - Relaunch 50”
program. The program continues to focus on implementing a significant and sustainable cost reduction and the
strategic alignment of the company to the changed market environment

o Material expenses strictly not operationally necessary are being eliminated in the Fraport Group and the planned
capital expenditure reduced or temporarily postponed

e Measures such as short-time work schedules, reduced working hours and company leave were also introduced,
in accordance with local legislation, including in foreign Group airports

Economic Report

P IIII /I
1.9bn ¢ 757.0mne 313.7mne

Revenue adjusted for IFRIC 12 EBITDA EBIT
(2020: 1.5 bn €) (2020 EBITDA before special items: 48.4 mn €) (2020: — 708.1 mn €)
91.8mne 0.90¢ 6.4 bn ¢
Group result Earnings per share Net financial dept
(2020: -690.4 mn €) (2020: —7.12 €) (2020: 5.5 bn €)
L4 o
— o

s
23.1% -/72.3mne 3.4+

Shareholder’s equity ratio Free cash flow ROFRA
(2020:25.7 %) (2020: — 1.4 bn €) (2020: - 8.3 %)

" EBITDA before special items adjusts for personnel expenses from the "Zukunft FRA - Relaunch 50" program at Fraport AG and expenses for personnel
management measures at other Group companies at the Frankfurt site.
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e Clear increase in passenger numbers in Frankfurt by 32.2%, to 24.8 million
e  Freight volume in Frankfurt at a new record high of around 2.3 million metric tons
e  The majority of the Group’s international airports recorded passenger growth, ranging from 31.2% to over 100%
e Key financial figures improve significantly compared to the previous year’s level, also due to one-off effects,
but remain heavily influenced by the traffic slump caused by the coronavirus pandemic

Outlook Report

e Passenger development still dependent on the course of the coronavirus pandemic and new developments in the
Ukraine war®

e Passenger numbers in Frankfurt expected for the full year 2022 in the range of 55% to 65% of the figures from 2019;
at the international Group airports more dynamic growth expected than in Frankfurt

o Positive effects on financial figures expected for 2022 in passenger development

e Free cash flow still in negative territory approximately at the previous year’s level and clear increase in
net financial debt

o ROFRA forecasted to be slightly below to slightly above 2021 level®

e Existentially threatening developments highly unlikely

2 Added retrospectively on March 14, 2022.



Fraport Annual Report 2021 Combined Management Report / Situation of the Group 35

Situation of the Group
Business Model

The following section provides an overview of the Fraport Group’s business model and the economically most important Group
sites as well as their competitive positions.

A leading international airport group

Fraport Group (hereinafter also referred to as: Fraport) is among the leading global airport groups with its international portfolio.
Fraport provides all operational and administrative services for airport and terminal operation as well as other associated services.
Planning and consulting services are also included in the range of services. Passenger traffic, which impacts on a majority of the
services the Group provides, is key to the Group’s revenue and earnings performance.

The Fraport Group is divided into four segments: Aviation, Retail & Real Estate, Ground Handling, and International Activities &
Services. Its main site is the Frankfurt Airport, the largest airport in Germany and one of the most important passenger and freight
airports in the world. Fraport AG Airport Services Worldwide (abbreviated Fraport AG) is the owner of Frankfurt Airport. Fraport’s
strength lies in integrated airport management, which guarantees comprehensive know-how in all airport services.

The Aviation segment covers the operation of landside and airside infrastructure at the Frankfurt site and thus covers
*( the area of airport charges, which is legally regulated in Germany, and the relevant security services. Regulated airport

charges consist of passenger, landing, and takeoff fees, security fees and parking fees. This segment is responsible
for ensuring safe, efficient, and customer-oriented processes in the flight operating areas and terminals as well as the operational
implementation of airport and air safety tasks in compliance with legal requirements. The close cooperation with authorities, in-
cluding the Hessian air traffic authority and the German Federal Police, is of great importance to ensure smooth operation of the
airside and landside processes.

A The Retail & Real Estate segment is primarily responsible for the retail activities and the marketing of real estate and
'ﬁ land at Frankfurt Airport. Its activities extend from the management of buildings and facilities through to the

E management and development of the parking and retail areas and the renting of advertising space. The focus is on
greater use of online retail offers and sales channels and on further development of the freight infrastructure and areas.

The Ground Handling segment consists of loading, baggage, and passenger services, airmail and luggage transport,
and freight handling at the Frankfurt Airport. The segment ensures the quality of Frankfurt Airport’s role as a hub,
characterized by complex transfer processes. The segment also includes the provision of corporate infrastructure, in
particular the baggage transfer system. Usage fees for the corporate infrastructure are regulated.

The International Activities & Services segment includes the acquisition, operation, maintenance, development, and
@' expansion of airports and infrastructure facilities abroad. This also includes consulting services, including in the
“Operational Readiness and Airport Transfer” (ORAT) section. In addition, it covers the service areas segment for
Fraport AG, which provides the central services for the Fraport Group.
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Key sites

Fraport Group airports

Continent Site Airport Company Share in % Term
Germany Frankfurt Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Services Worldwide 100 1924 no time limits
Slovenia Ljubljana Fraport Slovenija, d.o.o. 100 2014 |no time limits
Europe Fraport Regional Airports of Greece A S.A. 73.4 2017 2057
Greece 14 Airports Fraport Regional Airports of Greece B S.A. 73.4 2017 2057

(below collectively referred to as Fraport Greece)
Varna . . 60 2006 2041
~——————— Fraport Twin Star Airport Management AD

Bulgaria Burgas 60 2006 2041
Russia St. Petersburg Northern Capital Gateway LLC/Thalita Trading Ltd. 25 2010 2040
Fortaleza Fraport Brasil S.A. Aeroporto de Fortaleza 100 2017 2047
South America Brazil Porto Alegre Fraport Brasil S.A. Aeroporto de Porto Alegre 100 2017 2042
Peru Lima Lima Airport Partners S.R.L. 80.01 2001 2041"
T e 3 05 am
Asia China Xi'an Xi’an Xianyang International Airport Co., Ltd. 24.5 2008 no time limits
India Delhi Delhi International Airport Private Ltd. 10 2006 2036"

" Extension option.
? Dividend share: 50%, share of voting rights: 51%; from 2027 Fraport TAV Antalya Yatirim, Yapim ve Isletme A.S., dividend share: 50%, share of voting rights: 49%.

In addition to the aforementioned airports, Fraport operates retail areas through its Group company Fraport USA at the airports in
Baltimore, Cleveland, Pittsburgh, Nashville, and at JetBlue Airways Terminal 5 at JFK Airport in New York, as well as the
management of retail space in Terminal B at Newark Airport in New Jersey.

International business activities accounted for 81.6% of the Group result. Germany accounted for 18.4%

Split of the Group result

in %

18.4

Germany

81.6

International
Activities

External influences

The main external factors influencing Fraport’s business model in Germany and abroad include disruptive events, such as extreme
weather conditions or pandemics such as the ongoing coronavirus pandemic in 2021, in addition to economic, (socio-)political,
and regulatory factors. These influencing factors can affect passenger and freight demand as well as the offer of aircraft
movements and seats at the Group’s airports. These external factors also influence the purchasing behavior of passengers at the
airports and so directly affect the economic situation of the Fraport Group (see also the “Risk and Opportunities Report” chapter).
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Economic growth fosters a demand for air travel and also promotes the prosperity of a society as a whole, which is a prerequisite
for private and business travel. Currency rates are closely linked to economic development as well as to the interest rate policies
of central banks and international currency trading. These also affect the appeal of tourist destinations, travel flows, and
passengers’ booking behavior as well as their buying behavior in the retail area. In addition, exchange rates play an important
role in the financial contribution of individual foreign Group companies, for local currencies are converted into the currency of the
Group, the euro.

Growing inflation rates across the globe due to high energy prices as well as supply bottlenecks and excess demand reduce
purchasing power and can have a negative impact on demand for air transport services as prices for air travel and air freight rise.
This remains true even if growth in air freight can temporarily benefit from rising tariffs due to scarce sea transport capacities.
A key interest rate hike by central banks to combat inflation, in turn, may lead to an economic slowdown, which can have a
dampening effect on air traffic demand.

Price fluctuations on the commodities market, in particular, the price of crude oil and thus the price of jet fuel, can influence
the frequency of travel in the aviation sector. Depending on the market situation, increasing crude oil prices usually translate to a
rise in ticket prices and can dampen demand in the aviation sector. This can result in payment difficulties for financially weaker
airlines when faced with intense competition, and lead to a reduction in offers.

Politics affect Fraport’'s business at the regional, national, and international levels. Restrictions on operations, such as bans on
night flights and anti-noise measures, as well as travel restrictions can have a negative impact on airline offerings, and so affect
passenger numbers and cargo volume. Environmental policy in particular significantly affects air traffic. In this regard, introduc-
ing levies is essentially an implementation of environmental policy. Stronger targets and measures discussed within the framework
of the Green Deal and the “Fit for 55” program along with the possible introduction of minimum ticket prices can lead to a significant
increase in the price of air travel, which may have a correspondingly negative demand effect.

A further political influencing factor is the possible liberalization of air traffic rights. This may result in the opening of new
markets for air traffic or the expansion of already existing markets. By contrast, sanctions or tightly specified air traffic agreements
tend to seal off markets.

Disruptive events that could have a massive impact on passenger numbers include, among other things, terrorist attacks,
epidemics, pandemics, strikes, and inclement weather conditions. Their occurrence and impact cannot be predicted, but are
generally limited in time, and normally in terms of location as well.

As in 2020, air traffic was again affected by the coronavirus pandemic in fiscal year 2021. The effects of the pandemic will also
be felt in the coming years. Due to the reduced demand, it must be expected that competition between airports and airlines will
continue to increase in intensity. In addition, government support to mitigate the social and economic consequences of the
coronavirus pandemic led to a significant increase in government debt worldwide. This development was countered with a
significant increase in taxes and levies. It could also result in a further burden on private households with possible negative effects
on planned travel budgets. It is to be assumed that given its central location and extensive intermodality as a hub, Frankfurt Airport
will play a particularly important role in the expected rebound in air traffic after the coronavirus pandemic.

Fraport monitors various early warning indicators to identify trends in travel or freight flows at an early stage. At the economic
level, this includes the development in gross domestic product and exports and imports (particularly in the European Union and
the euro area), industrial production (purchasing manager indices in various markets and production indices for special commodity
groups), logistics indicators, or private consumption as well as inflation rates in various economic areas. In addition, indicators
specific to flight markets such as travel plans, booking forecasts, or the airlines' publications of flight plans are part of such regular
monitoring activities.
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Competitive position at the Frankfurt site

Frankfurt Airport is in a competitive position both domestically and internationally. Domestically, there is competition for originating
passengers with airports with overlapping catchment areas. Internationally, Frankfurt Airport competes for transfer passengers on
the basis of its function as an international transfer airport. The main customer at the Frankfurt site remains Deutsche Lufthansa,
which accounted for more than 60% of passengers in Frankfurt in the 2021 fiscal year. The largest competitors for transfer
passengers are primarily the hub airports London Heathrow, Paris Charles de Gaulle, Istanbul, Amsterdam Schiphol, and Munich,
which are also influenced to varying degrees by their resident main customers British Airways, Air France-KLM, Turkish Airlines,
and Deutsche Lufthansa. Due to the dynamic development of many airlines and airports from the Persian Gulf region in the past,
the Frankfurt site is also in intercontinental competition with these airports. In particular, the expansion and modernization
programs at the Frankfurt site contribute to maintaining and improving its international competitive position. The construction of
Terminal 3 ensures long-term landside capacities to give the site a successful future-oriented competitive edge. On this basis, the
Executive Board is proceeding with the construction of Terminal 3 despite the consequences of the coronavirus pandemic,
although individual measures and placements have been stretched over a longer time horizon. The inauguration of Terminal 3
along with other piers is currently planned for 2026.

There was a shuffle in the top 10 European ranking due to the pandemic crisis; given its high domestic traffic share, the new
Istanbul Airport (just under 37 million) was once again at the head of the list. Moscow airports also benefited again from the strong
domestic traffic volume, so that two of them ranked second and fifth, respectively, in the top 10 European ranking this year.
Frankfurt Airport this year once again came in behind Paris Charles de Gaulle (26.2 million), Amsterdam Schiphol (25.5 million),
and before Madrid (17.1 million) and London Heathrow (19.4 million). In addition to Frankfurt Airport, the Group’s Antalya Airport
(21.9 million) reached ninth place. The Group’s St. Petersburg Airport also benefited from the strong Russian domestic traffic,
narrowly missing out on a ranking with 18.0 million passengers.

In Germany, Frankfurt Airport was by far the largest passenger airport, ahead of Munich with 12.5 million passengers in the 2021
fiscal year. Based on its air freight turnover of approximately 2.3 million metric tons, Frankfurt has remained Europe’s largest
airport in 2021, ahead of Paris Charles de Gaulle and Amsterdam Schiphol. In Germany, Leipzig/Halle Airport was the next largest
competitor, with 1.6 million metric tons of cargo.

Compared internationally, Frankfurt Airport is among the largest passenger and cargo airports in Europe. Due to the crisis,
comparisons of airport traffic are heavily influenced by the share of domestic traffic, the actions taken by the individual departure
countries and the varying travel provisions of the destination countries. In 2021, this again resulted in the ranking shifting in favor
of airports with traditionally low volume but with a high share of domestic passengers. Conclusions regarding general structural
changes in the rankings cannot be drawn yet based on the data.

Competetive position in Europe

Rank 2021 2020 2019 Airport Passengers delta % Rank 2021 2020 2019 Airport Air freight delta %
> 1. 1. 5. IST - Istanbul 36,988,563 58.5 > 1. 1. 1. FRA - Frankfurt 2,228,796 20.0
N 2. 5. 8. SVO - Moskau 30,943,456 56.4 > 2. 2. 2. CDG - Paris 1,982,394 21.1
¥ 3. 2. 2. CDG - Paris 26,201,698 17.7 > 3. 3. 4. AMS - Amsterdam 1,667,304 15.7
> 4. 4. 3. AMS - Amsterdam 25,492,633 22.0 > 4. 4. 5. IST - Istanbul 1,572,504 12.6
N 5. 9. 24. DME - Moskau 25,065,087 52.9 N 5. 6. 6. LGG - Liege 1,412,205 26.8
N 6. 8. 13. SAW - Istanbul 24,991,916 47.2 7 6. 5. 3. LHR - London 1,397,103 22.2
¥ 7. 6. 4. FRA - Frankfurt 24,812,849 32.2 > 7. 7. 7. LUX - Luxembourg 1,088,441 20.2
7 8. 7. 6. MAD - Madrid 24,119,214 41.2 > 8. 8. 8. CGN - Cologne 967,436 14.9
() 9. 17. 12 AYT - Antalya 21,919,453 124.9 > 9. 9. 10. MXP - Milan 741,775 45.1
v 10. 3. 1. LHR - London 19,395,354 -12.3 > 10. 10. 11. BRU - Brussels 660,216 30.4

Ranking by ACI Europe (February 2022). The Leipzig/Halle Airport is not a member of the ACI Europe and so not reported in the ranking. Source: ADV (12.2021)

The punctuality rate at Frankfurt Airport was 74.2% in the 2021 fiscal year, which was 8.7 percentage points below the previous
year's level. In particular, the changed ftraffic structure posed challenges for the handling activities. So-called “Prachter”
(in Geriman, “Prachter” is a mixture of the words for passenger and freight aircraft), i.e., passenger aircraft on which the seats are
removed to be able to transport even more freight, increased the handling effort. The unevenly distributed traffic peaks over the
course of the day as well as an entire week made capacity and resource planning considerably more difficult to ensure smooth
handling.
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Competitive Position Outside the Frankfurt Site
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Developments of the Group airports outside the Frankfurt site were characterized in the 2021 reporting year by the global
coronavirus pandemic and the ensuing measures to limit the incidence of infection. Information on traffic development at individual
sites can be found in the “Business Development” chapter. Within the strained market development, the competitive position of
the Group airports has developed as follows:

As the airport of the country’s capital, the development of Ljubljana Airport is closely linked to the economic and tourism upturn
of Slovenia. The destinations that emerged through the bankruptcy of Adria Airways in the fall of 2019 and which were temporarily
unserved due to the coronavirus pandemic were gradually added in the course of the recovery in traffic numbers. Not just airlines
previously active in Ljubljana such as Deutsche Lufthansa or Turkish Airlines increased their presence at the site last year, but
also new airlines such as Flydubai now connect Ljubljana to a variety of destinations in Europe and the Middle East. This devel-
opment enhances the appeal of the site and the airport. On July 1, 2021, a new passenger terminal with a surface area of around
10,000 square meters (nearly 108,000 sq ft) was inaugurated. This will increase the quality of service at the airport and improve
operational processes, strengthening Ljubljana Airport's competitive position.

The two Brazilian airports in Porto Alegre and Fortaleza served almost exclusively domestic originating traffic in 2021 (share of
domestic passenger numbers: Fortaleza 98%, Porto Alegre 99%). The resumption of the LATAM hub in November 2021 strength-
ened Fortaleza Airport’s position in the market environment of northern Brazilian domestic airports. In addition, Fortaleza’s
favorable geographical location for flights between Brazil and Europe or North America as well as the environment in a region
with strong growth potential in northern Brazil offer opportunities to expand international passenger and freight traffic in the future.
Porto Alegre also offers development opportunities, albeit to a lesser extent. LATAM Brazil, GOL, and Azul remain the dominant
domestic airlines. In order to further exploit the growth opportunities in the Brazilian and South American freight market, a new
international cargo center (TECA) was opened at Porto Alegre Airport. However, capital expenditure in the airport infrastructure
of the two Group companies was also limited to necessary work due to the crisis. For example, the inauguration of the extended
runway in Porto Alegre was postponed to 2022.

The Jorge Chavez Airport in Lima is Peru’s leading airport, and one of the largest airports in South America. The Lima site profits
in particular from its geographical position, which makes the airport an attractive transfer point for traffic between South and North
America. The largest airline at Lima Airport, LATAM Peru, which had fallen into financial difficulties due to the coronavirus
pandemic, was preparing reorganization and restructuring proceedings under US law (known as Chapter 11) at the end of 2021.
At the Lima site, LATAM Peru is maintaining its market presence and has already reestablished a large part of its fleet strength
from the time before the coronavirus pandemic. It is therefore expected to continue to make a significant contribution to the
expected passenger growth in 2022. Competing airlines such as SKY, Viva Air, and JetSmart are also pursuing a significant
growth strategy. SKY itself exceeded its own fleet strength from the beginning of 2020 to the end of 2021 and thus is contributing
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significantly to the recovery and further growth of passenger volume in the low-cost segment in 2022. JetSmart also expanded its
fleet in 2021. The on-going expansion project at Jorge Chavez Airport includes the construction of a new passenger terminal, a
new runway, including aprons and taxiways, as well as other peripheral infrastructure, in order to provide sufficient capacity for
further growth in the South American aviation market in the future. In this regard, 2021 saw significant progress in the construction
of the new runway and air traffic control tower, which is scheduled to be completed by the end of 2022. For the new passenger
terminal, the concession agreement provides for completion and inauguration in the first quarter of 2025.

The traffic and business developments at the strongly tourist-oriented Greek sites, at Varna and Burgas, as well as in Antalya are
substantially affected by charter traffic of tourist carriers. There is generally no significant concentration of individual airlines.
In addition to the economic development in each respective country where the traffic originates, the sites depend particularly on
the appeal of the respective regions with regard to safety, quality, price level, and entry requirements.

Fraport Greece operates 14 Greek regional airports. These are the airports in Kerkyra (Corfu), Chania (Crete), Kefalonia, Kavala,
Aktion/Preveza, Thessaloniki, Zakynthos, Mykonos, Skiathos, Santorini (Thira), Kos, Mytilene (Lesvos), Rhodes, and Samos. The
coronavirus pandemic and the associated restrictions and the reluctance of passengers to travel, especially in the first half of the
year, continued to have a noticeable impact on Fraport Greece. Traffic numbers then recovered massively in the summer and fall
months. At a number of smaller airports, pre-crisis levels were even exceeded in some months. This development underlines the
appeal of Greece as a tourist destination even with the coronavirus pandemic and also shows the potential for a significant in-
crease in demand in the coming years. Following the completion of the construction work under the 40-year concession, the
charges at the remaining three airports Kos, Santorini, and Thessaloniki were also increased in April 2021 to an average of €18.50
per departing passenger plus local inflation developments, as agreed in the concession agreement.

The Black Sea airports in Burgas and Varna were the second and third-largest passenger airports in Bulgaria after Sofia. In
addition to charter services, low-cost transport promises further long-term growth potential. Domestic traffic accounted for around
10% of passenger traffic. Wizz Air provided the largest share of passengers by far. In addition to the two aircraft stationed in Varna
with a total of 17 destinations, Wizz Air stationed another aircraft in Burgas in the summer of 2021 and will connect the site to 16
destinations during the summer season. Through gradual, modular expansion measures of the terminals, both tourist sites offer
sufficient capacity to meet the growth expected for the regions in the medium term.

Antalya was the third-largest passenger airport in Turkey in the past fiscal year behind Istanbul Airport and Istanbul Sabiha
Gokgen Airport, and is still one of the dominant tourist airports in the Mediterranean region. Along with political and economic
stability for the country, the development of traffic in Antalya is heavily dependent on the further progress of the coronavirus
pandemic and the demand for vacation travel in the region around Antalya. At the end of 2021, a consortium made up of Fraport
and its Turkish partner TAV was awarded the tender for the new operating concession at Antalya Airport. This will start at the
beginning of 2027 after the current concession expires and will run until the end of 2051. As part of the new concession, necessary
expansion measures at the terminals and other areas at the airport will begin in the first quarter of 2022. This will ensure Antalya
Airport will remain highly competitive in the segment of tourist airports in the Mediterranean region in the long term.

Pulkovo Airport in St. Petersburg is one of the largest airports in Russia. The development of traffic in 2021 was mainly charac-
terized by extensive travel restrictions, which severely affected international traffic. National traffic to the Russian regions, on the
other hand, increased significantly in conjunction with a greatly expanded range of low-cost connections and exceeded the
pre-crisis level. Further capital expenditure, particularly in domestic traffic handling may become necessary, depending on how
things develop. Along with changes to the current travel restrictions and the political stability of the country, development in
passenger numbers also depends on the development of the ruble in comparison with the US dollar and the euro, which particu-
larly influences the travel behavior of Russian passengers.
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Xi’an Airport is one of the largest airports in central China. The site is largely characterized by originating passengers. The
currently low share of transfer traffic offers the airport further long-term growth potential due to its geographic position.

Additional information about business development in the past fiscal year can be found in the “Economic Report” chapter.

Structure

Changes compared with the previous year
Compared with the previous year, no fundamental changes were made to the legal and organizational Group structure in the 2021
fiscal year.

The “Airside & Terminal Management, Corporate Safety & Security” strategic business unit was renamed “Aviation”. Use of this
common international term is intended to improve transparency, particularly for customers. Moreover, since April 2021 the
“HR Top Executives” central unit have been reporting directly to the Executive Director Retail & Real Estate.

In addition, the Group company FraSec Fraport Security Services GmbH was reorganized in 2021. The existing operational areas
of activity are being combined based on their specific purpose and split into three independent subsidiaries within FraSec Fraport
Security Services GmbH. Since July 1, 2021, all control services in accordance with Section 5 of the German Aviation Security
Act (LuftSiG) have been included in FraSec Luftsicherheit GmbH. The security checks according to Sections 8 and 9 of the LuftSiG
as well as the classic security and guarding tasks are being combined and allocated to FraSec Flughafensicherheit GmbH. All
activities in the service sector are the responsibility of FraSec Services GmbH. The main tasks and personnel of the central units
remain in the holding company FraSec Fraport Security Services GmbH.

FraSec Fraport Security Services GmbH

[ I |

FraSec Flughafensicherheit GmbH
Location Frankfurt FraSec Services GmbH
Location Berlin Location Frankfurt

Location Cologne-Bonn

FraSec Luftsicherheit GmbH
Location Frankfurt
Location Stuttgart

In November 2021, FraSec Luftsicherheit GmbH and the Munich-based Dr. Sasse Group entered into a strategic partnership
in the area of aviation security. The common goal is to maintain the high level of quality in the aviation security sector and to
continuously improve existing processes.

Legal structure of the Group

In contrast to time-limited airport operating models, the Fraport Group parent company, Fraport AG, wholly owns and operates
Frankfurt Airport with no time limits. With just under 7,900 employees, Fraport AG, which has been stock exchange-listed since
2001, is also the biggest single company of the Group, which has more than 18,400 employees. It directly or indirectly holds the
shares in the other Group companies and its head office is in Frankfurt/Main, Federal Republic of Germany.

Including the Frankfurt site, Fraport was active at 31 airports through Group companies at the time the consolidated financial
statements were prepared (see also the “Key sites” chapter).

As at December 31, 2021 there were 59 consolidated companies excluding companies accounted for using the equity method,
and 80 companies including companies accounted for using the equity method (in the previous year: 59 and 78 companies,
respectively). For a detailed overview of the shareholdings within the Group, please see Group notes, note 57.
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Organizational Group structure

As a management body, the Executive Board bears the strategic and operational responsibility for the Group. The Executive
Board consisted at the time of preparing the consolidated financial statements of the five members Dr. Stefan Schulte (Chair),
Anke Giesen (Executive Director Retail and Real Estate), Michael Muller (Executive Director Labor Relations), Dr. Pierre
Dominique Primm (Executive Director Aviation and Infrastructure), and Prof. Dr. Matthias Zieschang (Executive Director Control-
ling and Finance).

A detailed description of the structure and operation of the management and control body is presented in the “Joint Statement on
Corporate Governance”. The annually updated Joint Statement on Corporate Governance does not form part of the annual audit
of the consolidated accounts by the auditor and can be found in the “To Our Shareholders” chapter.

For the purpose of managing the Group, the Executive Board has divided the business activities into four segments: “Aviation”,
“Retail & Real Estate”, “Ground Handling”, which are largely active at the Frankfurt site, as well as “International Activities &
Services”, which primarily includes the Group companies outside of Frankfurt. The segments encompass the strategic business

units and service units of Fraport AG and also include the Group companies involved in each of these business processes.

In addition to the aforementioned strategic business units and directly allocated service units, Fraport AG’s ten central units in
Frankfurt provide, among other things, Group-wide services.

As at December 31, 2021, the segment structure of the Fraport Group was as follows:

Fraport Group structure

&

.(.

International Activities &

Segments” Aviation Retail & Real Estate Ground Handling .

Services
DlrectIY asmg_ned Aviation Retail and Properties Ground Services Global Investments and
strategic business and Management

service units Information and
Telecommunications
Integrated Facility
Management
Corporate Infrastructure
Mangement

Key Group companies FraSec Media Frankfurt FraGround Fraport USA

FraCareServices Fraport Slovenija

Fortaleza & Porto Alegre
Lima
Fraport Greece
Twin Star
Antalya
Thalita / Northern Capital
Gateway
Xi'an

Central units
Finance and Investor Relations | Internal Auditing | Investment and Project
Controlling | Cost and Profitability Management | Human Resources | Accounting |
Legal Affairs and Compliance | Corporate Development, Environment and Sustainability | Corporate Communications | Central Purchasing,
Construction Contracts

" Including assigned Group companies.
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Strategy

The strategic “Zukunft FRA — Relaunch 50” program was launched in 2020 as a necessary response to the impact of the corona-
virus pandemic and continued in 2021. Even before the coronavirus pandemic, weaker general economic development, changes
in legal conditions and structural changes in aviation traffic had noticeably affected Fraport, and particularly the Frankfurt site.
It was born out of the need to strengthen our competitiveness. The pressure increased exponentially once again in the wake of
the effects of the coronavirus pandemic. The program addresses challenges that are structural, organizational, and cultural in
nature. The required improvement in results has been drastically expanded both in terms of time and amount, and cost reductions
brought more strongly into focus. A central objective of the program to reduce the headcount at the Frankfurt site by around 4,000
was achieved in 2021. As at December 31, 2021, there were around 4,348 fewer employees compared to December 31, 2019.
In addition, far-reaching organizational adjustments were defined and implemented as far as possible effective from January 1,
2021. Due to the ongoing coronavirus pandemic and its recurring negative impact on global air traffic, the main focus is currently
on securing liquidity in the long term and adapting resources and capacities to a scenario of around 50 million passengers, so
that the company is still profitable with this reduced passenger volume compared to 2019. For this reason, the strategic “Zukunft
FRA - Relaunch 50” program aims to reduce costs and increase revenue. In order to ensure the quality of the processes even
with a reduced headcount for the long term, the focus is now on the following four program goals:

j’)} >
Q .A ‘A —
Standardization and
Lean Processes Agile Collaboration Faster Decisions automation

The reduced demand resulting from the coronavirus pandemic and its related overcapacities increase the already intense
competition between airports and also increase the high cost and price pressure on airlines. In this scenario, the quality of services
rendered and reliable, flexible processes are critical success factors. Fraport’s efforts in this regard are still directed at offering all
customer groups an excellent product. The mission statement with the motto “Gute Reise! We make it happen” stands just as
before for the necessary focus of the Fraport Group and the entire value chain on customers.
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Long-term market development as a framework

After the worldwide traffic collapse in 2020 and 2021 due to the coronavirus pandemic, traffic volume will recover by the middle
of the decade, according to forecasts by associations and aircraft manufacturers. Subsequently, the aviation market is again
expected to show stable growth in the long term. Fraport aligns its strategy to the long-term forecasted development of the global
aviation market and its market trends. Worldwide economic growth and a globally growing and stronger consuming middle class
will particularly have a positive influence on development. Further catch-up and growth effects will result from the global directing
of business and education and the forecasted increasing traffic from migration and tourism. Disproportionate growth is still
expected from and in the economic emerging markets.
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Forecast for the long-term development of global air traffic underline growth expectation

o
Source Period Reference CAGR
Airbus 2021-2040 Revenue passenger kilometers +3.9%
Boeing 2021-2040 Revenue passenger kilometers +4.0%
Embraer 2021-2037 Revenue passenger kilometers +3.3%
ACI 2021-2040 Number of passengers +5.1%

Strategic objectives

With its five strategic objectives, the vision of the Fraport Group serves to implement the mission statement, and is more valid

than ever based on the changed underlying conditions:
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y Growth in Frankfurt and internationally

The expected market development described above indicates that air traffic will remain a growth market over the long term. With
the measures initiated under the “Zukunft FRA - Relaunch 50” program and in other areas, Fraport is redirecting the company to
ensure competitiveness and to participate sustainably in this growth - both at the Frankfurt site and internationally.

Fraport wants to further strengthen the hub function of the Frankfurt site and enhance its appeal for network carriers, but also for
the low-cost market in the medium term. This requires that sufficient capacity be available at Frankfurt Airport, both land and
airside. In particular, the construction of Terminal 3 will secure the infrastructure required at the site in the long term, which is why
Fraport is continuing with it despite the coronavirus pandemic.

Fraport is continuing the expansion measures required to meet capacity that it has begun at international sites. The modernization
measures at the Greek airports were successfully completed in 2021. At Lima Airport, 2021 saw significant progress in the
construction of the new runway and air traffic control tower, which is scheduled to be completed by the end of 2022. For the
new passenger terminal, the concession agreement provides for completion and inauguration in the first quarter of 2025.
On December 1, 2021, Fraport, together with its partner TAV Airports Holding, received the operating license for Antalya Airport
until 2051. As part of the concession, infrastructure projects such as the expansion of Terminal 2 and the creation of new VIP
areas are planned (see “Key sites” chapter).

The role of Frankfurt Airport as one of the leading cargo hubs in Europe will also be strengthened, and freight will be developed
as a strategic mainstay. It was precisely in the coronavirus pandemic that Frankfurt Airport was able to demonstrate its systemic
relevance for supplying Germany and the world with essential goods such as protective masks, medications, and medical equip-
ment. To ensure long-term competitiveness and meet the needs of industry and consignors, Fraport, together with its site partners,
makes sure that the airport meets all requirements for an efficient cargo hub. To this end, Fraport is continually investing in the
physical and digital infrastructure of the airport. For example, in 2021 a data exchange platform was commissioned to digitally
standardize customs and other import processes at the site. Frankfurt Airport was also selected as a project partner of the
Air Cargo Digital Test Field, which is funded with around €7 million by the German Federal Ministry of Transport and Digital
Infrastructure. The project will significantly contribute to making air freight more digital and efficient.

Fraport is maintaining its long-term growth goals, despite the midrange effects of the coronavirus pandemic on its business model.
Traffic volume is expected to follow the general market trend; aviation revenue will increase and sustainable EBITDA growth will
be maintained in the non-aviation segment. International business is also expected to grow, and its share of Group EBITDA and
results will increase over the long-term.

Fraport particularly uses the passenger numbers at Frankfurt Airport as well as at the Group airports as an indicator for the Group-
wide growth in traffic. The corresponding figures can be found in the “Business development” chapter.

Fraport measures Group-wide growth in the result and controls this, among other things, by monitoring the development of Group
EBITDA and the Group result, the ROFRA, net financial debt to EBITDA ratio, and free cash flow. A description of the development
of performance indicators during the past fiscal year can be found in the “The Group’s results of operations”, “Asset and financial
position”, and “Value management” chapters. The associated forecasted figures for the 2022 fiscal year can be found in the
“Business outlook” chapter.

The key risks and opportunities associated with the expansion of airport infrastructure in and outside of Frankfurt can be found in
the “Risk and Opportunities Report®.
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R® Service-oriented airport operator

The mission statement and the claim “Gute Reise! We make it happen” show the aspiration of having a strong customer and
service orientation at all sites. Group airports will reach a leading position in their respective aviation market through motivated
employees, efficient processes, and infrastructure that meets current needs.

In 2021, special emphasis was placed on the health of customers and the best possible reduction of infection risk due to the
ongoing coronavirus pandemic, both in Frankfurt and at the international airports. All sites undertook extensive measures to
guarantee safe airport operation at all sites. The measures in Frankfurt were also subjected to an audit by the TUV Hesse and
awarded the TUV “Safe against Corona” seal. Frankfurt Airport and the Group airports in Greece and Bulgaria received the Airport
Health Accreditation awarded by ACI for the successful implementation of organizational, infrastructural, and personnel measures
to protect against the coronavirus.

Generally, passengers increasingly expect individual offers that make travel more convenient and intelligent. To create added
value for travelers, Fraport offers its passengers these throughout the entire travel chain, from planning all the way through to the
end of the journey. Fraport is increasingly relying on technological solutions for this. A particular focus is also placed on reliable
loading of baggage on departures and fast baggage reclaim on arriving flights, as the baggage process has a major impact on
customer satisfaction. The biometric baggage recognition solution developed by Fraport won the ACI Innovation Award last year
and demonstrates Fraport’s intensive efforts to continuously improve its services to customers.

Fraport and the Federal Ministry reached an agreement for Fraport to take over responsibility for carrying out security checks at
Frankfurt Airport from 2023. Fraport is thus pursuing the goal of better integrating control processes into existing procedures and
so avoiding waiting times as much as possible. Such waiting times were often a point of criticism by passengers and airlines
before the coronavirus pandemic.

With the relocation of the security checks in Terminal 1, Hall B to a northern section of the airport, Fraport is consistently continuing
the further development of its existing terminal areas. Initially, the eastern part of the new security checkpoint will be built in Hall
B, with implementation in the western section to follow. Overall, 16 security checkpoints with state-of-the-art technical installations
will be created in Hall B. The conversion will increase the capacity of the security checkpoints, provide for a larger airside retail
offer, and make transfers from Pier A to Pier B more efficient and comfortable. To prepare, the check-in counters in Halls A and
B are currently being gradually upgraded to the latest technical state-of-the-art and equipped with modern check-in and baggage
drop-off machines.

In addition to the passengers, airport business partners including airlines, retailers, and logistics specialists are of key importance
to Fraport. Fraport provides its partners Group-wide with an optimum commercial basis, so that they can successfully compete.
Technologically supported processes and interfaces are continuously improved and procedures simplified and accelerated.
Fraport and Lufthansa have agreed to intensify their strategic and operational collaboration. The goal is to jointly improve passen-
ger processes and experiences, exploit efficiency potential, and further expand the central role of the Frankfurt hub in international
competition.

Customer and service orientation will be continually improved at all Group airports. Understanding customer needs and obtaining
feedback is essential for this. This is why customer surveys are regularly conducted in Frankfurt and at the Group airports.
However, these were suspended or conducted in abbreviated form in 2020/21 due to the coronavirus pandemic. Fraport is still
continually engaged in direct exchange with its business partners.

Fraport uses, among other things, non-financial performance indicators to measure the objective of “Service-oriented airport
operator”. The global passenger satisfaction in Frankfurt reflects the effectiveness and success of all passenger-oriented
processes and service offers that aim to increase passenger satisfaction and loyalty at the site. Also, baggage connectivity is
an essential measure for performance as a hub airport. The punctuality rate is another quality indicator for Frankfurt as a hub
airport (see also the “Business model” chapter).
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The most important performance indicators related to the Group objective “Service-oriented airport operator” can be found in the
“Control” chapter. A description of their development during the past fiscal year can be found in the “Non-financial performance
indicators” chapter; the associated measures and forecasted figures for the 2022 fiscal year can be found in the “Combined
non- financial report” and “Business outlook” chapters.

|mq Economically successful through optimal cooperation

@®

All Group companies, business fields, and services within the Fraport Group provide their services under quality and cost
structures that can keep pace with specialized air traffic service providers. Optimized collaboration within the Group enables the
operating cost to be reduced further and made more flexible.

The initial challenge in fiscal years 2020 and 2021 was to ensure and further expand liquidity in the Fraport Group. For this reason,
Fraport reacted early to the drop in traffic figures and immediately introduced cost reductions both at its home site in Frankfurt
and in Group airports worldwide. This led to all material expenses that were not absolutely necessary being reduced as much as
possible. All capital expenditure in the pipeline in Frankfurt was reduced or temporarily postponed. The headcount reduction under
the strategic “Zukunft FRA - Relaunch 50” program was implemented, thereby also reducing personnel costs structurally. The
model for short-time work schedules was also used and thus the work output was adapted to the reduced volume of work until
the end of 2021. In order to counteract the expected economic consequences of the coronavirus pandemic, while at the same
time ensuring the necessary personnel, including preserving qualified workers for the operational management of the rebounding
air traffic, the possibilities of short-time work schedules were used and an emergency collective agreement was reached for
German passenger airports, to which Fraport has also ascribed.

It is essential to sustainably adapt the processes, organization, and culture of the Fraport Group to ensure our long-term profita-
bility and success as well as ensure they remain agile. And so employee pools are being created through the bundling of identical
or similar areas of responsibility, such as in corporate infrastructure management, in order to manage and fully utilize resources
more efficiently. Processes are also being consistently streamlined. For a structured, systematic approach, the Prozessoptimi-
erung@FRA program was set up under the sponsorship of the Executive Board.

Not least of all, decision-making processes will be decidedly shorter, enhancing speed of implementation in the company.
An important milestone along this path is the establishment and strengthening of a project organization in many sections, and so
a clearly flatter management structure. Manager-to-staff ratios were expanded and management depth reduced by reclassifying
management positions as specialist positions and the reintroduction of a specialist and project career path.

The most important financial performance indicators relating to the Group objective “Economically successful through optimal
cooperation” can be found in the “Control” chapter. A description of the development of performance indicators during the past
fiscal year can be found in the “The Group’s results of operations”, “Asset and financial position”, and “Value management”
chapters. The associated forecasted figures for the 2022 fiscal year can be found in the “Business outlook” chapter.

#* Learning organization & digitalization

1101 |

Flexible and fast response is part of everyday operations for Fraport as a service provider. Risks and opportunities are recognized
at an early stage, and changes in the market are anticipated. Learning takes place every day and everywhere, both in terms of
leadership and in the area of expertise. In this regard, Fraport provides continued training, interactive learning, modern agile
project techniques, and active feedback.

Continuously developing the corporate culture is a clear focus. Collaboration between divisions will be strengthened by agile
working methods, and the service management culture will be expanded. In order to fulfill the requirement of learning from each
other, the regular exchange between technical experts from the Fraport Group on specific airport management issues was
continued.

Economic development is characterized by its fast pace and uncertainty. The ability to adapt is a key factor here. In this sense
and in order to take advantage of the opportunities offered by digitalization and innovation, the strategy on digitalization and
innovation adopted in 2020 was implemented. Fraport sees digitalization and innovation as a lever in order to quickly improve the
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financial earnings position; they are used to open up earnings potential, reduce costs, and thus increase competitiveness. Fraport
also wants to create competitive cost structures through standardization and automation. In this context, repetitive processes are
identified and the possible replacement of certain manual tasks by robotic process automation is explored. The first pilot projects
for this purpose in 2021 were conducted in the area of accounting. A roll-out will also take place in other areas. Other projects
initiated by the Digital Factory are pursuing the digitalization of analog and manual processes. As a result, 14 projects in cooper-
ation with external partners successfully led to the development of Minimum Viable Products within three months over the course
of the past fiscal year. For example, automatic license plate recognition has improved the access process for our customers in
CargoCity Sud, and a yield management was introduced for our parking space management. In 2022, the focus of the digitalization
and innovation strategy will be on expanding the Digital Factory within the entire Fraport Group.

More innovations and ideas in the Fraport Group can be found in the “Research and development” chapter.

Fairness and recognition for partners and neighbors

Fraport aims to be respectful and appreciative of its partners and neighbors Group-wide.

Fraport takes its corporate responsibility seriously as an attractive and responsible employer for its employees. Fraport retains
qualified and motivated employees through long-term, systematic opportunities for further development, attractive employee
offers, and talent management programs, and so ensures its own competitiveness. Fraport wants to continue to offer many of
these services and programs, even as the coronavirus pandemic unavoidably mandated the introduction of short-time work and
material cost reductions. In this regard, apprentices that are completing their training in 2022 will be offered a temporary position
so that they can obtain initial professional experience directly after their training.

As a responsible employer, Fraport also respects and promotes personal diversity and attaches great importance to ensuring that
this is reflected in the way employees interact with each other. The Group agreement “Conduct of Partnership, Diversity, and
Equality in the Workplace” formed the platform for principles such as freedom from discrimination and equal opportunities. Fraport
particularly focuses on developmental measures that increase the share of women in management positions in the first and
second levels directly below the Executive Board and at the respective management levels at the German Group companies.

Comprehensive, integrated occupational health and safety is also an important component of overall corporate responsibility in
the Fraport Group. Occupational health and safety was again particularly emphasized in fiscal year 2021 due to the coronavirus
pandemic. Extensive protective measures were undertaken both at the Frankfurt site and internationally, such as the implemen-
tation of constantly changing occupational safety rules, the requirement to wear nose and mouth coverings, distance markings,
the use of hygienic safety screens or dividers, and the installation of disinfectant dispensers. Work processes were also adapted
to make everyday operations as safe as possible for employees in observance of legally prescribed coronavirus protective
measures. Employees were continuously informed and made aware of applicable hygiene and behavioral regulations through
information materials and instructions.

Being a good neighbor also means communal, cultural, and social engagement in the respective regions. The “Active for the
Region” support concept primarily serves to boost clubs and support volunteer work in the region around Frankfurt Airport. The
company also supports both popular and professional sports and maintains long-term partnerships with cultural institutions in
Frankfurt. Even at the sites of the international Group companies, regions close to the airport also benefit from the economic
performance, such as through donations or sponsorship activities undertaken by each Group company independently. However,
in 2021 and presumably in the years to come, due to the effects of the coronavirus pandemic the company has been forced to
reduce expenses Group-wide.

Fraport is committed to fulfilling the environmental requirements associated with airport operations. In the area of climate protec-
tion, Fraport has set the goal of reducing Group-wide CO,emissions to a total of 120,000 metric tons by 2030 and to be completely
CO3 neutral by 2045. In 2021, CO, emissions were 163,520 metric tons (see also the “Control” and “Non-financial performance
indicators” chapters). No emissions will be compensated. In order to cover the electricity demand from renewable energies, Fraport
AG has been purchasing electricity from existing onshore wind turbines since July 2021. In addition, a Corporate Power Purchase
Agreement on the purchase of wind energy was concluded to begin in mid-2026. The company is also committed to generating
its own electricity at the airport and so is pursuing the expansion of photovoltaic systems on site (see also the “Combined non-
financial statement” chapter).
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In addition to Frankfurt, the international Group airports are also increasingly participating in the Airport Carbon Accreditation of
the Airports Council International (ACI) (see also the “Combined non-financial statement” chapter).

Active and passive noise abatement also serves to limit the negative effects of aviation traffic on its environment. Emission-related
airport charges at the Frankfurt site provide financial incentives for airlines to use aircraft with low pollutant and noise emissions.
Noise protection measures in accordance with national and local noise protection regulations have been applied and monitoring
systems implemented at Group airports as well.

Fraport uses employee satisfaction, the ratio of women in management positions, as well as the sickness rate to verify its objective
of being an attractive and responsible employer. In addition to CO. emissions, the Executive Board has defined these indicators
as the most important non-financial performance indicators for the “Fairness and recognition for partners and neighbors” objective
(see also the “Control” chapter). A description of its development during the past fiscal year can be found in the “Non-financial
performance indicators” chapter; the associated measures and forecasted figures for the 2022 fiscal year can be found in the
“Combined non-financial report” and “Business outlook” chapters.

Control

The Control chapter explains the most important key figures used by the Executive Board to make the corporate measures taken
as part of the Group strategy measurable and to evaluate them. Here, the Executive Board differentiates between financial and
non-financial performance indicators.

Changes compared with the previous year

Despite the restrictions imposed by the impact of the coronavirus pandemic, the measurement of the non-financial performance
indicators of global satisfaction, baggage connectivity, and CO, emissions has resumed, albeit to a different degree. Employee
satisfaction was surveyed in the 2021 fiscal year as part of pulse checks at Fraport AG. Employee satisfaction in the Group was
not surveyed.

Beginning with the reporting for the 2021 fiscal year, the Executive Board will focus on the following key financial and non-financial
performance indicators, the developments of which are presented in the “Results of operations”, “Asset and financial position”,
“Value management”, and “Non-financial performance indicators” chapters, and for which corresponding forecasts have been
formulated in the “Business outlook” chapter.
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Topic Target Key figure Target level Term Scope Value 2021
Earnings position We want to generate | Revenue adjusted for Around €2,6 billion 2022 Group 1,901.6
earnings growth in the IFRIC 12 (€ million)
long term and maintain EBITDA (€ million) Between roughly 2022 Group 757.0
our f|nan(:|al.strenght £760 million and
desoi aft a high Ie\(eli around €880 million
espite future capita EBIT (€ million) | Between €320 million 2022 Group 3137
expenditure.
and around
€440 million
Group result (€ million) Between roughly 2022 Group 91.8
€50 million and around
€150 million
Liqudity Disproportionate | Over the entire period Group 3,564.3
liquidity coverage of the coronavirus
pandemic
Shareholders” equity >30 % Continuous Group 23.1
ratio (%)
Net financial debt to Max. 5x Continuous Group 8.4
EBITDA
Free Cash Flow Roughly at the 2021 2021 Group -772.3
(€ million) level
ROFRA (%) | >WACC (2021: 7.3 %) Continuous Group 34
Customer satisfaction and We want to maintain Global satisfaction of >80 %" 2026 Fraport AG? 91/833’
product quality and improve our passengers (%)
customer satisfaction. | gaggage connectivity >98.5% 2026 Fraport AG 98.3
(%)
Attractive and responsible We want to create | Employee satisfaction -4 - Group -
employer good working
conditions and increase Better than the 2021 Fraport AG 82.5°
employee satisfaction. previous year’s figure ¥
We want to increase Women in manage- 30% 2021 Group 27.1
the share of women in ment positions (first (Germany) R
management and second level 30% 2021 Fraport AG 26.4
positions. below the Executive
Board) (%)
Occupational health We want to stabilize Sickness rate (%) <7,2% 2025 Group 6.7
and safety the sickness rate in the (Germany) R
medium term and <7,2% 2025 Fraport AG 5.9
reduce it in the
long term.
Climate protection We want to reduce the | CO, emissions (total of 120.000m.t.” 2030 Group ® 163,520”
€O, emissions. scope 1 and 2) (t) 75.000m. t.” 2030 Fraport AG 114,015”

Y For Frankfurt Airport, starting from the opening year of Terminal 3: >85%.

The target value will apply to the Fraport Group once regular passenger surveys are resumed.

¥ Dueto a change in methodology, the results will be reported separately for the first and second half of 2021.

R Long-term objectives will be defined after the resumption of the Group-wide and methodically adapted employee survey.

#2021 value based on pulse checks collected in percentage.

® This includes Fraport AG as well as all Group companies in Germany.

n Target for 2045: 0 t CO, (“Net Zero Carbon* according to the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change).

® This includes Fraport AG and Fraport Greece as well as the Group companies GCS, FraGround, Fraport Slovenija, Lima, Fortaleza, Porto Alegre, and Twin Star.
9 Subsequent verifications may result in changes to the figures.

Financial performance indicators

For Fraport, the growth-oriented development of financial performance indicators is critical for the long-term success of the
company. The overriding importance of these indicators is reflected in the Group strategy as a set of criteria for the Group
objectives “Growth in Frankfurt and internationally” and “Economically successful through optimal cooperation”. Control, derived
from the Group strategy, is carried out primarily at the Group level, and segment-specific key figures are used to aid the process.

Fraport mainly uses key figures relating to the consolidated results of operations and to the Group asset and financial position, as
well as key figures that link the results of operations with the asset and financial position, as key financial performance indicators
(value management). In accordance with the long-term oriented Group strategy, the Executive Board manages and evaluates the
development of financial performance indicators while also taking account of long-term forecasted market developments. In this
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context, strategic measures — such as the implementation of larger capital expenditure projects or the expansion of international
business — can also lead to a short- to medium-term burden on the financial performance indicators.

The key financial performance indicators and their significance for Fraport are described in the following. The description of their
development during the past fiscal year can be found in the “The Group’s results of operations”, “Asset and financial position”,
and “Value management” chapters. The associated forecasted figures for the 2022 fiscal year can be found in the “Business
outlook” chapter. Definitions for calculating the financial key figures can be found in the “Glossary” chapter.

Results of operations key figures

The results of operations include the presentation and explanation of significant earnings components and key figures. While the
results of operations in the context of regular reporting provide information about the past business development and are
forecasted in the business outlook, earnings forecasts are also regularly drawn up over long-term periods for internal planning
purposes. The information resulting from this is essential for the Executive Board in relation to the company’s long-term
management.

The key financial performance indicators for Fraport are revenue adjusted for IFRIC 12, EBITDA, EBIT, and the Group result.
EBITDA and, indirectly, the Group result through the earnings per share (EPS) are part of the Executive Board remuneration and

underline the relevance of these financial key figures as a control element (see also the “Remuneration report” at
www.fraport.com/publications).

Asset and financial position key figures

As well as in the results of operations, the result of the strategically adopted measures and operating activities of Fraport is also
reflected in the Group’s asset and financial position. Regardless of the negative effects of the coronavirus pandemic on the key
performance indicators, the development of the shareholders’ equity ratio, the net financial debt to EBITDA ratio and free cash
flow are of particular significance for Fraport. Also, the Group’s liquidity under the influence of the coronavirus pandemic was
introduced as a control parameter.

The level of the shareholders’ equity ratio represents the basis for the current and future operating activities for Fraport. A solid
base of shareholders’ equity is, for example, essential for the financing of large strategic projects, such as the expansion of the
Frankfurt Airport Expansion South project at Frankfurt Airport, and it is also a benchmark for creditworthiness of the company.
The aim is to achieve a shareholders’ equity ratio of at least 30%.

Furthermore, the net financial debt to EBITDA ratio and the free cash flow in particular serve as key financial indicators to the
Executive Board to assess financial strength. The net financial debt to EBITDA ratio provides information on the financial stability
of the company and how many years are required to repay the net financial debt via EBITDA, if consistent figures are assumed
for both indicators. The Executive Board has decided on a ratio of a maximum of five for this performance indicator and is resolved
to reach this target value again in the medium term after the effects of the coronavirus pandemic are overcome.

The free cash flow provides information about the financial resources available to the Group from the operating activities of a
period after deducting operating capital expenditure activities. These free funds can be retained in order to increase the company’s
liquidity and to be available as a financial reserve for future capital expenditure or to reduce the leverage (the gearing ratio) and/or
can be distributed among shareholders as dividends. Based on the impact of the coronavirus pandemic on Fraport’s operational
business activity and due to the ongoing capital expenditure activity in Frankfurt and internationally, the Executive Board is
assuming a negative free cash flow over the medium term.

The Group’s liquidity provides information on the financial stability of the Fraport Group, even over a long period of time. The
Executive Board strives to ensure above-average liquidity coverage throughout the entire period of the coronavirus pandemic.
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Links between the results of operations and the asset and financial position (value management)

To increase the Group’s value in the long term, the Executive Board specifically draws parallels between the development of the
results of operations and the asset and financial position. In this context, the Executive Board plans and manages the Group’s
development according to the principles of value management.

At Fraport, the most important measurement and steering figure of this approach is the “Return on Fraport assets”, in short:
ROFRA, which makes the different-sized segments of the Fraport Group comparable in terms of economic enhancement.
Compared to the current WACC, the ROFRA shows whether the business units created value (ROFRA > WACC) or not (ROFRA
< WACC). The coronavirus pandemic has had a decidedly negative effect on the economic enhancement of the segments. The
calculation of the WACC is shown in the “Value added” chapter.

ROFRA

Adjusted EBIT Fraport-Assets

EBIT Goodwill
+ Pre-tax result of the Group companies accounted for using Other intangible assets at cost/2
the equity method Investments in airport operating projects at cost/2
Construction in progress and lands at cost
Other property, plant, and equipment at cost/2
Carrying amounts of the Group companies accounted for using
the equity method and other investments
Inventories
Trade accounts receivable
— Current trade accounts payable

+ + + + +

+ +

The ROFRA is calculated on the basis of the EBIT extended by the results before taxes of the Group companies accounted for
using the equity method divided by the Fraport assets. The Fraport assets are defined as the average of the Group’s or segments’
fixed interest-bearing capital required for operations including the carrying amounts of the Group companies accounted for using
the equity method. To avoid economic enhancement coming solely from depreciation and amortization of assets, the Executive
Board recognizes regularly depreciable or amortizable assets within Fraport assets at half of their historical acquisition/manufac-
turing costs (at cost/2), and not at residual carrying amounts. Goodwill and investments in Group companies accounted for using
the equity method and other assets not included in depreciation and amortization, in particular assets in construction, are recog-
nized in full at cost because they are not subject to regular depreciation and amortization. Within the scope of the initial
implementation of IFRS 16, other property, plant, and equipment also includes the rights to use resulting from leasing contracts.
They are included in the calculation as half at cost.

ROFRA is also an element of the Executive Board remuneration and underlines the long-term goal of Group-wide business
activities that create value (see also the “Remuneration report” at www.fraport.com/publications).

Non-financial performance indicators

In addition to the key figures for its financial development, Fraport measures the development of “non-financial performance
indicators”, which are also essential for the long-term success of the company and result primarily from the Group objectives
“Service-oriented airport operator” and “Fairness and recognition for partners and neighbors”.

The description of the development of the most important non-financial performance indicators during the past fiscal year as well
as the implemented measures are presented in the “Non-financial performance indicators” and “Combined non-financial report”
chapters. The associated forecasted figures for the 2022 fiscal year can be found in the “Business outlook” chapter. More infor-
mation on the topic of “Corporate Social Responsibility” can be found on the company website at www.fraport.com/responsibility.
This reporting is not a part of the Combined Management Report nor the audit of consolidated financial statements by the auditor.
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Customer satisfaction and product quality

For Fraport, the quality of performed services and the associated customer satisfaction are decisive competitive factors and of
key significance for the long-term success of the business. The clear objective is to raise its own quality and a high level of
customer satisfaction. Fraport uses a number of performance indicators for the purposes of measurement and control. The key
indicators include the global satisfaction of passengers and baggage connectivity.

Global satisfaction describes passengers’ satisfaction with the services and processes offered and the overall service at
Frankfurt Airport. As in 2020, the past reporting year 2021 was once again marked by the impact of the coronavirus pandemic.

Data on the global satisfaction of passengers was collected in the first half of 2021 in a further abbreviated permanent passenger
survey (Fraport MONITOR) compared to the previous year. The shortened questionnaire was largely retained, and 900 interviews
were conducted per month. Along with the regular long-term passenger survey, Fraport continued a method test, which was
launched in 2020. In this test, at least 400 passengers per month filled out the questionnaire of the Fraport MONITOR themselves
in the first half of 2021 instead of being asked questions directly by interviewers. Passengers were able to do this on their own
mobile device (smartphone, tablet, laptop) or on a tablet provided by the interviewers on site. This digital self-administered survey
completely replaced the previous face-to-face survey effective July 1, 2021. In order to take into account valuation differences
due to the new format of the survey, customer satisfaction for 2021 is reported separately for the first and second half of the year.

The Fraport MONITOR will be continued in a reduced scope in 2022. The basic questionnaire and the number of satisfaction
criteria to be queried remain largely unchanged. The sample size will be increased in stages depending on the forecasted
passenger numbers.

Due to the ongoing coronavirus pandemic, the originally planned number of passenger satisfaction surveys could not be performed
at the fully consolidated international Group airports. The data collected in 2021 are therefore not adequate for determining a valid
figure for global satisfaction in the foreign portfolio for the reporting period. This consequently also applies for Group global
satisfaction in the Group, which could not be determined for 2021 due to a lack of complete data. As a result, the Executive Board
has resolved to not use global satisfaction as a control value in 2021 for the Fraport Group. For Fraport AG, the key figure is still
relevant for control.

The target value for global satisfaction of 80% for Frankfurt Airport remained unchanged throughout the 2021 reporting year
despite the change in the format of the survey. This target value is to be maintained until the inauguration of Terminal 3. Fraport
has set a goal of at least 85% commencing from the year that Terminal 3 opens.

The target value of Group global satisfaction, which is a weighted average of global satisfaction in Frankfurt and at the fully
consolidated international airports, also remained unchanged at 80%. The recording of global satisfaction in the Group will be
implemented as soon as the regular passenger surveys at all fully consolidated international airports are resumed in full.

Baggage connectivity provides information about the percentage of baggage at Frankfurt Airport that is loaded on time in relation
to the total departing baggage. Baggage connectivity measures, among other things, the performance of the airport in its role as
a hub with a transfer share of about 50%, and thus a high proportion of transfer baggage. A high and stable connectivity proves
the good quality of baggage processes. The objective also remains the achievement of a long-term baggage connectivity of more
than 98.5%.

Attractive and responsible employer

For Fraport, appeal and responsibility as an employer is, like customer satisfaction and product quality, a key factor to ensure the
long-term success of the business. Fraport AG understands appeal to mean the creation of good working conditions in order to
gain and retain committed and qualified employees. In order to measure and control its appeal and responsibility as an employer,
Fraport uses various performance indicators, such as employee satisfaction and the ratio of women in management positions.

Employee satisfaction is a central instrument for measuring employee mood. Fraport is convinced that satisfied employees
achieve better customer loyalty and improved performance. This key figure is calculated annually by surveying employees of
Fraport AG and the Group companies. All labor-intensive Group companies in Frankfurt and in Greece, Slovenia, Bulgaria, and
Brazil last took part in the survey in 2019.



Fraport Annual Report 2021 Combined Management Report / Situation of the Group

Due to the impact of the coronavirus pandemic on operations at all locations of the Fraport Group, in 2020 and 2021 measurement
of employee satisfaction using the normal instrument of the Fraport Barometer was waived. Given the significant changes in the
content and framework conditions of all employees’ tasks due to the pandemic and its impact on operations, a true assessment
of satisfaction values and a meaningful comparison with the previous year’s figures is not possible.

Instead of the methodically sound but complex instrument that is the Group-wide employee survey, so-called pulse checks were
initially introduced at Fraport AG. The short, compact online surveys measure the “pulse” of the company over a longer period
and provides a view of the mood and satisfaction of the staff. In addition, general questions provide a rough guide for Fraport’s
handling of the crisis.

The pulse checks instrument will be used until the resumption of the employee survey. In doing so, the Executive Board aims to
maintain at least the same level of satisfaction at Fraport AG as the previous year.

As a responsible employer, Fraport AG respects and promotes personal diversity and attaches great importance to ensuring that
this is reflected in the way employees interact with each other. Diversity is a key goal for Fraport AG, which the Group systemati-
cally addresses as part of its diversity management. Fraport places particular focus on promoting women in management
positions at the two levels directly below the Executive Board as well as at the respective management levels at the German
Group companies. This corresponds to the objectives in the “Act on Equal Participation of Women and Men in Management
Positions in the Private and Public Sector”. For reporting purposes, executives who report directly to the Executive Board are
categorized as level 1. Executives who report to this first level of management are categorized as level 2. Regarding the Group
companies in Germany, the levels of management are categorized based on comparable positions at Fraport AG. In the reporting
up to 2021, the targets for the two reporting levels have been summarized. In accordance with the “Act to Supplement and Amend
the Regulations for the Act on Equal Participation of Women and Men in Management Positions in the Private and Public Sector”,
the development of the proportion of women in management positions from 2022 onwards will be shown separately for each
reporting level. The goal is to increase the proportion of women in management positions in the Group in Germany, at the first
management level below the Executive Board to 30.8% and at the lower management level to 30.2% by the end of 2026. For
Fraport AG, the proportion of women in management positions is to be increased accordingly to 31.8% at the first management
level and 30.9% at the lower management level. Fraport respects local circumstances and therefore does not impose any quotas
based on German law on the foreign Group companies.

Occupational health and safety

As a responsible employer, Fraport contributes to increasing and maintaining employees’ performance and preventing
work-related health hazards through preventive health management. Fraport evaluates the effectiveness of the measures for
health management by, among other things, continuously analyzing the sickness rate. The calculation excluding illness-related
absences beyond sick pay (extended sick leave) primarily reflects the development of short- and medium-term illnesses. The
effects of demographic change in the Group and the corresponding increase in the average age of employees contribute, among
other things, to a linear increase in the number of long-term illnesses. The focus is basically on limiting or reversing the sickness
rate, which is increasing due to seasonal and age-related absences, among other things. Beginning with the reporting for 2019,
the Executive Board has limited the Group sickness rate to the German Group companies. Due to different regional legal
regulations, but also due to the personnel structures that differ in the German Group companies, the sick leave rate in the
international Group companies plays a subordinate role for local management. The objective, for both the Fraport Group in
Germany as well as for Fraport AG, is a maximum rate of 7.2% by 2025. Moreover, the focus for occupational health and safety
in the Group currently continues to be on measures to cope with the coronavirus pandemic.
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Climate protection

The operation of an airport and air traffic have various effects on the environment. Fraport is committed to the due and proper
consideration of the environmental requirements associated with this. Fraport’'s environmental policy places importance on the
sustainable and careful use of natural resources. As part of this effort, environmental management systems have been introduced
and implemented at Fraport AG as well as in all fully consolidated Group companies that are classified as “fundamentally envi-
ronmentally relevant” based on their business activities. The Executive Board has determined CO. emissions as the most
important key figure for measuring environmental impact. In 2021, Fraport adjusted its Group-wide targets and terms for CO;
emissions in order to make an active contribution to climate neutrality. The objective is to reduce CO, emissions that are directly
or indirectly attributable to Fraport AG and the fully consolidated Group airports to 120,000 metric tons by 2030. If necessary, the
objective will be adjusted to any changes in Fraport’'s airport portfolio. Fraport AG seeks to reduce CO;, emissions at Frankfurt
Airport to 75,000 metric tons by 2030. This is also an important step toward climate neutrality, which is to be achieved in 2045.
By this time, Fraport wants to be completely CO,-free. Along the way, Fraport has set interim goals for itself. By 2040, CO.
emissions are to be reduced to 40,000 metric tons in the Group and to 25,000 metric tons at Fraport AG. Compensation is excluded
when targets are achieved (“Net Zero Carbon” according to the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change).

Finance Management

The core objectives of finance management of Fraport AG are securing liquidity, limiting financial risks, achieving an
appropriate level of profitability, and ensuring flexibility. The highest priority is to secure liquidity. Based on the Group’s solid
shareholders’ equity base, this is generally secured through both internal financing via operating cash flow and external financing
in the form of debt. Simple and transparent financing concepts are being pursued in connection with how financing is structured
at Fraport AG as well as in the international business activities. Financial risks caused, among other things, by foreign currencies
are met first and foremost by financing in the respective currency to the extent possible (natural hedging). The following section
shows how finance management is implemented at Fraport AG.

To secure liquidity within the scope of its finance management, Fraport AG aims to achieve balanced financing composed of
bilateral loans, private placements/bonds (capital market), loan financing from public loan institutions, and promissory note loans.
The significant financing measures at Fraport AG are related mainly to ensuring operational liquidity, refinancing existing financial
maturities, and to the capital requirement, particularly for capital expenditure in Terminal 3 at the Frankfurt site. In addition, the
negative free cash flow in fiscal year 2021 had to be offset by various financing measures. This negative free cash flow resulted,
on the one hand, from the capital expenditure on expansion projects, but, on the other hand, it was increased further by the
continued low passenger numbers as a result of the coronavirus pandemic. Despite the demanding financing environment, Fraport
AG succeeded not only in obtaining the required funds on the capital market, but also in substantially increasing its liquidity
reserve. Among the financing instruments used, the issuance of a bond in the first quarter in the amount of €1.1 billion is particu-
larly noteworthy. Appropriate financing instruments are selected based on the situation, i.e., depending on how attractive the price
is, the respective availability of the volume of the financing, and complying with a balanced financing mix. In keeping with the long-
term nature of capital expenditure, the financing of these projects is mostly long term as well. In line with the finance policy, loans
can be borrowed both at a fixed and at a floating interest rate. To reduce interest rate risks from borrowing with floating interest
rates, interest rate hedging transactions can be concluded as a rule. In addition, Fraport AG has a strategic liquidity reserve to
ensure its independence from financing sources. To cover payments expected in the short term, Fraport AG holds time deposits
and liquid securities with a short remaining term. Fraport AG limits default risks in its liquidity reserves with broadly diversified
investment. Within Asset Management, investment primarily takes place in corporate bonds with an investment grade rating. The
majority of the investments concern listed corporate bonds and promissory note loans, commercial paper, and time deposits at
banks. All the investments are fungible or can be liquidated at any time on short notice.

The majority of the fully consolidated Group companies in Germany are integrated into the Fraport AG cash pool. The liquidity in
these Group companies is permanently guaranteed — via access to their own liquidity at any time as well as, within the scope of
the agreements also concluded in some cases, to the financial resources of Fraport AG — so that external financing is not neces-
sary. At the same time, the close connection of these companies to Fraport AG also ensures that attention is paid to other strategic
objectives of financial management within these Group companies.
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For the fully consolidated foreign Group companies and the Group companies included using the equity method, liquidity is
secured depending on the relevant company shareholding, either by concluding project financing, bilateral loans, or by internal
provision of funding via a Group loan or shareholders’ equity. Taking into account the specific characteristics of a project as well
as the local conditions, a decision is reached on how the necessary financing is provided to the fully consolidated Group compa-
nies. As a rule, Group companies included using the equity method are used in classic project financing structures in which the
risk for Fraport AG is generally limited to the transferred capital and, where applicable, additionally necessary assumption of
liability.

The substantial strategic financing measures in the foreign Group companies relate, in particular, to the expansion commitments
within the framework of the concession agreements for Lima and Antalya.

Regarding the financing of capital expenditure in Brazil, further drawdowns from the loan agreements concluded in 2018 in the
local currency were made in fiscal year 2021. Since the capital expenditure measures have essentially been completed, only a
few withdrawals for the remaining projects will be made in the coming months. It is planned to finance the existing expansion
commitments in Lima with a financing mix consisting of shareholders” equity to be additionally contributed, the operating cash
flow, and external financing. Over US$450 million in financing was obtained in 2020 as an initial step in procuring external capital.

Due to the effects on the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021, the financing and liquidity analysis
in the “Asset and financial position” chapter relates to Fraport AG and the fully consolidated Group companies in Germany and
abroad. Further substantial financial risks and opportunities are indicated in the risk and opportunities report.

Value added

In addition to the ROFRA, Fraport uses the value added as a measure of economic enhancement. The value added is annually
consolidated and recorded at Group and at segment level. It is calculated from the “adjusted” EBIT, which also includes the results
before taxes of the Group companies accounted for using the equity method, minus the Fraport assets multiplied by the WACC.
The calculation of the Fraport assets is shown in the “Control” chapter.

Calculation of the value added

Adjusted EBIT - Fraport-Assets X WACC

The goal is to generate value added of zero for the regulated Aviation segment, and generate clearly positive values added for
the other segments.

Fraport calculates the weighted average cost of capital (WACC) using the capital asset pricing model and uses this regulatory
specific WACC to calculate its airport charges. Given the continuously changing economic environment, interest rate levels, and/or
Fraport’s risk and financing structure, Fraport regularly reviews, and, if needed, adjusts its WACC. The WACC is also used for the
value management of the Fraport Group. The WACC for the fiscal year declined compared to the previous year to 6.1% (before
taxes, 2020: 6.4%). For details on the use and calculation of the cost of capital in the context of impairment tests, please refer to
note 4 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The WACC is comprised as follows:

Calculation of the WACC

Cost of equity Cost of debt
Equity cost rate Debt cost rate
before taxes 10.1% before taxes 2.4%

Debt ratio 47%
(interest-bearing 34% /
non interest-bearing 13%)

WACC before taxes 6.1%

Shareholders’ equity ratio 53%
(based on market value)

Legal Disclosures

As a listed corporation headquartered in Germany, Fraport AG is subject to a number of statutory disclosure requirements.
Important reporting obligations that apply to this combined management report as a result of these requirements are shown in the
following.

Takeover-related disclosures

The capital stock of Fraport AG is €924,687,040. It is divided into 92,468,704 no-par-value bearer shares. The company holds
treasury shares (77,365 shares), which are offset from capital stock on the balance sheet. The issued capital stated in the
commercial balance sheet as at December 31, 2021 and reduced by treasury shares is €923,913,390 (92,391,339 no-par-value
bearer shares). There are no differing classes of shares. Additional information regarding treasury shares in accordance with
Section 160 (1) no. 2 of the AktG can be found in the Group notes, note 31, and Fraport AG’s Notes, note 27.

On the basis of the consortium agreement concluded between the State of Hesse and Stadtwerke Frankfurt am Main Holding
GmbH dated April 18/23, 2001 with a supplement as at December 2, 2014, the total voting rights in Fraport AG held by both
shareholders, calculated in accordance with Section 34 (2) of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), amounted to 52.02%
as at December 31, 2021. They were attributed as follows: State of Hesse 31.31% and Stadtwerke Frankfurt am Main Holding
GmbH 20.71%. The voting rights in Fraport AG owned by the City of Frankfurt/Main are held indirectly via the Stadtwerke Frankfurt
am Main Holding GmbH subsidiary. According to the last official reports in accordance with the WpHG or disclosures by individual
shareholders, other voting rights in Fraport AG were attributable as follows (as at December 31, 2021): Deutsche Lufthansa AG
8.44% and British Columbia Investment Management Corporation 3.05%. The relative ownership interests were adjusted to the
current total number of shares as at the balance sheet date, and therefore may differ from the figures given at the time of reporting
or from the respective shareholders’ own disclosures.

The appointment and dismissal of Executive Board members is carried out in compliance with the relevant provisions of AktG
(Sections 84 and 85). Pursuant to Section 179 (1) sentence 2 AktG in conjunction with Section 11 (3) of the company statutes,
the Supervisory Board is entitled to amend the company statutes only with respect to the wording. Other amendments to the
company statutes require a resolution of the AGM, which, according to Section 18 (1) of the company statutes, must be passed
in general by a simple majority of the votes cast and, provided that a capital majority is required, by a simple majority of the capital
stock represented at the time of the resolution. If, by way of exception, the law requires a higher capital majority (e.g., when
changing the purpose of the company as stated in the company statutes, Section 179 (2) sentence 1 AktG; or when creating
contingent capital, Section 193 (1) sentence 1 AktG), the resolution of the AGM has to be passed by a three-quarter majority of
the represented capital stock.
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Atthe AGM of May 23, 2017, the existing authorized capital was canceled and new authorized capital of €3.5 million was approved,
which can be used for issuing shares to employees of Fraport AG and companies controlled by Fraport AG (see also Group notes,
note 31, and Fraport AG’s Notes, note 27). The Executive Board is entitled, with the approval of the Supervisory Board, to increase
the capital stock on one or more occasions by up to a total of €3.5 million until May 22, 2022 by issuing new shares in return for
cash. The statutory subscription rights of the shareholders may be excluded. In the 2021 fiscal year, Fraport AG acquired treasury
shares for issue within the scope of the employee share program on the stock market (stock buyback as pursuant to Section 71
(1) no. 2 AktG). The option adopted at the AGM on May 23, 2017, to increase the share capital by issuing new shares in return
for cash for use within the scope of the employee share program was therefore not utilized.

At the Annual General Meeting on June 1, 2021, new authorized capital (“Authorized Capital 11") of €458.8 million was approved.
The Executive Board is entitled, with the approval of the Supervisory Board, to increase the capital stock on one or more occasions
by up to a total of €458.8 million until May 31, 2026 by issuing up to 45,884,352 new no-par value bearer shares in return for cash.
When making use of the Authorized Capital Il, shareholders have a subscription right.

In addition, the 2021 Annual General Meeting also approved an increase in the share capital by up to €120.2 million (“Conditional
Capital”). The Conditional Capital is used to grant shares to the holders or creditors of convertibles bonds and/or bonds with
warrants issued by the company up to May 31, 2026.

Report on the relationships with affiliated companies

Due to the shares of 31.31% (previous year: 31.31%) held by the State of Hesse and 20.71% (previous year: 20.48%) held by
Stadtwerke Frankfurt am Main Holding GmbH, as well as the consortium agreement concluded between these shareholders on
April 18/23, 2001 with a supplement as at December 2, 2014, Fraport AG is a publicly controlled enterprise. There are no control
or profit transfer agreements.

The Executive Board of Fraport AG therefore compiles a report on the relationships with affiliated companies in accordance with
Section 312 of the AktG. At the end of the report, the Executive Board made the following statement: “The Executive Board
declares that under the circumstances known to us at the time, Fraport AG received fair and adequate compensation for each
and every legal transaction conducted. During the reporting year, measures were neither taken nor omitted at the request of or in
the interests of the State of Hesse and the City of Frankfurt am Main and their affiliated companies.”

Joint Statement on Corporate Governance

The Fraport AG Executive Board reports — in the name of the Supervisory Board as well — on the contents subject to the reporting
requirements pursuant to Section 289f of the German Commercial Code (HGB) for Fraport AG as well as for the Fraport Group
as part of a joint statement on corporate governance pursuant to Sections 289f and 315d of the HGB in conjunction with Section
289f of the HGB, in order to enable a general statement on the Group's corporate governance principles. The Joint Statement on
Corporate Governance is published in the “To Our Shareholders” chapter and on the corporate website at
https://www.fraport.com/en/investors/corporate-governance.htmi.

Information in accordance with the German Energy Economics Act (EnWG)

Fraport AG operates its own energy supply network and in mid-2011 applied for the status of “closed distribution network”, which
is associated with considerable benefits compared to general supply networks. In accordance with the requirements of Section
6b of the EnWG, Fraport AG is obliged to prepare separate business statements. The regulations were applied in accordance
with the requirements of the Federal Network Agency in the 2021 annual financial statements.
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Economic Report
General Statement of the Executive Board
In the past fiscal year, most of the Group airports recorded an increase in passenger numbers.

Compared to the previous year, Group revenue increased by €466.3 million to €2,143.3 million (+27.8%). Adjusted for revenue
from construction and expansion services based on the application of IFRIC 12, revenue increased by €449.1 million to
€1,901.6 million (+30.9%). The positive development is primarily attributable to the Group-wide traffic recovery in fiscal year 2021.

Other operating income in the reporting period increased to €354.6 million, up €272.8 million on the previous year. This is mainly
a result of the compensation of €159.8 million granted by both the German Federal Government and the State of Hesse for the
holding costs incurred in the first lockdown in 2020. In addition, other operating income was positively impacted by the agreement
reached by Fraport Greece to offset the effects of the coronavirus pandemic of €92.8 million and the compensation claims made
by the two Brazilian Group companies in the amount of €26.5 million. The waiver of further short-term minimum lease payments
at the Group company Fraport USA in the amount of €35.2 million also had a positive effect.

Non-staff costs (cost of materials and other operating expenses) increased compared to the previous year by €59.4 million to
€894.6 million (+7.1%). Adjusted for expenses related to the application of IFRIC 12, expenses increased by €42.2 million (+6.9%).
Personnel expenses decreased significantly compared to personnel expenses before special items in the previous year
(-€28.8 million or 3.2%), due to the headcount reduction. Group EBITDA came to €757.0 million (+€1,007.6 million). Slightly lower
depreciation and amortization (—€14.2 million) and an improved financial result of 4€197.3 million led to a positive Group result of
€91.8 million (previous year: 4€690.4 million).

The free cash flow improved noticeably to -€772.3 million (previous year: —€1,400.0 million). This was mainly due to the positive
Group result, which was influenced, among other things, by the non-recurring cash effects in connection with reimbursed holding
costs and security services in previous years. Net financial debt increased by €836.2 million to €6,369.7 million in connection with
the negative free cash flow and the correspondingly extensive financing measures. The gearing ratio reached a level of 169.7%
(value as at December 31, 2020: 152.9%).

Overall, the Executive Board continues to describe the operational and, in turn, financial development in the reporting period as
positive yet difficult, given the ongoing effects of the coronavirus pandemic.

Macroeconomic, legal, and industry-specific conditions

Development of the macroeconomic conditions

The global economy continued to recover in 2021, even though it was still affected by the coronavirus pandemic. While the
economy recovered significantly in spring/summer due to the progress with vaccinations and declining infection numbers in many
countries, at the end of the reporting year it was once again burdened by the increasing number of infections, first with the Delta
variant of the coronavirus and most recently with the significantly more infectious Omicron virus variant. Global supply bottlenecks
for important raw materials and intermediate goods also led to production restrictions in the industry. Measures to combat the
pandemic had a negative impact on the service sector. In the course of the second half of the year, many countries in the world
saw inflationary strains, mainly due to significantly higher energy prices and the aforementioned supply bottlenecks in many
countries.

Economic development in the euro area was strong in the second and third quarters, but slowed down again in the fourth quarter
due to the pandemic. France and ltaly, in particular, contributed to the economic recovery of the euro area. However, both coun-
tries recorded comparatively sharp slumps in the previous year. In Germany, private consumption proved to be an economic
driving force in the summer, while the continuing shortage of intermediate goods slowed down the industry. Overall, economic
development in Germany was weaker than the European average.
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In the United States, gross domestic product was again above the pre-crisis level thanks to an increase in consumption until just
before the end of the year. In Japan, the development of gross domestic product suffered from the sharp increase in coronavirus
infections due to the spread of the Delta variant in the summer months, which significantly weakened consumption. The emerging
markets had already exceeded the pre-crisis level of gross domestic product in 2020, mainly due to China’s rapid and sustained
recovery — even if local coronavirus outbreaks repeatedly led to noticeable restrictions there. Overall, economic development in
emerging markets has been mixed. While the economy in Peru expanded strongly, the Brazilian economy suffered from the slump
in agricultural production due to drought. In Russia, the restrictions in connection with the pandemic were low by international
standards, so that the coronavirus pandemic played a subordinate role in the economic development despite the comparatively
low vaccination rate.

Global trade initially recovered significantly in the reporting year 2021 after the slump in the previous year. However, global supply
bottlenecks dampened momentum over the course of the year.

Gross domestic product (GDP)/world trade"

Real changes compared to the previous year in % 2021 2020
World +5.9 -35
Eurozone +5.2 -7.2
Germany +2.7 -5.0
USA +5.0 -3.4
Latin America +6.8 -6.9
China +8.1 -2.3
Japan +1.6 -5.1
World trade +9.3 -9.6

2020 and 2021 figures: Data and estimates based on International Monetary Fund (IMF, January 2022);
German GDP: The Federal Statistical Office, Press release (February 14, 2022).

The price of crude oil and the exchange rates for the Fraport Group developed as follows in 2021:

Crude oil Erice and signiﬁcant exchange rates for Fragort 2021
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Development of the legal conditions
During the past fiscal year, there were no changes to the legal conditions that had a significant influence on the business
development of the Fraport Group.
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Development of industry-specific conditions

According to the preliminary figures from Airports Council International (ACI), global passenger traffic increased by 30.1% in the
period from January to November 2021 compared to the same period the previous year. Air freight volume rose by 16.6%.
European airports also recorded a jump in passenger numbers of 31.2%. In terms of air freight, European airports posted an
increase of 21.4%. The passenger numbers at German airports recovered slightly by 14.3% Cargo tonnage increased by 18.2%.

Passenger and cargo development by region 2021

Changes compared to the previous year in % Passengers 2021 Air freight 2021

January until November January until November
Germany 14.3 18.2
Europe 31.2 214
North America 66.1 11.7
Latin America 54.2 24.7
Middle East 20.5 17.0
Asia-Pacific -11.2 18.1
Africa 45.4 8.9
World 30.1 16.6

Source: ACI Pax Flash and Freight Flash (ACI 11/2021, January 27, 2022), ADV for Germany; cargo instead of air freight (ADV 11/2021, as on December 22, 2021).

Business Development

Development at the Frankfurt site

The 2021 fiscal year was marked by the coronavirus pandemic right from the start. Compared to the previous year, in which the
early months were not yet fully impacted by the pandemic, passenger numbers increased by 32.2% to 24.8 million passengers.
Compared to the pre-crisis level of 2019, however, passenger numbers remained significantly lower at -64.8%.

In domestic traffic (+8.9%), the primary connections with Berlin, Hamburg, Munich, and Disseldorf stood out in particular. Due
to the combining of intercontinental services in Frankfurt, feeder traffic from Munich and Hamburg performed above average
year-on-year. While European traffic (+43.4%) initially started weaker at the beginning of the year, the return of holiday travelers
led to a significant increase in traffic with classic holiday destinations in southern and southeastern Europe. The Canary Islands,
Greece, and Cyprus were very close to the passenger volumes from 2019. Intercontinental traffic (+20.5%) remained far from
normal until the North American market opened in the fourth quarter. The opening then ensured a rapid increase in demand in
traffic with North America. By contrast, the Far East remained significantly below the previous year’s level due to strict travel
restrictions and a noticeable reluctance to travel.

Cargo volume grew by 18.7% to around 2.3 million metric tons. This was the best annual result in the history of Frankfurt Airport.
The driver for this growth was air freight, which more than compensated for the decline in airmail traffic. Cargo traffic as a whole
benefited from the recovery of the global economy. In particular, Far East traffic, especially Japan but also India and South Korea,
contributed to the growth.

Compared to the previous year, aircraft movements rose by 23.4% to 261,927 takeoffs and landings. Passenger flights increased
by 25.9% and freight traffic by 9.9% compared to the previous year’s figures. And compared to the pre-crisis year of 2019, aircraft
movements were at a level of 51.0%. At 64.1%, the passenger flight seat loads, which fell significantly in 2020 as a result of the
coronavirus pandemic, were around 6 percentage points above the previous year’s figure. Nevertheless, it fell short of the
pre-crisis figure of 2019 by 16 percentage points. The passengers per passenger movement figure developed in a similar manner
compared to the previous year, rising by around 5% to 114.0.

Maximum take-off weights also increased by 18.9% to 17.7 million metric tons, accounting for 55.5% of the total volume in 2019.
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Development outside the Frankfurt site

Also in 2021, the development of passenger traffic at Ljubljana Airport continued to be influenced by the effects of the coronavirus
pandemic. At approximately 0.4 million, passenger numbers increased by 46.4% compared to the previous year. The persistently
tense situation regarding infection levels slowed down the traffic recovery and led to a significantly reduced flight offer in the first
half of the year. With the partial lifting of restrictions, increasing immunization rates and the start of the holiday season, traffic
volumes rebounded in the second half of the year.

The two Brazilian airports, Fortaleza and Porto Alegre, were again severely affected by the coronavirus pandemic in 2021.
Particularly toward the end of the first and second quarters, a second wave of the pandemic in Brazil with high numbers of
infections had a negative impact on passenger numbers. Domestic air traffic gradually recovered in the second half of the year
and, in the absence of international tourist destinations, also benefited from increased interest in domestic holiday destinations
such as Fortaleza and Porto Alegre. High seat load factors confirmed this growing demand. Overall, a total of 8.8 million passen-
gers used the two airports. This corresponds to growth of +31.2% compared to 2020. International connections remained
temporarily suspended in 2021 due to quarantine and entry restrictions as well as a lack of demand. In the second half of the
year, the routes to Panama City from Porto Alegre and to Lisbon from Fortaleza were again regularly served, and the Fortaleza —
Paris connection was also resumed in October. Fortaleza welcomed 3.9 million domestic (+29.3%) and around 0.1 million inter-
national passengers (—49.7%) for the full year; Porto Alegre recorded 4.8 million domestic passengers (+38.9%) and around
0.05 million international passengers (—56.3%).

Over the course of 2021, the volume of traffic at Lima Airport recovered significantly compared to the previous year. After the
second wave of the pandemic in January and February, the rest of the year was marked by a gradual resumption of destinations
depending on the lifting of the respective travel and entry restrictions. A total of 10.8 million passengers were counted at Lima
Airport in 2021, an increase of +53.6% compared to 2020. Overall, domestic passenger operations were less affected by
restrictions, which led to an above-average increase with around 7.7 million passengers (+66.1%). International traffic, on the
other hand, recorded a below-average increase and contributed to growth with 3.1 million passengers (+29.7%).

At around 17.4 million passengers, Fraport Greece recorded an increase of over 100% in the 2021 reporting period compared to
the previous year. After the first half of the year was marked by travel restrictions and great restraint on the part of passengers,
passenger numbers recovered massively in the summer months from July onwards. This trend continued until late fall. Overall,
domestic traffic was 53.6% above the previous year’s level, while international traffic grew by more than 100%. The largest number
of foreign passengers in the reporting year 2021 came from Germany (around 19%), followed by Great Britain (just under 11%),
and Italy (around 6%).

At Varna and Burgas airports in Bulgaria, the number of passengers in 2021 was approximately 2.0 million passengers, +87.8%
above the previous year’s figure. After a weak start, marked by continued travel warnings and bans at the beginning of the year,
passenger numbers increased by more than 100% at both airports. The reasons for this were increasing demand for travel to the
Bulgarian Black Sea coast in the important summer months as well as relaxed international travel restrictions due to declining
infection rates. For the year as a whole, this led to a strong increase in both domestic (+49.8%) and international passenger
volumes (+93.2%). Most of the passengers came from Germany (around 23%), Poland (around 17%), and the Czech Republic
(just under 10%).

Passenger numbers at Antalya Airport in the 2021 fiscal year were around 21.9 million (previous year: 9.7 million). The main
reason for this is the significantly higher demand for holiday travel to Turkey compared to the previous year, which was particularly
evident in the main season. In addition, the existing restrictions on international air traffic had less of an impact on Antalya Airport
in 2021 than in 2020. While Turkish domestic traffic showed a growth rate of +48.2%, the number of international passengers rose
very strongly by over 100%. The largest passenger groups were travelers from Russia (around 40%), Germany (approximately
18%), and Ukraine (approximately 14%).

St. Petersburg Airport recorded an increase of 64.8% to 18.0 million passengers in 2021. While international traffic continued to
be affected by restrictions as a result of the coronavirus pandemic, domestic traffic recovered mainly due to strong demand for
connections to Russia’s holiday regions, which exceeded the pre-crisis level in 2019. Domestic traffic increased by 63.4%
year-on-year to 15.5 million passengers, while international traffic increased by 73.9% to 2.5 million passengers.
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The number of passengers at Xi’an Airport was around 30.2 million in the past fiscal year and thus slightly below the previous
year (—2.9%). Mainly dominated by domestic traffic, the airport’s traffic figures were particularly influenced by the constantly
changing travel restrictions in response to the coronavirus pandemic. In the second and third quarters in particular, passenger
numbers were clearly above the previous year’s level, but clearly lower in the fourth quarter due to stronger local restrictions.
International traffic remained at a notably reduced level over the entire year of 2021 due to existing travel restrictions.

Traffic development at the Group sites

Airport Share in % Passengers“ Cargo (air freight + air mail in m. t.) Movements
2021 Change in % 2021 Change in % 2021 Change in %”
Frankfurt 100 24,812,849 +32.2 2,274,970 +18.8 261,927 +23.4
Ljubljana 100 421,934 +46.4 11,401 +8.0 17,461 +34.5
Fortaleza 100 3,974,759 +25.9 32,725 +11.5 41,343 +25.7
Porto Alegre 100 4,839,594 +35.9 30,337 +36.8 49,278 +30.0
Lima 80.01 10,819,010 +53.6 219,203 +15.1 102,005 +39.2
Fraport Greece 73.4 17,428,536 > 100 5,630 +5.6 183,218 +81.4
Twin Star 60 1,964,896 +87.8 4,703 +19.6 17,534 +60.0
Burgas 60 954,402 > 100 4,669 +20.1 8,295 > 100
Varna 60 1,010,494 +62.4 34 -23.9 9,239 +34.3
Antalya 51/503’ 21,919,453 > 100 n.a. n.a. 133,800 > 100
St. Petersburg 25 18,034,415 +64.8 n.a. n.a. 153,539 +46.2
Xi'an 245 30,173,312 -2.9 395,604 +5.1 255,873 +0.5
" Commercial traffic only, in + out + transit.
2 As a result of late submissions, there may be changes to the figures reported for the previous year.
% Share of voting rights: 51 %, dividend share: 50 %.
Comparison with the forecasted development
Airport 2021 Adjustments during the year Forecast 2020 2020 2019"
[Interim Report Q2/6M 2021] Interim Release Q3/9M 2021
Upper end of the forecasted range of less than 20 million to
Frankfurt 24,812,849 | 25 million passengers Under 20 million up to 25 million 18,768,601 70,556,072
[Due to ongoing or reintroduced travel restrictions, there
may therefore be deviations from the forecast given in the
2020 Annual Report]. Approximately 40% of the passenger volume
Ljubljana 421,934 | There may be deviations from the forecast given. of 2019 288,235 1,721,355
[Due to ongoing or reintroduced travel restrictions, there
may therefore be deviations from the forecast given in the
Fortaleza 3,974,759 2020 Annual Report]. More than half of the passengers from 2019 3,156,418 7,218,697
[Due to ongoing or reintroduced travel restrictions, there
may therefore be deviations from the forecast given in the
Porto Alegre 4,839,594 | 2020 Annual Report]. More than half of the passengers from 2019 3,561,630 8,298,205
[Due to ongoing or reintroduced travel restrictions, there
may therefore be deviations from the forecast given in the
Lima 10,819,010 ' 2020 Annual Report]. Less than 50% compared to 2019 7,043,602 23,578,600
[Due to ongoing or reintroduced travel restrictions, there
may therefore be deviations from the forecast given in the | Slightly more than half of the passenger
Fraport Greece 17,428,536 2020 Annual Report]. volume of 2019 8,611,780 30,152,728
[Due to ongoing or reintroduced travel restrictions, there
may therefore be deviations from the forecast given in the
2020 Annual Report]. Slightly more than half of the passenger
Twin Star 1,964,896 There may be deviations from the forecast given. volume of 2019 1,046,467 4,970,095
[Due to ongoing or reintroduced travel restrictions, there
may therefore be deviations from the forecast given in the
Antalya 21,919,453 | 2020 Annual Report]. Approximately 60% of the volume from 2019 9,713,650 35,483,190
[Due to ongoing or reintroduced travel restrictions, there
may therefore be deviations from the forecast given in the
St. Petersburg 18,034,415 2020 Annual Report]. 70% of the pre-crisis level from 2019 10,944,421 19,581,262
[Due to ongoing or reintroduced travel restrictions, there
may therefore be deviations from the forecast given in the | Stronger recovery than 70% of the pre-crisis
Xi’an 30,173,312 | 2020 Annual Report]. level from 2019 31,083,681 47,220,745

" As a result of late submissions, there may be changes to the figures reported for the previous year.

At the Group airports in Ljubljana and the two Bulgarian airports in Varna and Burgas as well as the Group airport Xi’an,
there were deviations from the forecast 2020 as a result of the pandemic-related travel restrictions. Passenger numbers in
St. Petersburg developed better than forecasted in 2020 due to stronger demand for Russian domestic air travel.
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The Group’s Results of Operations

Compared to the previous year, Group revenue increased by €466.3 million to €2,143.3 million. Adjusted for revenue from
construction and expansion services based on the application of IFRIC 12, revenue increased by €449.1 million to €1,901.6 million
(+30.9%). The positive development is due, in particular, to the Group-wide recovery in traffic in the 2021 fiscal year, which led to
a clear increase in revenue from airport charges (+€73.1 million) and ground services (+43.3 million) at the Frankfurt site. In
addition, the agreement reached with the German Federal Police concerning billed aviation security services in recent years had
a positive effect of €57.8 million on revenue. Outside of Frankfurt, contributions to adjusted revenue growth came from Fraport
Greece (+€120.0 million) and the Group company Lima (+€36.3 million).

Other operating income in fiscal year 2021 increased to €354.6 million, up €272.8 million on the previous year. This is mainly a
result of the compensation of €159.8 million granted by both the German Federal Government and the State of Hesse for the
holding costs incurred in the first lockdown in 2020. In addition, other operating income was positively impacted by the agreement
reached by Fraport Greece to offset the effects of the coronavirus pandemic of €92.8 million and the compensation claims made
by the two Brazilian Group companies in the amount of €26.5 million. The waiver of further short-term minimum lease payments
at the Group company Fraport USA in the amount of €35.2 million also had a positive effect.

Non-staff costs (cost of materials and other operating expenses) increased compared to the previous year by €59.4 million to
€894.6 million (+7.1%). Adjusted for expenses related to the application of IFRIC 12, expenses increased by €42.2 million (+6.9%).
This increase resulted primarily from higher concession charges at the Group’s international airports compared to the previous
year due to the positive traffic development.

Personnel expenses decreased by €28.8 million to €884.3 million (-3.2%) compared to personnel expenses before special items
in the previous year, due to the headcount reduction and other countermeasures in personnel management. Taking into account
the expenses incurred in the previous year for the “Zukunft FRA — Relaunch 50” program at the Frankfurt site as well as expenses
from personnel management measures at the other Group companies in the amount of €299.0 million, Group personnel expenses
decreased by €327.8 million (—27.0%) in the reporting period.

At €757.0 million, Group EBITDA was €1,007.6 million higher than in the previous year (previous year: -€250.6 million). The
year-on-year increase in Group EBITDA before special items amounted to €708.6 million. The EBITDA margin was thus 35.3%
(EBITDA margin before special items in the previous year: 2.9%). In terms of Group revenue adjusted for contract revenue in
connection with IFRIC 12, the EBITDA margin amounted to 39.8% (EBITDA margin before special items in the previous year:
3.3%).

Lower depreciation and amortization (—€14.2 million), in particular due to adjustments in the context of the useful life assess-
ment, resulted in Group EBIT of €313.7 million (previous year: —<€708.1 million).

The financial result increased by €27.8 million to -€197.3 million (previous year: —-€225.1 million). This was mainly due to the
result from companies accounted for using the equity method which improved by €73.8 million, which was significantly influenced
by the positive development at the Group company Antalya. In addition, interest income increased by €16.4 million as a result of
the agreement with the German Federal Police in the amount of €17.5 million. The other financial result of €8.8 million (previous
year: —€4.3 million) mainly included positive valuation effects from the Greece share option and other derivatives. This was offset
by higher interest expenses (+€75.5 million) due to further extensive financing measures in fiscal year 2021.

Group EBT amounted to €116.4 million in the reporting period (previous year: —€933.2 million). With income tax expenses
of €24.6 million (previous year: income tax relief of €242.8 million), the Group result was €91.8 million (previous year:
—€690.4 million) and resulted in basic earnings per share of €0.90 (previous year: —€7.12).
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Development of the Group's financial figures

Fraport Annual Report 2021

€ million 2021 2020 Change Change in %
Revenue 2,143.3 1,677.0 +466.3 +27.8
Revenue adjusted for IFRIC 12 1,901.6 1,452.5 +449.1 +30.9
Personnel expenses before special items 884.3 913.1 -28.8 -3.2
Personnel expenses 884.3 1,212.1 -327.8 -27.0
Cost of materials 750.7 688.6 +62.1 +9.0
EBITDA before special items 757.0 48.4 +708.6 >100
EBITDA 757.0 -250.6 +1,007.6 -
Depreciation and amortization 443.3 457.5 -14.2 -3.1
EBIT 313.7 -708.1 +1,021.8 -
Number of employees as of December 31 17,781 19,884 -2,103 -10.6
Average number of employees 18,419 21,164 -2,745 -13.0
Comparison with the forecasted development
€ million 2019 | Adjustments during the year Forecast 2020 2020 Change Change in %
[Interim Report Q2/6M 2021]
Interim Release Q3/9M 2021
Revenue 2,143.3 | [Slightly above €2.0 billion] Around €2.0 billion 1,677.0 +466.3 +27.8
[Approximately €460 million to
€610 million]
Between €650 million and up to | Approximately €300 million to
EBITDA 757.0 | slightly above €700 million €450 million -250.6 +1,007.6 > 100
[In positive area]
Between €200 million and up to
EBIT 313.7 | slightly above €250 million Slightly negative -708.1 +1,021.8 > 100
[Slightly negative to slightly
positive]
Group result 91.8 | Positive Negative -690.4 +782.2 > 100
Dividend per share in € 0.00 | No distribution No distribution 0.00 0.0 -

Given the impact of the coronavirus pandemic, adjustments to the forecast were made during the 2021 fiscal year. The one-off
effects recognized in the fourth quarter of 2021 in connection with the compensation claims made by the two Brazilian Group
companies and at the Group company Fraport USA also had a positive impact on earnings. As a result, there were deviations in
the given forecasts with regard to EBITDA, EBIT, and the Group result.
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Results of Operations for Segments

of €440.9 million. This was due to increased revenue from security services (+€73.9 million), which was positively
influenced by an agreement reached with the German Federal Police concerning billed aviation security services in
recent years in the amount of €57.8 million, as well as higher revenue from airport charges, which rose clearly from €288.6 million
to €361.7 million (+€73.1 million) due to the higher traffic volume compared to the previous year. Other income in the segment
was €187.9 million and consisted mainly of the compensation payment of €159.8 million granted by the German Federal Govern-
ment and the State of Hesse to cover the holding costs incurred during the first lockdown in 2020.

E Revenue in the Aviation segment increased by 33.3% to €587.5 million, clearly higher than the previous year’s figure

Personnel expenses in the amount of €284.4 million decreased by €21.8 million compared to personnel expenses before special
items from the previous year. Overall, operating expenses fell by 16.7% to €695.0 million.

EBITDA increased massively by €344.5 million compared to EBITDA before special items in the previous year to €160.2 million.
Virtually unchanged depreciation and amortization (-3.9%) led to segment EBIT of €25.8 million (previous year:
-€420.6 million).

Aviation

€ million 2021 2020 Change Change in %
Revenue 587.5 440.9 +146.6 +33.3
Personnel expenses before special items 284.4 306.2 -21.8 -7.1
Personnel expenses 284.4 402.6 -118.2 -29.4
Cost of materials 60.1 73.3 -13.2 -18.0
EBITDA before special items 160.2 -184.3 +344.5 -
EBITDA 160.2 —280.7 +440.9 -
Depreciation and amortization 134.4 139.9 -5.5 -3.9
EBIT 25.8 —-420.6 +446.4 -
Number of employees as of December 31 5,220 6,136 -916 -14.9
Average number of employees 5,476 6,365 —889 -14.0

/\ Revenue in the Retail & Real Estate segment in fiscal year 2021 increased by €294.6 million to €319.1 million
'ﬁ (+8.3%). The main drivers were higher parking revenue in the amount of €51.4 million (+18.2%) due to traffic volumes

B and higher real estate revenue amounting to €168.8 million (+3.6%). The key figure for net retail revenue per passenger
fell to €3.30 in the reporting period (previous year: €4.73).

Personnel expenses increased slightly compared to personnel expenses before special items in the same period in the previous
year by 3.3% to €43.9 million. With higher non-staff expenses (+6.1%), EBITDA amounted to €250.8 million. Compared to EBITDA
before special items in the previous year, this represented an increase of €20.1 million (+8.7%). A slight decrease in depreciation
and amortization (-7.0%) resulted in segment EBIT of €165.6 million (+34.7%).

Retail & Real Estate

€ million 2021 2020 Change Change in %
Revenue gile) 1l 294.6 +24.5 +8.3
Personnel expenses before special items 43.9 42.5 +1.4 +3.3
Personnel expenses 43.9 58.7 -14.8 -25.2
Cost of materials 107.9 100.7 +7.2 +7.1
EBITDA before special items 250.8 230.7 +20.1 +8.7
EBITDA 250.8 214.5 +36.3 +16.9
Depreciation and amortization 85.2 91.6 -6.4 -7.0
EBIT 165.6 122.9 +42.7 +34.7
Number of employees as of December 31 574 595 -21 -3.5

Average number of employees 608 614 -6 -1.0
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In the 2021 fiscal year, revenue in the Ground Handling segment stood at €386.4 million and was thus €67.2 million
higher than in the previous year (+21.1%). This was mainly due to increased revenue from ground services (+24.3%)
and higher infrastructure charges (+18.4%) based on the increase in traffic volume.

Compared to personnel expenses before special items in the previous year, personnel expenses remained roughly at the previous
year’s level (+0.1%). Compared to the same period of the previous year, lower personnel expenses due to the headcount reduction
as part of the strategic program “Zukunft FRA — Relaunch 50” were offset by fewer short-time work schedules in connection with
the recovery in traffic. Non-staff costs (cost of materials and other operating expenses) increased slightly to €562.2 million (+8.8%).

Segment EBITDA increased by €53.4 million year-on-year compared to EBITDA before special items but remained in negative
territory at -€72.2 million. With lower depreciation and amortization of €37.3 million (-5.6%), segment EBIT amounted to

-€109.5 million (+€195.4 million).

Ground Handling

€ million 2021 2020 Change Change in %
Revenue 386.4 319.2 +67.2 +21.1
Personnel expenses before special items 3133 3131 +0.2 +0.1
Personnel expenses 313.3 452.9 -139.6 -30.8
Cost of materials 33.8 31.0 +2.8 +9.0
EBITDA before special items -72.2 -125.6 +53.4 +42.5
EBITDA -72.2 —-265.4 +193.2 +72.8
Depreciation and amortization 37.3 39.5 -2.2 -5.6
EBIT -109.5 -304.9 +195.4 +64.1
Number of employees as of December 31 6,816 7,714 —898 -11.6
Average number of employees 6,937 8,457 -1,520 -18.0

In the year under review, revenue from the International Activities & Services segment rose by €228.0 million to
@' €850.3 million (+36.6%). Adjusted for the revenue relating to capacitive capital expenditure based on the application of
IFRIC 12, revenue was €608.6 million (+53.0%). The adjusted increase in revenue was primarily attributable at all
Group airports to the higher volume of traffic compared to the same period in the previous year. The holiday destinations in
Greece, in particular, benefited from the recovery in traffic in the summer months, and Fraport Greece thus recorded revenue
growth adjusted for IFRIC 12 of €120.0 million.

There was a positive effect on other operating income of €174.7 million in the reporting period due to the waiver of the fixed
concession payments of €92.8 million for the years 2019 to 2022 at Fraport Greece and the waiver of fixed minimum lease
payments at Fraport USA in the amount of €35.2 million. In addition, the compensation claims made by the two Brazilian Group
companies in the amount of €26.5 million as well as the compensation for the airport closure in 2020 and the reimbursement of
fixed costs at the Group company Fraport Slovenija in the amount of €6.6 million had a positive effect on the segment’s other
operating income.

The cost of materials in the segment amounted to €548.8 million, 13.5% higher than in the previous year (+€65.2 million). Adjusted
for expenses relating to the application of IFRIC 12, the cost of materials increased by 18.5% to €307.1 million (+€48.0 million).
This was due to higher concession charges based on traffic volumes, particularly at the Group companies Lima (+€17.1 million),
Fraport USA (+€9.6 million), and Fraport Greece (+€5.8 million). Compared to personnel expenses adjusted for special items in
the previous year, personnel expenses decreased by €8.6 million to €242.7 million.

EBITDA increased massively by €290.6 million to €418.2 million compared to EBITDA before special items in the same period
the previous year. With depreciation and amortization virtually unchanged (-€0.1 million), segment EBIT was up €337.3 million
year on year, at €231.8 million.
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International Activities & Services

€ million 2021 2020 Change Change in %
Revenue 850.3 622.3 +228.0 +36.6
Revenue adjusted for IFRIC 12 608.6 397.8 +210.8 +53.0
Personnel expenses before special items 242.7 251.3 -8.6 -3.4
Personnel expenses 242.7 297.9 -55.2 -18.5
Cost of materials 548.8 483.6 +65.2 +13.5
Cost of materials adjusted for IFRIC 12 307.1 259.1 +48.0 +18.5
EBITDA before special items 418.2 127.6 +290.6 > 100
EBITDA 418.2 81.0 +337.2 >100
Depreciation and amortization 186.4 186.5 -0.1 -0.1
EBIT 231.8 -105.5 +337.3 -
Number of employees as of December 31 5,171 5,439 -268 -4.9
Average number of employees 5,398 5,728 -330 -5.8

Development of the key Group companies outside of Frankfurt (IFRS values before consolidation)

Fully consolidated Group companies

€ million Share in Revenue" EBITDA EBIT Result
%
2021 2020 A% 2021 2020 A% 2021 2020 A% 2021 2020 A%
Fraport USA 100 67.9 39.1 +73.7 57.3 8.5 > 100 20.7 -35.1 - 8.5 -29.9 -
Fraport Slovenija 100 25187, 16.8 +29.2 7.7 -2.1 - -3.0 -13.8 +78.3 -2.6 -11.3 +77.0
Fortaleza + Porto AIegreZ) 100 68.3 88.3 -22.7 40.1 37.0 +8.4 17.6 17.6 0.0 -16.5 -16.9 +2.4
Lima 80.01 345.2 214.3 +61.1 54.7 38.5 +42.1 39.8 23.7 +67.9 11.2 5.0 > 100
Fraport Greece” 73.4 255.4 185.0 +38.1 206.4 12.9 > 100 144.0 -40.9 - 24.7 -108.3 -
Twin Star 60 293 15.3 +91.5 15.1 1.4 > 100 3.8 -10.2 - 0.9 -12.5 -
Group companies accounted for using the equity method
€ million Share in Revenue" EBITDA EBIT Result
%
2021 2020 A% 2021 2020 A% 2021 2020 A% 2021 2020 A%
Antalya 51/504) 266.6 109.6 > 100 202.7 76.2 > 100 92.1 -34.7 - 33.4 -64.5 -
Thalita/Northern Capital Gateway 25 192.5 127.0 +51.6 99.7 52.7 +89.2 68.2 20.8 > 100 -13.3 -116.6 +88.6
Xi'an 24.5 187.1 174.5 +7.2 -6.8 -4.9 -38.8 -52.6 -51.8 -1.5 —49.0 -46.6 -5.2

" Revenue adjusted for IFRIC 12: Lima 2021: €154.9 million (2020: €118.6 million); Fraport Greece 2021: €225.5 million (2020: €105.5 million);
Fortaleza + Porto Alegre: 2021: €46.8 million (2020: €39.0 million); Antalya 2021: €247.7 million (2020: €109.6 million);
Thalita/Northern Capital Gateway 2021: €188.2 million (2020: €123.9 million).
2 Sum of the Group companies Fortaleza and Porto Alegre.
3 The Group companies Fraport Regional Airports of Greece A and Fraport Regional Airports of Greece B are collectively referred to as “Fraport Greece”.
* Share of voting rights: 51%, dividend share: 50 %.

Revenue at the Group company Fraport USA increased by €28.8 million to €67.9 million in fiscal 2021 based on the recovery in
traffic. Other income was positively impacted by the waiver of fixed minimum lease payments of €35.2 million. The cost of materials
increased by €17.2 million to €32.5 million due to higher concession charges (+€9.6 million) in connection with the positive traffic
development. As a result, operating expenses increased by €4.8 million to €46.4 million (+11.6%). EBITDA rose to €57.3 million
(+€48.8 million). EBIT amounted to €20.7 million (previous year: -€35.1 million).

Despite the continued impact of the coronavirus pandemic, passenger numbers at the Group company Fraport Slovenija
developed positively, resulting in revenue of €21.7 million (+€4.9 million). The compensation for the airport closure in 2020 and
reimbursement of fixed costs in the amount of €6.6 million had a positive effect on other operating income. With a slight increase
in operating expenses to €21.1 million (+€1.0 million), EBITDA amounted to €7.7 million (previous year: -€2.1 million). EBIT
improved to -€3.0 million (previous year: -€13.8 million).

At €68.3 million, revenue at the Brazilian Group airports Fortaleza and Porto Alegre declined by €20.0 million. Adjusted for
revenue from construction and expansion services relating to the application of IFRIC 12, however, revenue increased by €7.8 mil-
lion. Other operating income was impacted by the compensation claims in the amount of €26.5 million. Cost of materials declined
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by €27.1 million to €38.9 million. Adjusted for expenses relating to the application of IFRIC 12, the cost of materials was
roughly at the same level as the previous year at €17.4 million (+€0.7 million). Personnel expenses increased to €10.4 million
(+€0.7 million). EBITDA was €40.1 million (previous year: €37.0 million); EBIT remained unchanged at €17.6 million.

Revenue at the Group company Lima increased by €130.9 million in the reporting period to €345.2 million. Adjusted for revenue
from construction and expansion services relating to the application of IFRIC 12, revenue totaled €154.9 million (+36.3%). The
main reason for this was the recovery in traffic over the course of the year. The cost of materials increased to €272.6 million
(+€113.2 million). Adjusted for expenses relating to capacitive capital expenditure based on the application of IFRIC 12, the cost
of materials rose to €82.3 million (+€18.6 million), mainly due to higher concession charges (+€17.1 million) based on traffic
volume. With a slight increase in personnel expenses (+€1.8 million), EBITDA amounted to €54.7 million (previous year: €38.5 mil-
lion). EBIT reached a value of €39.8 million (previous year: €23.7 million).

Fraport Greece benefited from the recovery in traffic, especially in the summer months, and generated revenue of €255.4 million
(+€70.4 million) in fiscal 2021. Adjusted for revenue from construction and expansion services relating to the application of IFRIC
12, the revenue increased by €120.0 million to €225.5 million. There was a positive effect on other operating income of €92.8
million due to the waiver of the fixed concession payments for the years 2019 to 2022 at Fraport Greece. The cost of materials
fell clearly in the reporting period from €133.5 million to €93.8 million following completion of expansion measures. Adjusted for
expenses relating to the application of IFRIC 12, the cost of materials increased by €10.0 million to €64.0 million, mainly due to
increases in concession charges due to traffic volume. EBITDA was €206.4 million (previous year: €12.9 million), and EBIT was
€144.0 million (previous year: -€40.9 million).

At the Group company Twin Star, revenue of €29.3 million (+€14.0 million) also reflects the positive traffic development. Slight
increases in cost of materials and personnel expenses (+€0.7 million and €+0.2 million, respectively) were offset by lower other
operating expenses (-€0.6 million). The led to EBITDA of €15.1 million (previous year: €1.4 million) and EBIT of €3.8 million
(previous year: -€10.2 million).

Group company Antalya, which is accounted for using the equity method, benefited from recovery in traffic, generating revenue
of €266.6 million in fiscal 2021, up €157.0 million year on year. EBITDA amounted to €202.7 million (previous year: €76.2 million),
and EBIT was €92.1 million (previous year: -€34.7 million).

The increase in revenue at the Group company Thalita/Northern Capital Gateway of €65.5 million to €192.5 million was a result
of the positive passenger development in the year under review. EBITDA was €99.7 million (previous year: €52.7 million), and
EBIT was €68.2 million (previous year: €20.8 million).

Revenue at the Group company Xi’an increased in the reporting period by €12.6 million to €187.1 million (+7.2%). EBITDA and
EBIT amounted to -€6.8 million (previous year: -€4.9 million) and -€52.6 million (previous year: -€51.8 million), respectively.
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Comparison with the forecasted development

Aviation 2021 | Forecast 2020 2020 Change Change in %
in € million [Adjustments during the year 2021]

Revenue 587.5  Positive trend 440.9 +146.6 +33.3

Negative

EBITDA 160.2 | [Interim Report Q2/6M 2021: Positive] -280.7 +440.9 -
EBIT 25.8 | Positive trend -420.6 +446.4 -
Retail & Real Estate 2021 | Forecast 2020 2020 Change Change in %
in € million

Revenue 319.1 Positive trend 294.6 +24.5 +8.3
EBITDA 250.8  Noticeably positive 214.5 +36.3 +16.9
EBIT 165.6 | Noticeably positive 122.9 +42.7 +34.7
Ground Handling 2021 | Forecast 2020 2020 Change Change in %
in € million

Revenue 386.4 Positive trend 319.2 +67.2 +21.1
EBITDA —72.2  Negative -265.4 +193.2 +72.8
EBIT —109.5 | Positive trend -304.9 +195.4 +64.1
International Activities & Services 2021 | Forecast 2020 2020 Change Change in %
in € million

Revenue adjusted for IFRIC 12 608.6 | Clear uptick 397.8 +210.8 +53.0
EBITDA 418.2 | Clear uptick 81.0 +337.2 >100
EBIT 231.8 | Clear uptick -105.5 +337.3 -

The key figures developed in line with the original forecasts or those adjusted during the year.

Asset and Financial Position

Asset and capital structure
At €16,240.0 million, total assets as at December 31, 2021 were €2,158.8 million (+15.3%) above the previous year.

Non-current assets increased by €1,253.3 million to €12,991.3 million. This is primarily attributable to the increase in other
financial assets (+€582.0 million) due to the acquisition of securities and higher property, plant, and equipment (+€568.1 million),
in particular in connection with the ongoing capital expenditure on the Expansion South project at Frankfurt Airport. In addition,
investments in airport operating projects increased by €195.2 million primarily due to ongoing expansion projects at the Group
company Lima. In contrast, shares in companies accounted for using the equity method decreased (-€94.2 million) mainly as a
result of reclassification of the shares in the Group company Xi'an to non-current assets held for sale. At €3,129.0 million, current
assets were up €785.8 million compared to December 31, 2020, mainly due to an increase in cash and cash equivalents
(+€798.4 million) as a result of the extensive financing measures.

Shareholders’ equity increased by €150.3 million to €3,909.0 million as at the 2021 balance sheet date (December 31, 2020:
€3,758.7 million). The increase resulted, in particular, from the positive Group result of €91.8 million as well as the change in the
currency reserve. Despite this improved result, the equity ratio fell from 25.7% as at December 31, 2020, to 23.1% due to
increased debt.

Non-current liabilities increased by €2,434.7 million to €10,895.4 million (+28.8%), in particular due to long-term borrowings to
secure liquidity. On the other hand, current liabilities declined in the reporting period by €434.3 million to €1,427.5 million
(- 23.3%). This development was particularly due to the decrease in other provisions following utilization of a large part of the
provision in connection with the “Zukunft FRA — Relaunch 50” program. In addition, short-term financial liabilities decreased due
to loan repayments as well as reduced commercial papers and call and time deposits. This decrease was offset by maturity-
related reclassifications of previous non-current financial liabilities.
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At €9,934.0 million, gross debt as at December 31, 2021 was clearly above the comparable value as at December 31, 2020 of
€7,747.2 million due to the extensive financing measures. Liquidity also increased, by €1,350.6 million to €3,564.3 million.
Correspondingly, net financial debt increased by €836.2 million to €6,369.7 million (December 31, 2020: €5,533.5 million).
The gearing ratio reached a level of 169.7% (value as at December 31, 2020: 152.9%). The net financial debt to EBITDA ratio
reached a level of -8.4 (previous year: -22.1).

Structure of the consolidated financial position as at December 31

€ million
12,991.3 3,129.0 119.7

Assets

2021 16,240.0
Liabilities \
andequity 10,895.4 14275 8.

11,738.0 2,343.2

Assets

2020 14,081.2
Liabilities
and equity 3,758.7 8,460.7 1,861.8

H Non-current assets Current assets M Non-current assets held for sale B Shareholders’ equity Non-current liabilities Current liabilities M Liabilities related to assets held for sale

Additions to non-current assets

In the 2021 fiscal year, the additions to non-current assets of the Fraport Group totaled €1,112.6 million, €47.0 million lower than
the previous year (previous year: €1,159.6 million). The decrease was mainly due to lower additions to “Property, plant, and
equipment” (-€29.9 million) at Fraport AG.

Additions to non-current assets of €847.0 million in the 2021 fiscal year were attributable to “property, plant, and equipment”
(previous year: €876.9 million). Capital expenditure on “Airport operating projects” amounted to €251.7 million (previous year:
€242.0 million). “Investment property” accounted for €9.5 million (previous year: €26.6 million); and “other intangible assets” for
€4.4 million (previous year: €14.1 million). The capitalization of interest expenses relating to construction work amounted to
€40.6 million (previous year: €35.7 million).

At Fraport AG, the additions to non-current assets amounted to €833.5 million (previous year: €881.2 million). Capital expenditure
was mostly attributed to the Expansion South project at Frankfurt airport — mainly relating to Terminal 3 and the passenger
transport system — as well as modernization and maintenance measures for existing infrastructure.
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The additions to non-current assets are attributed to the individual segments as follows:

Additions per segment

€ million

293.6 465.1
International Activities Aviation
& Services
89.6 ‘ 264.3
Ground Handling ‘ Retail & Real Estate

Capital expenditure in the Aviation segment amounting to €465.1 million (previous year: €504.1 million) primarily concerned
the ongoing construction work in connection with the Frankfurt Airport Expansion South project. Most of this amount related to
Terminal 3 and the passenger transport system.

In fiscal 2021, the Retail & Real Estate segment recorded additions to assets in the amount of €264.3 million (previous year:
€247.8 million). The measures also concerned, in particular, the Expansion South project.

The Ground Handling segment recorded additions amounting to €89.6 million (previous year: €103.9 million). These mainly
included the modernization measures for existing facilities as well as capital expenditure in connection with the Expansion South
project.

In the International Activities & Services segment, additions to non-current assets amounted to €293.6 million (last year:
€303.8 million). The additions related mainly to the Group company Lima in connection with obligations to expand the
infrastructure.

Fair values

Differences between the carrying amounts and fair values may arise for assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value
in the Fraport consolidated financial statements. For an overview of the valuation methods used for significant balance sheet
items, see note 4 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Investments in airport operating projects make up approximately 96% of the intangible assets in non-current assets. While their
carrying amount results from amortized acquisition costs and primarily depends on the amount of the determined acquisition costs
and term of the respective concession agreements as the basis of the regular depreciation and amortization, the fair value of the
investments in airport operating projects is primarily driven by the development of traffic volume and passenger numbers at the
concession airports and the resulting cash flows.

Property, plant, and equipment of the Fraport Group is mainly made up of land/buildings (approximately 41%) and technical
equipment and machinery (approximately 20%) belonging to Fraport AG. While the fair value of land is derived from standard land
values (see also note 20 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements), the fair value of airport infrastructure (buildings,
technical equipment, and machinery) is determined in reference to the corresponding replacement costs.
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The fair value of investment property (see also note 21 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements) is based on the
standard land value (land) or capitalized income value (buildings). The fair value of land designated as land for sale in the
inventories (see also note 28 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements) is also based on standard land values.

For information on the fair values of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments see note 41 in the Notes to the Consoli-
dated Financial Statements.

Statement of cash flows

Due to the positive result in fiscal 2021, which was influenced, among other things, by the non-recurring cash effects in connection
with compensation received for holding costs and the security services offset in previous years as well as the severance payments
in connection with the program “Zukunft FRA - Relaunch 50,” the cash inflow from operating activities (operating cash flow)
was €392.6 million (previous year: cash outflow of €236.2 million).

At €1,133.2 million, the cash flow used in investing activities excluding investments in cash deposits and securities in the
fiscal year under review was only slightly below the previous year’s level (previous year: cash outflow of €1,141.4 million).
Increased cash outflows for expansion and extension measures at the Frankfurt site and capital expenditure on airport operating
projects were offset by higher cash inflows from dividends from companies accounted for using the equity method.

Taking into account investments in and revenue from securities and promissory note loans as well as capital expenditure on time
deposits, the overall cash flow used in investing activities was €2,304.2 million (previous year: cash outflow of €2,528.2 million).

Cash flow from financing activities decreased by €375.6 million to €2,095.4 million (previous year: €2,471.0 million). Increased
cash inflow from long-term borrowings of €2,798.4 million (previous year: €2,692.3 million) was offset by higher repayments of
non-current liabilities (+€241.2 million) and other changes in current financial liabilities (+€241.1 million). Taking into account
exchange rate fluctuations and other changes, the Fraport Group reported cash and cash equivalents based on the statement of
cash flows of €431.2 million as at December 31, 2021 (previous year: €216.4 million).

Free cash flow amounted to -€772.3 million (previous year: -€1,400.0 million).

The following table shows a reconciliation to cash and cash equivalents as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Reconciliation to the cash and cash equivalents as at the consolidated statement of financial position

in € million December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Bank and cash balances 220.4 161.9
Time deposits with a remaining term of less than three months 210.8 54.5
Cash and cash equivalents as at the consolidated statement of cash flows 431.2 216.4
Time deposits with a remaining term of more than three months 2,156.9 1,549.9
Restricted cash 74.7 98.1
Cash and cash equivalents as at the consolidated statement of financial position 2,662.8 1,864.4
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Summary of the statement of cash flows and reconciliation to the Group’s liquidity

in € million
3,133.1 3,564.3
392.6 -1,133.2
216.4 2,095.4 31.0 431.2
-1,171.0
Cash and cash Cash flow Cash flow Cash flow Cash flow Foreign currency Cash and cash Short-term Group'’s liquidity

equivalents from operating used in investing used in investing from financing translation effects and equivalents as at realizable assets as at

asat activities activities excl. activities in cash activities other changes December 31, December 31,
January 1 cash deposits and deposits and on cash and cash 2021 2021

2021 securities securities equivalents

Financing analysis

In 2021, the finance management of the Fraport Group continued to pursue balanced funding via a diversified debt financing base
with a balanced maturity profile. As at the balance sheet date, there was a balanced mix of financing, consisting of promissory
note loans (23.0%), corporate bonds (21.2%), bilateral loans (41.4%), and project financing (14.4%).

To reduce interest rate risks from borrowing with floating interest rates, in the past interest rate hedging transactions were con-
cluded in some cases. The corresponding nominal volume amounted to €130.7 million at the end of the year and thus remained
roughly at the previous year’s level (-2.8%). Overall, the financial liabilities had an average remaining term of 6.4 years with an
average interest maturity of approximately 5.8 years after hedging measures. Taking into account interest rate hedging transac-
tions, the floating rate portion of the gross debt of the Fraport Group was approximately 12%, and the fixed portion approximately
88%. The cost of debt after hedging measures was 2.1%.

Fully consolidated Group companies in Germany are usually integrated into the Fraport AG cash pool, so that acquiring separate
external funding was not necessary. Funding for fully consolidated foreign Group companies was primarily obtained through
previously concluded project financing agreements in the 2021 fiscal year. No analysis or calculation of the financial debt structure
and liquidity at segment level is carried out.
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The key features of the Group financing instruments with regard to type, maturity, and interest rate structures are presented in the
following table:

Financial debt structure

Financing type Year of | Nominal volume Maturity Repayment structure Interest Interest rate
origin in € million

2012 180.5 2022 End of term Fixed 2,900 % p.a.

Promissory note loans 2030 4,000 % p.a.

35 2022 End of term Fixed 3,060 % p.a.

2013 50 2028 End of term Fixed 4,000 % p.a.

2017 135 2025 End of term Fixed 1,395 % p.a.

2027 1,810 % p. a.

150 2024 End of term Fixed 1,086 % p.a.

2027 1,609 % p.a.

2019 925 2024 End of term Fixed 0,548 % p.a.

250 2025 0,500 % p.a.

110 2027 0,600 % p.a.

137.5 2029 1,336 % p.a.

50 2029 0,700 % p.a.

20 2031 0,833 % p.a.

20 2034 1,073 % p.a.

20 2034 1,000 % p.a.

2020 51 2025 End of term Fixed 0,850 % p.a.

17 2027 0,950 % p.a.

7 2030 1,154 % p.a.

86 2023 End of term Fixed 1,250 % p.a.

40 2026 Floating 6M-Euribor + Margin

43 2026 Fixed 1,600 % p.a.

16.5 2028 1,800 % p.a.

19.5 2030 2,000 % p.a.

45 2032 2,125 % p.a.

2021 175.5 2026 End of term Fixed 1,000 % p.a.

164.5 2026 Floating 6M-Euribor + Margin

23.5 2029 6M-Euribor + Margin

136.5 2029 Fixed 1,360 % p.a.

10 2031 End of term Fixed 1,870 % p.a.

30 2031 1,900 % p.a.

168 2033 2,100 % p.a.

2009 150 2029 End of term Fixed 5,875 % p.a.

300 2024 End of term Fixed 1,727 % p.a.

Corporate bond 2020 500 2027 2,217 % p.a.

2021 350 2024 End of term Fixed 1,034 % p.a.

800 2028 1,925 % p.a.

Bilateral loans 1999 - 2021 4,099.1 12022 - 2031 Mainly end of term Mainly fixed -0,10 % — 3,00 % p.a.

Project financing (fully consolidated 2017 — 2021 1,428.46 2022 —2044 . Ongoing repayments during Mainly fixed 1,70 % — 16,07 % p.a.
foreign Group companies) the term

The contractual agreements for the financial liabilities of Fraport AG include two customary non-financial covenants consisting of
a negative pledge and a pari passu clause. Only the special-purpose loans of Fraport AG contained in bilateral loans include,
among other things, commonly accepted credit clauses regarding changes in shareholder structure and in the control of the
company (so-called change-of-control clause). If these have a proven negative effect on the creditworthiness of Fraport AG, the
creditors have the right to call the loans due ahead of time above a certain threshold.

Independent project financing agreements of fully consolidated foreign Group companies, in particular in Greece and Brazil,
contain a series of credit clauses typical for this type of financing. These clauses include regulations under which certain debt
service coverage ratios and control indicators for leverage and credit terms must be complied with. Failure to comply with the
agreed credit clauses may lead to restrictions on the distribution of dividends and/or to the early redemption of loans or to the
additional payment of shareholders’ equity. The coronavirus pandemic and the resulting slump in traffic in part presented
an obstacle to technically fulfilling the financial key figures for respective project financing. Agreements were reached with the
financing banks effective December 31, 2021, which were in line with the arrangements laid down for this purpose in the respective
financing contracts.

The maturity profile of the Fraport Group’s financial debt showed a largely balanced repayment structure as at the balance sheet
date (financial debt in foreign currencies translated as at the balance sheet date rate).
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in € million
4,506,1 9,934.0 565.6 864.5 1,424.3 8494 1,192.6 1,223.0 1,380.8 801.1 4275 2111 971.2
941.8
3,564.3
= m B =w B B B = . _ m
Liquidity Gross 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 ++

debt

W Carryingamounts B Nominal values M Credit Lines

Liquidity in the fully consolidated foreign Group companies was €509.5 million (previous year: €492.4 million). As it is partly subject
to drawing restrictions arising from the conditions stipulated in the project financing agreements, it is not part of the asset

management at Fraport AG.

Liquidity analysis

The strategy of broad diversification of investments in corporate bonds was continued in the 2021 fiscal year. The key character-
istics of Fraport AG’s investment instruments in terms of type, remaining term, and interest rate structure are presented in the

following table:

Asset structure of Fraport AG

Investment type

Promissory note loans

Overnight funds
Time deposits

Bonds

thereof governmental
thereof financials

thereof insurances

thereof industrials

Commercial papers

Y As a result of rounding, there may be discrepancies when summing up.

Market value *
in € million

0.0
55.1
0.0
2,148.7
0.0
36.7
714.6
0.0
6.0
126.7
5.1
6.0
25.5
582.0
95.1

Average remaining term
in years

0.0
2.8
0.0
0.3
0.0
1.7
2.8
0.0
2.3
2.6
0.8
4.9
0.8
2.7
0.2

Interest

Floating
Fixed
Fixed
Fixed

Floating

Floating
Fixed
Fixed

Floating
Fixed

Floating
Fixed

Floating
Fixed
Fixed
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The ratings of all investments used in asset management are presented in the following diagram.

Rating structure of assets

in %

0 20 40 60 80

AAA 0.0

AA — 9.5

A — 69.5

BBB — 21.0

BB 0.0

Not rated 0.0

As at the balance sheet date, there were only rated assets in the portfolio.

The cost of carry, which is calculated using a (tiered statement) maturity-matching principle, was 1.5% (€44.4 million) as at
December 31, 2021.

As at the 2021 balance sheet date, the Fraport Group had credit lines amounting to €941.8 million (previous year: €895.9 million)
available, of which €387.6 million has, however, been earmarked for future capital expenditure on infrastructure. As at the balance
sheet date, Fraport AG had unused credit lines amounting to €554.2 million (previous year: €490.3 million).

Significance of off-balance-sheet financial instruments for the financial position
Fraport focuses on the products presented in the “Financing analysis” section for financing its activities. Off-balance-sheet financial
instruments are of no material significance in the financing mix of Fraport.

Rating
In light of Fraport’s unrestricted access to the capital market at attractive prices, very healthy liquidity supply combined with its
comfortable portfolio of free, approved credit lines, there has not been a need for an external rating so far.

Comparison with the forecasted development

€ million 2021  Forecast 2020 2020 Change Change in %
[Adjustments during the year 2021]

Free cash flow —772.3  Improvement -1,400.0 +627.7 +44.8
Positive, in a low double-digit range

Net financial debt [Q3/9M Interim Release 2021: In the positive high single-

to EBITDA 8.4  digit range] -22.1 +30.5 -
Slightly lower than 2020 level

Liquidity 3,564.3  [Q2/6M Interim Report 2021: Clearly higher than in 2020] 2,213.7 +1,350.6 +61.0

Shareholders’ equity ratio (%) 23.1 | Slightly lower than 2020 25.7 -2.6 PP -

The key asset and financial figures were in line with the 2020 forecast.
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Value management

Development of the value added

€ million Fraport Group Aviation Retail & Real Estate Ground Handling | International Activities &
Services

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Adjusted EBIT" 343.1 -763.6 25.8 —420.6 176.7 113.3 -107.0 -305.6 247.6 -150.7
Fraport assets 10,208.6 9,249.3 3,881.1 3,482.4 2,464.1 2,217.3 770.1 708.3 3,093.3 2,841.3
Costs of capital before taxes 622.7 592.0 236.7 222.9 150.3 141.9 47.0 45.3 188.7 181.8
Value added before taxes -279.6 -1,355.6 -211.0 —643.5 26.4 -28.6 -154.0 -350.9 58.9 -332.5
ROFRA in % 34 -83 0.7 -12.1 7.2 5.1 -13.9 -43.1 8.0 -5.3

" Adjusted EBIT = EBIT + earnings before taxes of the Group companies accounted for using the equity method.

In fiscal year 2021, the value added of the Fraport Group was €1,076.0 million higher than in the previous year, but remained in
negative territory at -€279.6 million. The improved operating performance of the Group companies as a result of higher traffic
volume as well as one-off effects from the compensation payment granted by the German Federal Government and the State of
Hesse for the holding costs of €159.8 million incurred in the first lockdown in 2020 as well as the agreement with the German
Federal Police in connection with aviation security services offset in recent years in the amount of €57.8 million were behind the
adjusted EBIT of €343.1 million (previous year: -€763.6 million). Increased capital expenditure, especially on the expansion pro-
jects in Frankfurt and Lima, increased the cost of capital. The ROFRA of the Fraport Group increased by 11.7 percentage points
to 3.4% (previous year: -8.3%).

The value added of the Aviation segment improved from -€643.5 million to -€211.0 million (+€432.5 million) based on the
operating performance and the aforementioned one-off effects. On the other hand, the cost of capital for the ongoing construction
activities in Frankfurt increased. Segment ROFRA improved accordingly from -12.1% in the previous year to 0.7%. In the Retail
& Real Estate segment, despite higher Fraport assets in the course of the expansion project in Frankfurt, the increase in segment
EBIT led to a massive increase in the value added from -€28.6 million to €26.4 million (+€55.0 million) and of ROFRA to 7.2%
(previous year: 5.1%). The value added of the Ground Handling segment increased by €196.9 million to -€154.0 million, primarily
based on traffic volumes. The segment's ROFRA improved accordingly, coming in at -13.9% in the 2021 fiscal year (previous
year: -43.1%). The value added of the International Activities & Services segment increased from -€332.5 million to
€58.9 million (+€391.4 million). The fully consolidated Group companies in Greece and the USA as well as the Group company
Antalya, which is accounted for using the equity method, contributed in particular to the improved operating result. The increase
in Fraport assets in the segment is mainly attributable to the expansion at Lima Airport. In line with the value added, segment
ROFRA improved from -5.3% to 8.0%.

Comparison with the forecasted development

2021 | Forecast 2020 2020 Change Change in %

Group ROFRA (%) 3.4 | Clear improve -8.3 +11.7 PP -

Group ROFRA was positive again in the 2021 fiscal year at 3.4%. Based on the Group-wide traffic recovery, the improvement in
ROFRA was stronger than forecast in 2020.
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Employees

Development of employees

Fraport Annual Report 2021

Average number of employees 2021 2020 Change Change in %
Fraport Group 18,419 21,164 -2,745 -13.0
thereof Fraport AG 7,893 9,344 -1,451 -15.5
thereof Group companies 10,526 11,820 -1,294 -10.9
thereof in Germany 15,599 18,364 -2,765 -15.1
thereof abroad 2,820 2,801 +19 +0.7

The average number of employees in the Fraport Group (excluding apprentices and employees on leave) decreased by 2,745 to
18,419 in the 2021 fiscal year (previous year: 21,164). This was due to employees leaving from Fraport AG (-1,451 employees)
and FraSec (-423 employees), especially in connection with the volunteer programs at the Frankfurt site. Due to the expiration of
temporary contracts, the Group companies FraGround and FraCareS, in particular, had fewer employees (-721 employees and
- 94, respectively).

Outside Germany, the total headcount increased slightly to 2,820 (+0.7%), but developed differently in the various Group compa-
nies. While the headcount increased in particular in the Group companies in Bulgaria (+68 employees), Lima (+19 employees)
and Greece (+13 employees), the number of employees decreased in the Group companies in Slovenia (-71 employees) and
Brazil (-13 employees).

Development of employees in the segments

Average number of employees 2021 2020 Change Change in %
Aviation 5,476 6,365 —889 -14.0
Retail & Real Estate 608 614 -6 -1.0
Ground Handling 6,937 8,457 -1,520 -18.0
International Activities & Services 5,398 5,728 -330 -5.8

The personnel leaving in connection with the volunteer programs at the Frankfurt site are distributed to varying degrees across
the four segments. The disparate changes in the Group companies outside Germany also had an impact on the development of
employee numbers in the International Activities & Services segment.

Development of employees as at the balance sheet date

Number of employees as at the balance sheet date December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 Change Change in %
Fraport Group 17,781 19,884 -2,103 -10.6
thereof Fraport AG 7,450 9,099 -1,649 -18.1
thereof Group companies 10,331 10,785 —454 -4.2
thereof in Germany 15,113 17,247 -2,134 -12.4
thereof abroad 2,668 2,637 +31 +1.2

Compared with the previous year’s reporting date, the number of employees in the Fraport Group (excluding apprentices and
employees on leave) fell by 10.6% from 19,884 to 17,781 (-2,103 employees) as at December 31, 2021. In Germany, the decline
is due in particular to Fraport AG (-1,649 employees). Internationally, the slight increase in the number of employees resulted in
particular from the Group companies in Lima (+58 employees).

Development in personnel structure

Fraport values the diversity of its employees. This diversity helps the Group to better understand the concerns of its customers,
develop innovative solutions, and remain competitive in a globalized economy. Diversity management is therefore a central
component of its human resources strategy. It is based on a Group agreement that includes the establishment of principles of
anti-discrimination, advancement of women into management positions, and diversity. These principles form part of recruitment
decisions and training measures.
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At 27.8%, the Group turnover rate - based on permanent employees excluding seasonal staff at the balance sheet date - was
clearly higher in the year under review than in the previous year (13.7%). The change is mainly due to the decline in traffic caused
by the coronavirus pandemic and the corresponding headcount reduction.

The Group’s percentage of women, in relation to the total number of employees (including temporary staff, apprentices, and
employees on leave) as at December 31, 2021, remained at the previous year’s level of 26.3%. The average age of the Group’s
workforce rose only slightly to 45.5 years (previous year: 45.3 years). The ratio of foreign workers in Germany (this excludes
German nationals with an immigrant background) was 24.1% (previous year: 23.7%). The percentage of persons with major
disabilities relative to the total number of employees excluding apprentices and temporary staff dropped to 5.9% on a Group-wide
basis (previous year: 6.6%).

In fiscal year 2021, the proportion of female employees at Fraport AG remained unchanged at 19.2% as at the balance sheet date
(previous year: 19.2%). The proportion of workers with severe disability or equivalent circumstance was 7.9% (previous year:
9.0%). The ratio of foreign workers (this excludes German nationals with an immigrant background) was 13.9% (previous year:
14.8%). The average number of apprentices decreased to 286 (previous year: 318). The staff turnover rate at Fraport AG reached
16.7% (previous year: 3.4%).

Non-financial Performance Indicators

Customer satisfaction and product quality

Global satisfaction of passengers

In the 2021 reporting year, the customer satisfaction survey was changed to a digital self-administered survey. In order to take
into account valuation differences due to the new format of the survey, customer satisfaction for 2021 is reported separately for
the first and second half of the year. In the first half of 2021, global passenger satisfaction at the Frankfurt site rose to 91%, an
increase of 4 percentage points compared to the previous year’s figure of 87%. In the first quarter, the figure was 92% (Q1 2020:
86%) and 89% in the second quarter of 2021 (Q2 2020: 90%). Health and infection protection at Frankfurt Airport, the hospitality
of the airport staff as well as the surveyed waiting time and cleanliness criteria contributed to the result.

Global passenger satisfaction was 83% in the second half of 2021. The decrease compared to the first half of 2021 is due to,
among other things, the conversion of the format on July 1, 2021 to a digital self-administered survey. The increased number of
passengers at the beginning of the summer holidays, with a few peaks in traffic, combined with operational and staff shortages,
led to overall longer waiting times and flight delays, especially in July and August. As a result, numerous top box values fell more
sharply than expected based on the results of the previous method test, especially in the third quarter of 2021. Global passenger
satisfaction was 85% in the third quarter and 81% in the fourth quarter of 2021. While satisfaction with the hospitality of the airport
staff and the friendliness of the mobile terminal staff continued to score highly in the second half of the year (91% and 92%,
respectively), satisfaction with the security checks and cleanliness was below the respective targets.

Despite the impairments associated with operational bottlenecks and the change to a new format, global passenger satisfaction
at Frankfurt Airport exceeded the target value of at least 80% in both the first and second half of 2021.

Baggage connectivity

Baggage connectivity at Frankfurt Airport came to 98.3% in the last fiscal year, or 0.4 percentage points below the previous year
and 0.2 percentage points below the target. While baggage connectivity decreased year on year to 98.3% in Q1 2021, it rose to
98.5% in Q2 2021. This is mainly attributable to modifications to the baggage transfer system and its security technology in the
previous year, which adversely impacted connectivity. Traffic skyrocketed beginning in June 2021, and baggage connectivity fell
below the previous year’s level to 98.4% in the third quarter of 2021 due to traffic volume. In the fourth quarter of 2021, the figure
was 98.1%, 0.4 percentage points below the target. Here, too, the cause lay in the short-term traffic peaks in the fall holidays and
the sharp increase in traffic when the North American market re-opened in November 2021. For these reasons, the fiscal 2021
target of 98.5% was missed.
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Attractive and responsible employer

Employee satisfaction

Fraport AG employee satisfaction with the handling of the coronavirus pandemic by Fraport remained roughly constant in the
reporting period at around 82.5%. This satisfaction value was 83% in the first pulse check of the year and 82% in the second.
Once again, it was confirmed that confidence in Fraport’s ability to cope with the crisis from an economic standpoint is very high.
This opinion was voiced by 93 percent of the employees in each of the two previous pulse checks. An average of around 1,000
employees from all areas of the company took part in the pulse checks, which are activated for a few days on internal online
media. Due to the effects of the coronavirus pandemic, it was decided to forego a Group-wide employee survey in 2020 and 2021.
Therefore, there is no data on which to base a statement regarding target achievement. In 2022, a new instrument for measuring
employee satisfaction will be designed and thus a new target with a corresponding term will be set (see “Business Outlook”).

Women in management positions

In the 2021 fiscal year, the proportion of women in management positions in Germany at the first and second level directly below
Fraport's Executive Board increased to 27.1% (previous year: 25.6%). At Fraport AG, the proportion increased slightly to 26.4%
(previous year: 25.9%). In connection with the volunteer program initiated in 2020 and subsequent reorganization measures, five
female executives left the company. One vacant position was filled by a woman, while four positions were not filled. In addition,
13 management positions were eliminated, four of which had been held by women. At the Group companies, two out of three
vacant managing director positions were filled by women. Due to the reorganization completed on June 30, 2021 and the low
number of open positions to be filled, the target of 30% set for the 2021 fiscal year was not achieved.

Occupational health and safety

Sickness rate

In the 2021 fiscal year, the Group sickness rate in Germany increased by 0.3 percentage points to 6.7% (previous year: 6.4%).
The development is attributable to the recovery in traffic at Frankfurt Airport and the associated increase in the number of
operational personnel. The sickness rate of Fraport AG fell by 0.2 percentage points to 5.9% (previous year: 6.1%). This was due
to the reduced number of employees and, presumably, more employees working from home.

Climate protection

CO; emissions

In the past fiscal year, Group-wide CO emissions amounted to approximately 163,520 metric tons of CO,, and were thus down
3.6% year on year. The emission reduction is mainly attributable to Fraport AG, which reduced its CO2 emissions by 11.8% year
on year, to 114,015 metric tons of CO, (previous year: 129,263 t CO;). This decrease partially stems from the impact of the
coronavirus pandemic, but also from the results of ongoing energy savings programs to boost energy efficiency.

Comparison with the forecasted development

Indicators 2021 Forecast 2020 2020 Change
[adjustment during the year Q2 / 6M Interim Report]

Global satisfaction of passengers (Frankfurt) in % 91/83" | At least 80 % 91 -
Baggage connectivity (Frankfurt) in % 98.3 | Better than 98.5 % 98.7 -0.4 PP
Employee satisfaction (Group) 2 —  Better than 3.0 - -
[No measurement]
Employee satisfaction (Fraport AG) 3 82.5 | Improvement 81.5 -1.00
Women in management positions (Germany) in % 27.1| Slight increase 25.6 +1.5 PP
Women in management positions (Fraport AG) in % 26.4 | Increase 25.9 +0.5 PP
Sickness rate (Germany) in % 6.7 | Stabilization at least at the previous year’s level 6.4 +0.3 PP
Sickness rate (Fraport AG) in % 5.9 | Stabilization at least at the previous year’s level 6.1 -0.2 PP
CO2-Emissions (Group) in ¥ 163,520  Slight increase 169,598” —-6,078
CO2-Emissions (Fraport AG) in t 114,015 | Slight increase 129,263” —-15,248

"YDuetoa change in methodology, the results are reported separately for the first and second half of 2021.

2 Due to the impact of the coronavirus pandemic, this statistic was not collected in 2021.
2020 value determined as a percentage in the pulse check.
This includes Fraport AG and Fraport Greece as well as the Group companies GCS, FraGround, Fraport Slovenija, Lima, Fortaleza, Porto Alegre and Twin Star.

Subsequent verifications resulted in some updates for 2020.

)
)
3)
4)

)

5

The “Non-financial performance indicators” chapter above provides explanatory notes on deviations from the 2020 forecast.
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Combined non-financial Statement

About this combined statement

The combined non-financial statement complies with the requirements of Sections 315b and 315c in conjunction with the Sections
289b to 289e of the German Commercial Code (HGB) and the requirements of Regulation (EU) 2020/852 of the European
Parliament and of the European Council of June 18, 2020 on the establishment of a framework for facilitating sustainable invest-
ment and amending the Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 (EU Taxonomy Regulation). This combined non-financial statement has been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft according to ISAE 3000 (revised) with limited assur-
ance. The unqualified auditor’s opinion can be found at the end of the Annual Report.

The “Control” and “Non-financial Performance Indicators” chapters describe the most important non-financial performance
indicators and their development. Their concepts and measures are used as the basis for this combined non-financial statement.
The target values set for the Fraport Group and Fraport AG can also be found in these two chapters. The forecast figures for the
2022 fiscal year are specified in the “Business Outlook” chapter. The Fraport business model, competitive position, and the Group
structure can be found in the “Situation of the Group” chapter. Fraport takes risks related to the non-financial aspects into account
in the Group-wide risk management system (see “Risk and Opportunities Report” chapter).

A significant proportion of the events described in this statement was affected by the coronavirus pandemic in the 2021 fiscal
year. The statement addresses the impact on the Fraport Group and its concrete measures for operational protection against
infection in the affected aspects (see also the “Impact of the Coronavirus Pandemic on the Fraport Group” chapter).

Use of frameworks

For a structured presentation of the contents in accordance with Section 289c of the HGB in the combined non-financial statement,
Fraport applies the standards of the Global Reporting Initiative 2016 (GRI). The concepts for the aspects are based on the
structure of the GRI management approaches. This refers to the materiality matrix (GRI 101 - Management Approach) and the
explanations relating to “Anti-corruption and bribery matters”, “Respect for human rights”, “Customer satisfaction and security”,
“Employee-related matters”, “Social matters” and “Environmental matters” (GRI 103 - Management Approach). In addition,
the ESG Factbook, available at www.fraport.com/publications from March 2022, provides a detailed overview of the relevant
GRI indicators in the Fraport Group. References to information beyond the scope of the Combined Management Report and

Consolidated financial Statements are additional information and do not form part of this Combined non-financial Statement.

Correlations with the financial statements
The reportable correlations with the Combined Management Report, the Consolidated financial Statements, and the Fraport AG
annual financial statements are explained at the end of each respective non-financial aspect.

Derivation of materiality

The Fraport mission statement continues to form the basis of the Group’s strategy. It encompasses the Group goals “Growth
in Frankfurt and internationally”, “Service-oriented airport provider”, “Economically successful through optimal cooperation”,
“Learning organization and digitalization”, and “Fairness and recognition for partners and neighbors”. The vision of establishing

Fraport as Europe’s top airport operator and at the same time to set global standards forms the basis of the mission statement.

Based on these Group goals, the Executive Board has defined six key non-financial performance indicators in accordance with
Section 315 (3) of the HGB in conjunction with Section 289 (3) of the HGB. Global passenger satisfaction and baggage connec-
tivity, employee satisfaction, women in management positions, sickness rate, and CO; emissions. Due to the continuing impact
of the coronavirus pandemic on the Fraport Group, the non-financial performance indicators of global passenger satisfaction in
the Group and employee satisfaction in the Group were not used for the Group management control (see “Control” and “Non-
financial performance indicators” chapters).

The basis for the aspects reported in this Combined non-financial Statement is the materiality matrix. Material aspects are those
that, according to Section 289c (3) of the HGB, are relevant to the business development, business result, as well as the effects
of the business activities of Fraport on non-financial aspects. The materiality matrix is the result of a systematic exchange with
internal and external stakeholders. Fraport management and representatives of the most important stakeholders (analysts, share-
holders, employee representatives, banks, employees, airlines, local residents living near airports, business partners, investors,
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media, NGOs, passengers, politicians and authorities, economic associations, and science) confirm the relevance of the given
topics. Both groups also prioritize the topics. The materiality matrix shows the impact of direct and indirect business activities on
the corresponding aspect, its relevance for stakeholders and for the long-term business activities of Fraport.

In a structured process, the Executive Board decided to make adjustments to the materiality matrix for 2021 based on overall
developments in society. The updated materiality matrix is shown below. The topics of “Climate protection” as well as “Protection
of environment and nature” have been given greater relevance for the long-term business activities and the stakeholders. This is
derived both from the public debate and the focus of the coalition agreement by the new German government. As a result of the
coronavirus pandemic, business activities have a greater impact on the topic of “Occupational health and safety” and also hold
increased relevance for stakeholders. The topic of “Customer satisfaction and product quality” has also become more relevant for
stakeholders, as travel restrictions and special requirements for civil aviation caused by the coronavirus pandemic affect travel for
customers to a greater extent. In addition, business activities have a higher impact on the topics “Profitability” and “Attractive and
responsible employer”. This is due to a higher level of debt to ensure the long-term liquidity as a result of the coronavirus pandemic,
as well as the challenge that, despite extensive personnel management measures within the scope of the strategic “Zukunft FRA
— Relaunch 50” program, a sufficient number of qualified and motivated personnel must be ensured. A comprehensive materiality
analysis with the participation of internal and external stakeholders will be carried out as soon as the framework conditions allow
for this again.

Materiality matrix
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The key topics identified have been attributed to the non-financial aspects in accordance with Section 289c (2) of the HGB- Beyond
these reportable non-financial aspects, Fraport has also identified “Customer satisfaction and security” as an additional aspect.
The distribution of the topics among the non-financial aspects can be found in the table below. The crossover aspect “Supply and
subcontracting chain” is not an individual aspect but deals with all reportable information in connection with the non-financial
aspects in a separate chapter.

Allocation of material topics to non-financial aspects

Non-financial aspect Topics

Corporate Governance and Compliance Respect for human rights Anti-corruption and bribery matters

Environmental matters Climate protection Protection of environment and nature Air quality

Customer satisfaction and security Customer satisfaction and product quality | IT security and airport safety and security | Data protection
Employee-related matters Attractive and responsible employer Occupational health and safety

Social matters Community Noise abatement Engagement in the regions

On May 26, 2020, the Annual General Meeting approved the Supervisory Board's proposal to adapt the remuneration system for
the Executive Board in connection with the transposition of the Second Shareholders' Rights Directive into the German Stock
Corporation Act (AktG). As a result, the remuneration system includes non-financial elements in addition to the financial objectives
for the long-term variable remuneration. For the 2021 fiscal year, the reduction of the CO- footprint at the Frankfurt site in the form
of a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) for energy purchases from wind turbines and the completion of Pier G by the end of
January 2022 were defined as non-financial components (see also compensation report under www.fraport.com/publications).

Identification of risks

Fraport defines risks as future developments or events that may negatively affect non-financial aspects. The risk evaluation is
conservative, i.e., the most unfavorable impact for Fraport is assessed. A distinction is made between a gross risk and net risk.
The gross risk is the greatest possible negative impact of the risk prior to countermeasures. The net risk includes the remaining
expected impact after countermeasures have been initiated or implemented. The risk assessment in this non-financial statement
reflects the net risk.

The risk management system described in the “Risk and Opportunities Report” chapter in the Combined Management Report
contains the analysis of the risks that may have potential negative effects on the non-financial aspects.

For fiscal year 2021, there were no additional reportable risks for the Fraport Group and Fraport AG of their activities on the
non-financial aspects, beyond the material risks already listed in the Risk and Opportunities Report.

Consideration of the supply and subcontracting chain specific to the business model

The crossover “Supply and subcontracting chain” topic is not an individual aspect but deals with all reportable information in
connection with the non-financial aspects in this separate chapter. Unlike manufacturing companies, Fraport management does
not focus on the supply chain. Instead, the focus is placed on the quality of the services offered and the functionality of the
infrastructure required for this purpose. It is crucial, however, that business partners and suppliers are selected carefully.

Fraport compels business partners and suppliers to comply with its Supplier Code of Conduct as part of its General Terms and
Conditions (GTC), depending on the local conditions. The code details the correct treatment of employees, respecting human
rights as well as environmental and climate protection, integrity in the course of business, and the prohibition of corruption and
bribery. A violation of this code may result in the termination of the business relationship. A contractual penalty may be imposed
and a claim for lump-sum damages may be raised in the event of antitrust violations and serious misconduct. Business partners
and suppliers must also undertake to require and ensure these principles are adhered to when dealing with their own suppliers.

Fraport AG undertakes to generally focus on sustainability criteria when purchasing products and services and has signed a target
agreement initiated by the Hessian Ministry for the Environment, Climate Protection, Agriculture and Consumer Protection. The
“Environmental Management” department of Fraport AG receives an annual evaluation of which framework contracts will be
tendered in the following year. Within the scope of a declaration of understanding between the “Central Purchasing, Construction
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Contracts” and “Corporate Development, Environment and Sustainability” central units, the “Environmental Management” depart-
ment informs the relevant stakeholders about possible ecological procurement criteria and certificates (e.g., the OEKO-TEX 100
standard for pollutant-free textiles).

Fraport has a heterogeneous demand structure. It ranges from architectural services to the maintenance and expansion of airport
infrastructure, from office materials to IT services and aircraft tugs. At Fraport AG (including the Airport Expansion South project),
more than 41% of total order volume went to companies in the Rhine-Main region. Around 99% of Fraport AG’s order volume,
amounting to approximately €792 million, was awarded to suppliers and service providers based in Germany, approximately 0.5%
to those based in the EU, and about 0.4% to those based in the United States, the United Kingdom, Switzerland, and Canada. As
there are comparable legal standards in these countries, in particular regarding anti-corruption and bribery matters and respect
for human rights, the first level of the supply chain is not deemed critical. Due to the coronavirus pandemic, the volume of orders
with third parties fell clearly from 2019 to 2020. Key figures stabilized at this low level in 2021. The five largest suppliers for Fraport
AG (including the Airport Expansion South project) are Calvias Gebadudetechnik GmbH, Caverion Deutschland GmbH, Prinzing
Elektrotechnik GmbH, Lindner SE, and Sauter-Cumulus GmbH. Fraport Ausbau Siid GmbH carried out extensive business partner
screenings for these companies before awarding the contracts.

If Fraport AG tenders and awards contracts for product groups that include suppliers or service providers from risk countries as
pertains to labor and social standards, the contractors are reviewed depending on the order value. This also applies to orders for
work clothes, for example. Fraport regularly checks in which countries production sites are located. Irrespective of this, all suppliers
and service providers of Fraport AG are audited on a daily basis regarding the relevant sanction lists of the EU and the United
States. Sanction lists are official lists of people, groups, or organizations subject to economic or legal restrictions. If there are
irregularities, further checks are planned which may result in the withdrawal of an order. An examination of the first level of the
supply chain by contractors’ country of origin is an essential part of regular reporting for the “Central Purchasing, Construction
Contracts” central unit.

Fraport AG has fulfilled the legally compliant assignment of external personnel based on independent service and work contracts,
as opposed to temporary work. An external staff compliance has been implemented as part of a policy to hire external staff. The
policy includes a mandatory audit process and reduces the risk of false service or work contracts, or covert contracts for temporary
work. External staff assignments provided by Group companies to Fraport AG are also subject to this audit process. The Group
companies independently ensure the legally compliant assignment and deployment of external personnel by implementing suita-
ble processes.

The fully consolidated Group companies each have their own procurement management and are required to comply with the
Group Compliance Management System (CMS). An important part of the Group policy is the Code of Conduct for Employees,
which is obligatory in the Fraport Group. The policy also includes instructions to make the Supplier Code of Conduct part of the
General Terms and Conditions insofar as this is possible for the Group companies pursuant to national applicable law. This is
particularly relevant for major construction projects such as the new terminal at Lima Airport. For these projects, compliance with
the Fraport Supplier Code of Conduct is agreed. If such inclusion in the General Terms and Conditions is not possible, or is only
possible if the Supplier Code of Conduct is modified, local management informs the department dealing with compliance at Fraport
AG. For the majority of Group airports, procurement was allocated within their own country.

The Group company Fraport Ausbau Sud defined a separate procurement process for the Expansion South project, in particular
for Terminal 3 at Frankfurt Airport, due to the size and complexity of the project. When submitting an offer in this procurement
process, construction companies are obliged to comply with all requirements in the German Posted Workers Act (AEntG) and the
German Minimum Wage Act (MiLoG). In addition, they must make contributions to the collective bargaining parties’ joint facilities
(e.g., wage compensation and vacation pay), and also only engage subcontractors or other third parties that meet these require-
ments. The Fraport Supplier Code of Conduct also forms part of any agreement. A due diligence review process was defined for
the construction of Terminal 3, which has since been carried out depending on the order value. In addition to mandatory checking
of sanction lists and company information, this includes extensive research online on potential business partners before new
business relationships are initiated.
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Anti-corruption and bribery matters and respect for human rights
Anti-corruption and bribery matters

Fraport pursues the goal of managing responsibly and transparently. Fraport does not tolerate any form of corruption
or other unfair business practices. In addition, the Fraport Group is committed to internationally recognized standards, guidelines,
and principles, in particular the principles of the UN Global Compact, the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, the United
Nations (UN) conventions, and the Core Labour Standards of the International Labour Organization, and the OECD Guidelines
for Multinational Enterprises.

Within the scope of its management responsibilities, the Executive Board determines the
values and codes of conduct of the Fraport Group and draws up the framework conditions for legally compliant and ethical behavior
of its executives and employees. The anti-corruption and bribery matters are therefore an essential part of the Fraport Code of
Conduct for Employees, which applies worldwide. The Executive Board is expressly committed to the fundamental values set
out in the Code of Conduct for Employees and takes a clear stand against corruption with a “zero tolerance principle”.

The individual measures to combat corruption and bribery are based on the Group-wide Compliance Management System
(CMS), according to which the Group companies develop their own specific CMS based on certain minimum requirements. The
responsibility for the CMS of each respective Group company lies with its local management. The CMS of Fraport AG sets the
relevant standards for the Group companies.

The Group-wide minimum requirements for local CMS were fundamentally revised and extended in 2021: the minimum require-
ments now require comprehensive regulations for the handling of gifts and invitations, conflicts of interest, and the compliance
audit of business partners. In addition, uniform specifications for the processing of notices of compliance violations (internal
investigations) were provided. The revision serves to increase the level of protection within the Group and makes an important
contribution to the standardization of compliance processes. The fully consolidated Group companies largely implemented the
amended Group policy in the 2021 fiscal year. Fraport Greece also developed an electronic platform to provide all employees with
access to current policies and process instructions, while Fraport USA created the role of Compliance Director. The Group
company Lima organized a training course on sustainability and corruption prevention together with suppliers.

In the role of Chief Compliance Officer, the head of the “Legal Affairs and Compliance” central unit is responsible for the content,
organization, upkeep, and further development of the CMS of Fraport AG. This officer answers directly to the Executive Director
of Retail and Real Estate.

The CMS of Fraport AG is based on and starts with a compliance risk analysis, which is carried out regularly and whose main
areas of focus include among other things the fight against corruption. With its Compliance Helpdesk, the Compliance department
of Fraport AG supports and advises employees of all positions and hierarchy levels.

The Compliance department informs the Executive Board in a semi-annual report on the status of the anti-corruption measures.
The Executive Board receives information on material compliance violations immediately after they become known.

The Compliance Board of Fraport AG supports and promotes the cooperation of the Compliance Management (CMS), Risk
Management (RMS), and Internal Control System (ICS) subsystems. It is the central body that brings together topics specific to
the departments as well as generally applicable issues with a view to further developing the CMS consistently.

Guidelines on receiving invitations and gifts have been defined for the employees of Fraport AG in a separate policy. This
regulates, among other things, the electronic documentation of the approval of received gifts and invitations. An internal policy on
how to deal with conflicts of interest also exists. The employees of Fraport AG are obliged to report any events in which they find
themselves in situations where personal interests do not coincide with Fraport's business interests. This allows reportable facts
to be disclosed electronically, and countermeasures can be initiated. The policy supports employees in complying with existing
laws and internal regulations.
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Adherence to the compliance principles of Fraport is examined as part of the internal auditing. This department provides
independent and objective audit and consulting services in all major business units of Fraport AG, its subsidiaries and joint
ventures, and affiliated companies and carries out compliance audits. A standardized and risk-oriented planning process is the
foundation for the focus points of the audit.

Measures to combat corruption and bribery, along with information and instructions on how individual employees can contribute
to this, are regularly communicated to the employees of the Fraport Group. Employees must complete training on anti-corruption
matters.

Fraport has set up a whistleblowing system that is available to all Group companies. The whistleblowing system is an essential
tool for preventing and detecting potential compliance violations and thus combating corruption and bribery. In addition, Fraport
AG has an ombudswoman, an external, independent lawyer, at its disposal. Employees at the Frankfurt site can also contact an
internal representative.

A risk-based compliance due diligence conducted by the “Global Investments and Management” strategic business unit is in
place to examine the integrity of Fraport AG business partners’ activities in foreign-related investment projects — material compli-
ance risks of potential business partners are taken into account as part of standard processes.

As part of their CMS, the Group companies implement their own measures to combat corruption and bribery. Particularly with
regards to financing projects, additional measures against corruption and bribery are implemented, in part also as stipulated by
external lenders. Within the context of the tender offer for the expansion of the airport, the Group company Lima has obliged all
bidders to sign an anti-corruption agreement.

The Group companies partially have their own guidelines regarding bribery and corruption. Fraport USA, for example, has
established guidelines that set out rules on compliance, legally compliant business practices, and safeguarding corporate
interests. The Group companies Fortaleza and Porto Alegre have their own anti-corruption guidelines. Within the Group company
Fraport Slovenija compliance issues and information received on violations of the Code of Conduct for Employees are handled
by the Ethical and Compliance Committee.

In 2021, the Fraport Code of Conduct was extensively revised. The changes aim to improve understanding and facilitate contact
with the workforce as well as other stakeholders in order to better anchor compliance principles in Fraport's working environment.
The anti-corruption and bribery matters therefore remain an essential part of the Fraport Code of Conduct for Employees.

No performance indicator, target value, or term has been defined within the scope of the Sustainability
Program.

Respect for human rights

Fraport is focused on complying with the internationally recognized codes of conduct it has committed to, in particular
the principles of the UN Global Compact, the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, the OECD Guidelines for Multinational
Enterprises, and the Core Labour Standards of the International Labour Organization.

The “Legal Affairs and Compliance” central unit of Fraport AG deals with, among other
things, Group-wide adherence to human rights. Employees can use the whistleblower system, which is implemented across the
globe and readily available on the Internet, to report violations. In addition, employees in Germany can also contact an external
ombudsperson contracted by Fraport AG or their internal representative, as needed. This ensures that violations are identified,
reported, and documented and that the Executive Board gains direct knowledge of any cases of human rights violations or any
other relevant information in that regard.

Respect for human rights is enshrined in the Group-wide binding Fraport Code of Conduct for Employees: Fraport undertakes
to respect the fundamental right to freedom of association and the right to collective bargaining that governs the general working
conditions within the Group. Fraport rejects any form of forced or child labor and advocates for the rights of children and adoles-
cents.



Fraport Annual Report 2021 Combined Management Report / Economic Report

As an international company, Fraport encourages diversity in its workforce and pursues the objective of rejecting any form of
discrimination. Fraport undertakes not to distinguish, exclude, or favor people on the basis of their ethnic, national and social
origin, race, color, gender, age, religion, or belief. Fraport also prohibits any discrimination based on political activity, membership
in a union organization, disability, or sexual orientation. The principle of mutual appreciation and respect is an essential part of
the Fraport value culture: Fraport stands for fair, respectful, and cooperative relationships.

Fraport has the same expectations regarding respect for human rights towards its business partners; these requirements are set
out in the Supplier Code of Conduct. In this code, Fraport business partners are obliged to work towards ensuring that all other
companies, like subcontractors, involved in the provision of services, consistently comply with these standards.

The Group companies implement their own specific measures to ensure respect for human rights. Regulations on working hours
and complaints mechanisms, for example, are implemented as part of large financing projects, some of which are also demanded
by external lenders. The planning and construction contract for the construction project at the 14 Greek regional airports, for
example, obliges the general contractor to fully protect human rights. Violations of these provisions constitute a breach of contract
and may result in termination of the contract.

No performance indicator, target value, or term has been defined within the scope of the Sustainability
Program.

Customer satisfaction and security
Customer satisfaction and product quality

The customer comes first at Fraport, both in Frankfurt as well as at all international Group airports. The objective is
therefore to continuously improve the focus on customers and service at Group airports. Global passenger satisfaction and
baggage connectivity are considered the most important criteria for measuring service quality (see the “Control” and
“Non-financial Performance Indicators” chapters). Protecting the health of employees, passengers, and customers is a top priority.
In 2021, in particular the risk of infection at Group airports had to be reduced given the extent of the coronavirus pandemic.

— With the reopening of Terminal 2 on June 1, 2021, after having been closed for over 400
days, the infection control measures implemented since the outbreak of the coronavirus pandemic in Terminal 1 were applied
across the board in Terminal 2. Passenger services, such as the airport information desk, were resumed and expanded as pas-
senger numbers increased after they had been temporarily suspended or reduced. For example, four other digital information
desks (Info Gates) have been put into operation to assist passengers. The digital information offer featuring contactless, personal
interaction with staff has been extended to 12 sites in Terminal 1 and Terminal 2 with the goal of informing all passengers early
on about current travel regulations, precautionary measures, and behavioral guidelines at Frankfurt Airport.

Fraport continued its Fraport-MONITOR passenger survey, which resumed in August 2020, also in the first half of 2021but with
a further reduction in the number of cases per month compared to the period from August to December 2020. Along with the
regular long-term passenger survey, Fraport continued a method test, which was launched in September 2020. In this test,
400 passengers filled out the questionnaire of the Fraport MONITOR themselves in the first half of 2021 instead of being asked
questions directly by interviewers. Passengers were able to do this on their own mobile device (smartphone, tablet, laptop) or on
a tablet provided by the interviewers on site. The digital questionnaire, whose wording was slightly adapted, was available to the
respondents for the first time in eight different languages. With the continuation of the method test, further data and information
was gathered, and as a result this digital survey replaced the previous face-to-face survey in mid-2021.

Global passenger satisfaction is also a relevant non-financial performance indicator at the Group’s foreign airports. In order to
guarantee service quality and to meet passengers’ and airlines’ requirements, Fraport conducted extensive modernization
measures at the Group airports. The terminal expansion at Ljubljana Airport was successfully completed in 2021. In Greece, in
addition to improving the check-in process in order to avoid long waiting times, contactless security checks were also introduced
in 2021. In addition, a particular focus was placed on hygiene measures to prevent infection, cleanliness of the terminals, and
passenger comfort.
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In 2021, passenger surveys at the international Group airports continued to be reduced due to the low passenger numbers. The
surveys were conducted in a shorter period of time and with a smaller number of respondents. For this reason, the quality of the
service was measured at Ljubljana Airport, including check-in and security control, but also in the retail sector, using the mystery
shopping method in the third quarter of 2021. The regular customer satisfaction survey was also resumed in August 2021. At the
airports in Varna and Burgas, questionnaires were distributed in paper form, albeit to a much smaller extent. The surveys at Lima
Airport have been resumed to a reduced extent with a focus on protective measures in the service units. At the Greek airports,
the customer satisfaction survey was suspended once again in 2021.

A detailed program of measures, launched in 2020 and developed further in 2021, was implemented in the Group companies
and at the Frankfurt site in order to ensure safe flight and terminal operations after the lockdown and to prevent the spread of
coronavirus among employees and passengers.

Fraport has implemented the safeguards at Frankfurt Airport in consultation with the relevant health authorities and in accordance
with all regulatory requirements. The main objective is to follow the EASA “COVID-19 Aviation Health Safety Protocol” recom-
mendations (Version 1.1 from May 21, 2020). Since then, floor markings in waiting areas and at baggage claim have indicated
the minimum distance to be maintained. A minimum distance of 6 feet (1.5 meters) should be observed wherever possible.
Plexiglass panes and mouth-nose protective masks are used wherever it is not possible to maintain a distance. In addition, mon-
itors and multilingual terminal announcements explain the applicable distancing and hygiene rules. If, however, people start to
congregate in an area, Fraport employees ensure orderly lines are formed. A medical protective mask must be worn in all terminals
by anyone over six years of age. Fraport also reminds everyone to regularly wash and disinfect their hands. As another important
measure, the feedback system established at the airport to assess cleanliness of the sanitary facilities was largely converted to a
contactless system. Passengers now have the option of giving feedback without contact, which is used to optimize the cleaning
process.

In January 2021, TUV Hessen once again examined the implemented measures for protecting the health of passengers and
employees at the Frankfurt site, once again awarding them the TUV seal “Safe from Covid-19”. Detailed testing was carried out,
for example, on cleaning and disinfection procedures, social distancing measures and controls, wearing protective masks, the
availability of disinfectants, the use of standard personal protective equipment by airport staff, and internal protection and precau-
tionary measures for employees.

Numerous measures have also been implemented at the international Group airports to protect passengers and employees while
at the same time enabling smooth travel operations. Floor markings and plexiglass panes were installed at the terminals. In
addition, hand sanitizer was provided and posters indicating current regulations were displayed. The frequency and intensity of
the cleaning were increased. Employees were trained in protective measures and the corresponding guidelines and provided with
protective masks.

The international airport association ACI awarded Frankfurt Airport the “Airport Health Accreditation” for the organizational,
infrastructural, and personnel measures to protect against the coronavirus. The accreditation was carried out as part of a struc-
tured evaluation process along the entire airport process chain and included all stakeholders. The Airport Health Accreditation
was also granted to the Group’s Greek airports as well as to the Group airports in Varna and Burgas.

The reliable loading of luggage for departing flights and the fast delivery of luggage to the baggage claim for arriving flights have
a major impact on customer satisfaction. Fraport AG measures this performance for departure baggage based on the non-financial
performance indicator Baggage Connectivity (see also the “Strategy”, “Control”, and “Non-Financial Performance Indicators”
chapters). In order to maintain connectivity at its current high level in the future coupled with increasing numbers of baggage
items, Fraport is constantly working on optimization measures that are implemented in close cooperation with airlines within the

scope of regular performance discussions.

The Executive Board is informed about the development of baggage connectivity on a monthly basis. Management receives
information on a daily basis so that measures can be taken at any time. Fraport regularly discusses the values with the airlines
and ensures improvements are made. For example, Deutsche Lufthansa frequently receives a detailed monitoring report, and
optimization measures are managed jointly with Fraport within the scope of regular meetings.
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Global passenger satisfaction and baggage connectivity are considered the most important criteria
for measuring service quality (see the “Control” and “Non-financial Performance Indicators” chapters).

IT security and airport safety and security

Security is the key requirement for air traffic. This principle applies equally to passenger traffic and air freight. Accordingly, security
management has always been a top priority at Fraport.

All countries in which Fraport is active belong to the International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) and have contractually
committed to comply with the organization’s safety standards and recommended practices for airports. In contrast to most ICAO
member states, German law allocates passenger and baggage checks to government authorities, whereas in other countries this
is usually the responsibility of the airports.

All important business and operating processes at Fraport AG are supported by IT systems and IT components. Due
to the ongoing development of new technologies and the increasing global threat of cyberattacks generally, there is an underlying
risk potential for IT systems. Our objective is therefore to protect all IT systems and data against failure, manipulation, and
unwanted publication.

Fraport protects its IT systems and data against failure, manipulation, and unwanted
publication with active and preventive IT security management. These systems are configured redundantly and are housed at
separate sites. The risks in the area of IT security are included in the risk management system (see also the “Risk and Opportu-
nities Report” chapter). The requirements for IT security are specified in the IT security policy and security guidelines that must
be followed throughout the Group. Compliance with these requirements is checked regularly by Internal Auditing, IT Security
Management, or external advisors. In 2021, Fraport AG once again implemented a variety of projects to adequately respond to
the growing risks arising from information technology. The level of IT security is also part of the annual management report for the
quality management certification according to ISO 9001 and is regularly audited by external auditors. In addition, potential for
improvement identified within the scope of internal audits as well as in the latest KRITIS audit conducted in 2021 according to the
German IT Security Act for critical infrastructures (KRITIS) will be processed and the Information Security Management System
(ISMS) will be developed further.

Within the scope of a working group in the German Aviation Association, Fraport AG along with other airport operators, Deutsche
Lufthansa, and the German Air Traffic Control has developed the security standards of the industry. These are based on the new
KRITIS requirements. The objective is to establish a high safety standard within the aviation industry through close cooperation
and reciprocal verification of compliance with regulatory requirements.

The Group companies outside of Frankfurt use their own IT infrastructure, that they protect according to the Group’s IT security
guidelines. As a rule, the IT systems of the Group companies at the Frankfurt site as well as the SAP systems of Fraport Greece
are integrated into the technology of Fraport AG and managed from Frankfurt. Using other IT systems is only possible with the
consent of the Executive Board. At Fraport AG, a separate section is responsible for IT security within the “Information and
Telecommunication” service unit. Its tasks are, among other things, the ongoing identification and implementation of measures to
meet high security standards.

No performance indicator, target value, or term has been defined within the scope of the Sustainability
Program.

91



92

Combined Management Report / Economic Report Fraport Annual Report 2021

This area encompasses both security and safety: safety refers to the operational safety of the overall airport as well as the safety
within the airport site. Security is understood in terms of defending against terrorist threats and protecting civil aviation.

For all operational processes, the focus is on safeguarding the safety and security of everyone at Fraport's airports.

The measures include passenger, baggage, and cargo inspections, as well as the
access control points for airport employees and suppliers. Regular weekly or monthly meetings are held with airlines, security
service providers, and authorities to exchange current information.

At the international Group airports, the security requirements of each respective country as well as international standards for
safety and security management are in effect. It is the responsibility of the local Group companies to implement and comply
with these requirements. They include, among other things, a safety management system and access controls when entering the
security area.

Fraport AG supports the Group companies in planning and implementing security measures. It also provides needs-based training
for employees online, for example within the context of safety and security workshops. Within the scope of specialist exchange
events, there is also a regular exchange between the Group companies.

Safety
Based on European statutory regulations, Fraport AG is obliged to operate a Safety Management System (SMS) at Frankfurt

Airport. The EASA Safety Manager follows the guidelines of the European Aviation Safety Agency (EASA) and enjoys a direct
reporting right to the Executive Board.

The SMS focuses on the safety of airport operations. The SMS takes into account all the risks — technical, organizational, or
human — that may affect them. The SMS coordinates security measures in daily operations. It records safety-related events and
is able to detect vulnerabilities. The objective is for all parties involved in air traffic to implement the requirements contained in the
Safety Policy of Fraport AG. Airport employees can submit safety-related reports to the SMS. In addition, anyone with access to
the airside areas (apron and runway) must regularly complete safety training.

As a central reporting and alarm point for security matters, Fraport AG operates a security control center at Frankfurt Airport,
which activates the emergency and crisis management, if required. The airport fire department, medical services, ambulance
service, and the security services then coordinate operations on site. A crisis unit commences operation in the “Emergency
Response and Information Center” (ERIC). It coordinates and executes all measures that require a concerted approach at the site
beyond any routine damage and risk prevention. If necessary, the “Fraport Emergency Team” (F.E.T.), consisting of volunteer
employees of Fraport AG and the Group companies at the Frankfurt site, is deployed, which interacts with passengers, greeters,
and relatives on site.

The contingency plan for Frankfurt Airport “FRA Not” documents which preparations have been made for various emergency
scenarios and defines procedures to minimize the impact. ICAO and EASA prescribe regular exercises to be carried out by the
respective airport operating company at the Group airports to train for the handling of emergencies and other security-related
scenarios. Such exercises have no impact on flight operations. The results are used for further education and training.

Security
Both international and European regulations contain guidelines on the structural design of airport infrastructure to prevent attacks

such as sabotage or terrorist activities.

In Germany, the Air Security Act (LuftSiG) regulates passenger and baggage checks as well as access controls in the airside
areas, which are the direct responsibility of the airport operator. At Frankfurt Airport, Fraport employees as well as employees of
the Group company FraSec and other private security providers currently carry out airport security checks on behalf of the German
Federal Police.
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Fraport AG develops measures to maintain high security standards independently and in agreement with the competent authori-
ties. In 2020, this included responding to the developments of the coronavirus pandemic: Fraport AG adapted control processes
to further ensure safety and, at the same time, minimize the risk of infection.

In 2021, the measures were developed further. In May 2021, “Click2Drive”, a fully automated, label-based access control system,
was introduced for the first time in Cargo City Stid (CCS). This has clearly improved traffic management in CCS.

No performance indicator, target value, or term has been defined within the scope of the Sustainability
Program.

Data protection
The objective is to ensure the handling of personal data in compliance with the data protection laws and to safeguard
the rights of data subjects, irrespective of whether the data is from passengers, customers, employees, or external companies.

Fraport AG has a natification process for data protection and data security incidents in
place. To consolidate the processes and rules at Fraport AG, existing processes were implemented in a data protection
management system and a data protection policy was added. In the data protection policy, the Executive Board has laid out
the principles, procedures, and obligations to be observed by all employees when they collect, disclose, transmit, modify, store,
or delete personal data such as names, addresses, personnel numbers, or IP addresses in the course of their business activities.
Specific topics of data protection, such as data subject information or data subject rights, as well as the deletion of data, were
described in guidelines for action. The action guidelines are to be implemented as an annex to the data protection guideline and
are binding for all employees. Extensive training concepts such as an e-learning tool and video training have been established,
which can be accessed on the Intranet.

The Data Protection Officer of Fraport AG monitors whether all data protection regulations are complied with at the company.
He reports directly to the Executive Board and is independent. Violations of the EU’s General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)
are reported directly to him — anonymously if so desired. In 2021, Fraport AG did not record any violations of data protection that
were reportable according to the GDPR.

The majority of the personal data processed by Fraport is due to the issue of airport ID cards and is thus compulsory for security
reasons. Fraport AG has implemented both technical and organizational measures to protect data against misuse. Access to this
system is allowed to only a limited group of people for a specifically defined task. Fraport AG collects personal data of passengers
primarily for the use of parking garages, baggage handling, and specific processes at the terminal. Special regulations were
therefore established while implementing biometric passenger processes (biometric eGates at the integrated pre-checks). The
travel data is processed exclusively by the airlines. There are clear guidelines for the use of video technology at the Frankfurt site
in order to ensure the personal rights of passengers, visitors, and employees. It also regulates the extent to which authorities are
allowed to use Fraport video technology.

As a result of the coronavirus pandemic, Fraport AG collected personal data at the canteens and restaurants in the terminals up
to the end of October 2021 in order to be able to trace possible infection chains. In accordance with the Hessian Ordinance on
Infection Protection Measures, as amended, this data is destroyed after four weeks.

Working from home, which was quickly implemented for a large number of employees due to the pandemic, accelerated the
introduction of appropriate collaboration platforms. Data protection measures assisted in implementing default settings that
ensured privacy. In this context, risk analyses in the form of data protection impact assessments were also carried out.

The level of data protection is part of the annual management report for the quality management certification according to ISO
9001. In addition, the data protection officer prepares an activity report. From 2022, quality management audits will regularly
include questions on data protection issues.

The Executive Board of Fraport AG works towards ensuring that Group companies in Europe comply with the European General
Data Protection Regulation and the timely implementation of the relevant legal requirements. In addition to offering training for

93



94

Combined Management Report / Economic Report Fraport Annual Report 2021

employees, the Group companies have also created technical requirements to always take data protection into account. For the
Group companies outside the EU, the laws on data protection must be complied with in accordance with national regulations.

No performance indicator, target value, or term has been defined within the scope of the Sustainabil-
ity Program.

Employee-related Matters
Group-wide, Fraport aims to remain competitive at all sites and in all sections and thereby secure jobs with fair and just working
conditions and guarantee appropriate salaries and wages.

Pursuant to responsible corporate governance, Fraport has made a commitment to comply with internationally recognized
standards of conduct, such as those defined in the principles of the UN Global Compact, the OECD guidelines, and the ILO Core
Labour Standards. They are published in the Code of Conduct for Employees, which commits employees to comply with these
fundamental principles.

The fundamental importance of the human resources strategy is generally taken into account by the three key non-financial
performance indicators of employee satisfaction, women in management positions, and sickness rate, all in Germany. An-
other key figure used to monitor accident development is LTIF (Lost Time Injury Frequency). In fiscal year 2021, however, the
focus continued to be on addressing the impact of the coronavirus pandemic also from a personnel and human policy perspective.

International air traffic has been particularly affected by the effects of the coronavirus pandemic. In order to reduce the economic
consequences of the traffic slump at Frankfurt Airport, Fraport also continued short-time work schedules for large parts of the
company in 2021.

To ensure that personnel costs can be reduced even after the expiry of the special regulations on short-time work, an emergency
collective agreement has been agreed for German airports, which are bound by the civil service collective agreement (TVOD).
The emergency collective agreement includes flexible work arrangements in the operational areas, in which work assignments
can be canceled on low-traffic days and reclaimed on busy days. In return, redundancies due to operational reasons are excluded.
In view of the ongoing coronavirus crisis, the emergency collective agreement is an important building block for further stabilizing
the company and reducing costs to the extent necessary.

Attractive and responsible employer
Fraport seeks to create good working conditions and maintain a high level of employee satisfaction (see also the
“Control” and “Non-financial performance indicators” chapters).

Due to the impact of the coronavirus pandemic on operations at all Fraport Group sites,
data on employee satisfaction was once again not collected in 2021 by means of the Fraport Barometer. Given the significant
changes in the content and framework conditions of all employees’ tasks due to the pandemic and its impact on operations, a true
assessment of satisfaction values and a meaningful comparison with the previous year’s figures is not possible. Instead, the pulse
checks introduced at Fraport AG in 2020 were continued. The short online surveys provide an insight into the current mood and
satisfaction of the workforce. Based on the results, internal communication was adjusted, and measures were identified and
initiated. The results highlight the clear advantages of working from home, such as improved compatibility of work and working
life, while at the same time highlighting the importance of communication, flexibility, and the expansion of digital structures. For
example, a concept fo